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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
aisclaim any liability whatsoever for any 0SS howsoever arising
from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of
this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Silk Road
Energy Services Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to
the best of their knowleage and belief. (i) the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, (ii) there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any Statement in this report
misleading, and (iii) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Dear Valued Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure on behalf of the board (“Board”) of
Directors of Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (together with
its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) to report on the activities
and progress of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019 (the
“Year").

The Group recorded an audited consolidated revenue amounting to
approximately HK$316.76 million representing an increase of 6.24%
and a loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
HK$29.99 million for the Year, representing a decrease of 60.40%
respectively compared with last year.

Even though the Group recorded loss for the year ended 30 June
2019 but the core businesses of the Group remains healthy. During
the Year, the major revenue of the Group was generated from
the business for provision of coal mining services. This segment
contributed an operating profit of approximately HK$6.62 million
to the Group. The Group has also carried money lending business
and provision of heating supply service, and recorded an operating
profit of HK$4.63 million and HK$6.06 million respectively.

Looking ahead, the Company has been considering venturing into
new business areas to broaden its source of revenue, thereby
creating greater value for its shareholders.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other business
associates of the Group for their continued support; and also to
every Director, the management team and all staff for their valuable
contribution during the Year.

Cai Da
Co-chairman

Hong Kong, 20 September 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENmR DN

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2019 (the "Year”), the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$316.76 million (2018: HK$298.16
million), representing an increase of 6.24% as compared with that
of the corresponding year in 2018. The increase in revenue was
mainly due to the increase in agreed price on output. The Group’s
gross profit for the Year increased by 6.23% to approximately
HK$63.76 million (2018: HK$60.02 million) and the gross profit
margin maintained at 20.13%.

During the Year, the Group recorded other income in the amount of
approximately HK$19.84 million (2018: HK$14.04 million), principally
represented income from leasing of machinery for providing coal
mining service and subsidies from government for providing heating
supply services. The Group recorded a loss of approximately
HK$9.13 million (2018 HK$5.35 million) of other losses. The increase
of other losses was primarily due to the increase of loss arising
on changes in fair value of the listed securities (including financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and investments held for
trading) held by the Group. The Group recorded administrative and
other operating expenses of approximately HK$65.20 million (2018:
HK$64.71 million) for the Year and finance costs of HK$7.06 million
(2018: HK$6.85 million) for the Year. The administrative and other
operating expenses and finance costs did not materially change
compared to the corresponding period in 2018. The income tax
credit changed from HK$16.84 million for the year ended 30 June
2018 to income tax expense of HK$9.05 million for the Year which
was mainly due to the increase in operating profits and decrease
in deferred taxation written back. Starting from 1 July 2018, the
Group adopted the expected credit loss model under HKFRS9 on
trade and other receivables, loan receivable and amount due from
an associate in determining their respective impairment losses.
The Group recorded impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, loan receivables and amount due from
an associate in the amount of HK$9.22 million (2018: Nil), HK$6.14
million (2018: HK$4.11 million) and HK$7.51 million (2018: HK$6.00
million) respectively.

In conclusion, loss attributable to owners of the Company for the
Year amounted to approximately HK$29.99 million (2018 HK$75.72
million). The significant decrease in the loss during the Year was
mainly due to the absence of impairment losses Recognised
in respect of customer contracts (2018. HK$61.66 million) and
property, plant and equipment (2018: HK$12.90 million).

Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

PROVISION OF COAL MINING SERVICES

During the Year, the Group provided coal mining services to five
coal mines, in which one coal mine suspended operation in January
2019 due to the highly competitive environment. The suspended
mine contributed insignificant revenues of this segment and did
not result in any material adverse impact on the operation or
financial position of the Group. The major revenue of this segment
comprises service incomes from coal production and excavation
works. During the Year, approximately 12.93 million tonnes of coal
had been produced and approximately 19.56 kilometres of tunnels
had been excavated by the Group.

During the Year, the Group’s provision of coal mining services
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$294.25 million (2018:
HK$273.13 million) which accounted for 92.89% of the Group's total
revenue.

TRADING OF MINERAL PRODUCTS

The Group has suspended the trading business. Accordingly, no
revenue (2018: nil) was generated during the Year.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The Group operates its money lending business through an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which obtained
a money lenders licence under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap.
163, Laws of Hong Kong). The Group also made short term loans
to third parties in the PRC through its subsidiaries in Mainland
China. During the Year, the revenue from loan interest income
was approximately HK$16.87 million (2018: HK$18.76 million) which
accounted for 5.33% of the Group's total revenue. The interest rate
charged by the Group ranged from 5% to 20% per annum. The
loans were unsecured, with credit terms not more than one year.

PROVISION FOR HEATING SUPPLY

The Group provided the heat supply services in Tianjin City, the
PRC. The services include transformation of coal-fired heating
systems and provided heating to the customers. During the Year,
the provision of heating supply services recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$5.64 million (2018: HK$6.27 million) which
accounted for 1.78% of the Group's total revenue. Even the
provision for heating supply service recorded a gross loss of
approximately HK$2.24 million due to the high price of gas, but
the Group has received a subsidies of HK$12.99 million from the
government Recognised as other income. Accordingly, the Group
recorded a profit of approximately HK$6.06 million (2018: HK$4.29
million) in this segment during the Year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (THE "FVTPL") REPRESENTING
INVESTMENT IN LISTED SECURITIES IN HONG

KONG

As at 30 June 2019, the fair value of financial assets at FVTPL

amounted to approximately HK$28.66 million (2018: HK$29.54
million). During the Year, the Group recorded a loss on change in
fair value of financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$9.13

million (2018: HK$5.35 million).

The details of the financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss are as follows:

Investee

Best Food Holding Company
Limited ("Best Food")

Lai Group Holding Company
Limited (“Lai Group”)

Goal Forward Holdings
Limited (“Goal Forward")

Ri Yang Holdings Limited
(“Ri Yang") (formerly
known as Shing Chi
Holdings Limited)

Hing Ming Holdings Limited
("Hing Ming")

VSTECS Holding Limited
("VSTECS")

China Green (Holdings)
Limited

BOSA Technology Holdings
Limited

China New Economy
Fund Limited

Others

Total
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Notes:

Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group held 8,800,000 shares which represented approximately 0.60%
of the total issued shares of Best Food as at 30 June 2019. Best Food is
principally engaged in the operation of chain restaurant and manufacture
and sale of handbags under various locations. Pursuant to Best Food's
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2019, the
unaudited loss attributable to shareholders of Best Food for the six months
ended 30 June 2019 was approximately RMB19.52 million and the unaudited
net assets attributable to shareholders of Best Food as at 30 June 2019 was
approximately RMB984.05 million. In 2019, Best Food continued to strive
for the implementation of the dual-wheel driven strategy focusing on both
investment management and operation management. In respect of investment
management, Xinladao Fish Hotpot, a leading fish hotpot restaurant chain
in China and the acquisition of which was completed by the Group on
30 November 2018, was operating within Best Food group, achieving the
interim goal on the establishment of multi-category brand portfolio of the Best
Food. Xinladao brand, which is still under the consolidation period following
the acquisition, is the major source of revenue growth of the Group. Another
controlling brand, namely HHG, continued to focus on improving its products
and customer experience. Based on the foundation of the key work in the
first half of 2019, we will continue to advance the dual-wheel driven strategy,
consolidate and improve the core businesses below, and achieve healthy and
sustainable development of the Company’s profitability in the future:

- In terms of brand building, we will continue to concentrate on products
and services, with digitalization as the core, and flexibly commence
online and offline multi-dimensional marketing to further optimise
customer experience and enhance brand value,

- As to store network, we will constantly improve our store coverage,
expanding the store network through various means including
establishment of direct stores and franchise;

- Supply chain integration and optimisation of operation platform remain
one of the foci of our work; and

- In respect of new business, we put emphasis on the profitability
of existing businesses while prudently allocating resources on new
business or asset acquisition opportunities.

The Group held 5,590,000 shares which represented approximately 0.70% of
the total issued shares of Lai Group as at 30 June 2019. The principal activities
of Lai Group and its subsidiaries are provision of interior design and fit-out
services in Hong Kong. Pursuant to Lai Group's first quarterly report for the
year ended 30 June 2019, the unaudited loss attributable to shareholders
of Lai Group for the three months ended 30 June 2019 was approximately
HK$2.15 million. The audited net assets attributable to shareholders of Lai
Group as at 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$47.31 million. Lai Group
is of the view that the steady revenue generated for the three months
ended 30 June 2019 as compared to the same period in 2018 and the latest
negotiations with existing and potential new customers, the directors of
Lai Group are of the view that there is no fundamental deterioration in the
commercial and operational viability of the Lai Group’s business. Moreover, as
the Hong Kong home prices continue to rise, residential properties become
less affordable to the mass market. Property developers continue to build
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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smaller and smaller units to compensate for the rise in prices to make
smaller homes more affordable. However, these smaller properties are still
out of reach for some first time home buyers. Lai Group is of the view that
the current trend in the Hong Kong property market favors the business of
the Group as home owners find it increasingly difficult to afford new homes
and have to resort to renovate their existing property to improve their living
environment. As such, Lai Group will continue to build on the marketing and
promotional strategy. To increase the awareness of its brand name in the
renovation and interior fit-out market. In view of the possible increase in
market size, the Group continues to expand its business coverage throughout
Hong Kong in order to improve its reach to more potential customers. This
involves opening more branches to serve more potential customers in areas
previously not covered by the Group. However, the Company is also aware
of the rising cost of operating a business in Hong Kong, which is partly
contributed by the rising property prices. Therefore, the Board remains
cautious in expanding and will continue to monitor its cost, as well as the
current market trend to anticipate any downturn or changes in the current
property market trend.

The Company remained cautious about the outlook and performance of Lai
Group given the rising costs of operation.

The Group held 9,650,000 shares which represented approximately 0.75%
of the total issued shares of Goal Forward as at 31 December 2018. Goal
Forward and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in food processing
and supply of vegetables, fruits and other food ingredients in Hong Kong.
Pursuant to Goal Forward’s annual report for year ended 31 March 2019,
the audited profit attributable to shareholders of Goal Forward for the year
ended 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$16.06 million and the audited
net assets attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$111.06 million.
While the macro environment of Hong Kong seems to have stabilized with
the underlying inflation rate remained largely stable for 2018, the spending
attitudes of customers for food and beverages remain conservative which
directly impacts on the food service industry as a whole. The Group expects
that the operating pressures for food service industry may likely to persist
moving forward, together with a record of low unemployment rate in 2018
emphasizing the challenges for lower skilled staff recruitments in the industry,
this indicates increasing demand for outsourcing of further processing
services and may continue to bring opportunities to the Group. Goal Forward
has successfully completed the fitting-out and equipment installation works
of the production factory in Kwai Chung and it has commenced full operation
since January 2019. This new production facility aims to enhance food
processing efficiency while preserving the freshness and increasing shelf-lives
of the food ingredients. Stringent quality controls with accreditation of ISO
22000 and Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Points ("HACCP”) standards
are in place to ensure compliance with food safety standards for this Kwai
Chung Factory. The additional capacity will allow Goal Forward to further cope
with the increasing processing demands of customers and explore greater
opportunities with expanded service scope and product offerings, particularly
the processed fruit unit, which will further strengthen the Goal Forward’s
position in the food service industry through market penetration and product
development.

The Group is optimistic about the food processing and supply of vegetables,
fruits and other food ingredients business of Goal Forward in the future.
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The Group held 5,856,000 shares which represented approximately 0.73%
of the total issued shares of Shing Chi as at 30 June 2019. Ri Yang is a
construction contractor in Hong Kong principally providing (i) foundation
and site formation works, which mainly include piling works, excavation and
lateral support (ELS) works, pile cap construction and ground investigation
works; (i) general building works and associated services, which mainly
include development of superstructures, alteration and addition works;
and (i) other construction works, which mainly include slope works and
demolition works. Pursuant to Ri Yang's interim report for the six months
ended 31 March 2019, the unaudited loss and total comprehensive expenses
attributable to shareholders for the six months ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$0.95 million and the unaudited net assets attributable to
shareholders of Ri Yang as at 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$204.38
million. As at 31 March 2019, Ri Yang had 31 construction projects on hand
(including projects in progress and projects that are yet to commence) with
a total contract value of approximately HK$834.4 million. As supported by
the government's initiatives in infrastructure development and increase in
housing supply, the general outlook of the construction industry in Hong
Kong is expected to stay positive. Even though the construction industry will
remain under intense competition, Ri Yang is confident that it will be able
to maintain its competitiveness and expand its business. Ri Yang will also
from time to time look for good business opportunities to drive its business
growth. In March 2019, Ri Yang has incorporated a wholly-owned subsidiary
in Shanghai to explore development opportunities in the health management
and consultancy industry in the People’s Republic of China. Ri Yang believed
that such business development will enable Ri Yang to broaden and diversify
its business.

The Group held 1,284,000 shares which represented approximately 0.32%
of the total issued shares of Hing Ming as at 30 June 2019. Hing Ming is
principally engaged in (i) trading, installation and renting of suspended working
platforms and other construction equipment; (i) construction consulting and
(i) project management.

Pursuant to Hing Ming’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2019, the
audited profit and total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders
for the year ended 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$6.33 million and
the audited net assets attributable to shareholders of Hing Ming as at
31 March 2019 was approximately HK$118.71 million. In the reporting year,
the Hong Kong economy was under downward pressure brought about by the
slowdown of economic growth in the world and the operating environment
remained challenging. With Hing Ming's commitment to excellence and
enterprising spirit, they maintained their good business relationships with
their major suppliers and their major customers and upheld their high
quality products and services. In addition, they have an experienced and
dedicated management team. Hing Ming believed they are able to remain
competitive in and well-positioned to compete in the future. Despite the
extremely challenging business environment and competition, Hing Ming will
continue to strive to focus on capturing the potential growth of the Hong
Kong construction market with their competitive strengths and will continue
to adopt a positive yet prudent approach in its business strategy, with the
aim of enhancing their profitability and shareholders’ value in the long run.
Meanwhile, they will also explore other potential investment opportunities in
order to diversify their business and create new sources of revenue for Hing
Ming.
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(6) The Group held 434,000 shares which represented approximately 0.03%
of the total issued shares of VSTECS as at 30 June 2019. VSTECS and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of Information Technology
("IT") products, provision of enterprise system tools for IT infrastructure
and IT infrastructure design and implementation, training, maintenance and
support services, as well as the provision of network security hardware and
software required for big data and cloud computing. Pursuant to VSTECS's
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2019, the unaudited profit
attributable to shareholders for the six months ended 30 June 2019 was
approximately HK$392.01 million and the unaudited net assets attributable to
shareholders of VSTECS as at 30 June 2019 was approximately HK$5,211.83
million. During the six months ended 30 June 2019, there was a continued
growth in the component products, cloud and big data analytics and network
and data security segments due to demand for our wide range of products
and solutions. VSTECS has continued to execute strategies to increase market
share as well as the range of products offered.

Investment in associates

The Group holds 30% equity interest in Asset Management
International Limited together with its subsidiaries (the "Asset
Management Group”). Asset Management Group engages
principally in security investments. As the Group share of loss
of an associate was limited to its net investment amount in the
associate, the Group did not record any loss on share of results
of associates during the Year. However, an impairment loss of
approximately HK$7.51 million was Recognised in respect of the
amount from an associated company. The impairment provision
is based on assumptions about ECL. In determining the ECL, the
directors of the Company have taken into account the historical
default experience, the financial position of the associate as well
as the future prospects of the industry in which the associate
operates, considering various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information, as appropriate, in estimating the
probability of default.

OUTLOOK

The provision of coal mining services remains the major source of
revenue for the Group. Even the performance of this segment was
improved but it still faces the increase in production costs and the
intense market competition. The Group has been actively pursuing
new customers so as to enlarge its customer base.

There has been an increase in demand for heating system and
such growing trend is expected to continue in coming years due to
rapid urbanisation and the environmental regulations facilitate the
process of boiler conversions from coal to natural gas in the PRC. In
line with the Group’s strategy to develop its environmental friendly
heating business, the Group seeks further expansion in the more
profitable areas such as Beijing. The Group intends to cooperate
with business partners in the relevant area, which will enable the
Group to expand heat supply business by utilising the resources
and strengths of each parties with an aim to expand the business
scope and market share on heat supply business.

In view of trade conflict between China and America may have
impact on the economics of China and Hong Kong, the Group will
continue to enhance the control over the making of loans as well
as monitoring its outstanding loans receivable to minimise credit
risk thereon.
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Looking ahead, the Group will maintain healthy development of
different business segments to consolidate its business portfolio
and diversify its source of income. Subject to the availability of
financial resources, the Group has been considering venturing into
new business areas, such as Chinese medicine and healthcare
products market which the Directors sees great potential and
opportunities, to broaden its source of revenue thereby creating
greater value for its shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$151.11 million (30 June 2018: HK$170.81 million).
Net current assets amounted to approximately HK$497.27 million
(30 June 2018: HK$528.33 million).

As at 30 June 2019, the current ratio (defined as total current assets
divided by total current liabilities) was approximately 8.21 times
(2018: 6.78 times). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total liabilities
to total assets, was approximately 0.30 (2018: 0.30).

The Group had no any bank borrowing as at 30 June 2019 (30 June
2018: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING

The Company completed the placing of an aggregate of
638,000,000 Shares on 27 June 2018. The net proceeds raised from
the placing were approximately HK$30.7 million. As disclosed in the
announcement dated 12 November 2018, the Company intended
to apply all the net proceeds raised from the placing as general
working capital of the Group. As at 30 June 2019, the Group had
utilized all proceeds as general working capital of the Group.

The Company completed the placing of an aggregate of
1,046,260,000 Shares on 21 April 2016. The net proceeds from
the placing were of approximately HK$201.28 million. The Group
intended to use 80% (approximately HK$160 million) of the proceeds
for the development in the business of provision of services related
to clean energy and the remaining 20% (approximately HK$40
million) of the proceeds for working capital purpose. As at 30 June
2019, the Group had utilized approximately HK$81 million for the
business of provision of services related to clean energy including
(i) investment in the joint ventures for the provision of heat supply
services, (i) capital expenditure such as purchasing heat supply
equipment and carrying construction works and (iii) operation costs
of the joint ventures, and approximately HK$40 million for general
working capital. The remaining balance was deposited into the
banks.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As at 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2018, the authorized share capital
of the Company was HK$1,500,000,000 divided into 30,000,000,000
shares of the Company of HK$0.05 each (“Share(s)”). As at 1 July
2018 and 30 June 2019, the issued share capital of the Company
was approximately HK$374,628,117 divided into 7,492,562,338
Shares.

EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group
were denominated either in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or U.S.
dollars. It is the Group's policy for its operating entities to operate
in their corresponding local currencies to minimize currency risks.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the Year, the cooperation between the Company and
Yue's Tongren Pharmaceutical Technology Group Co., Ltd. (“Yue's
Tongren”) did not proceed. On 7 March 2019, the Group disposed
Shenzhen Qianhai Yue's Health Management Company Limited (%
B L4 2 R B 12 B IR A A))(the “Disposal”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, which was originally intended to serve
as the sole management platform for the big health business of the
Company and Yue's Tongren. The consideration of the Disposal was
HK$20.20 million and the transaction was completed on 8 March
2019. The Group recorded a gain of approximately HK$0.17 million
from the Disposal. The net proceeds from the Disposal has been
used for general working capital of the Group. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 16 March 2018,
24 April 2018, 13 August 2018 and 7 March 2019.

Save as the disclosed above, there were no material acquisitions
or disposals of subsidiaries and associates of the Group during the
Year.

LITIGATIONS

(1) On 23 September 2014, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Tai Pu, has filed a claim against a customer
in AR EAESBEZH M AL ARZER (nner Mongolia
Ordos City Intermediate People’s Court) (the “Ordos City
Intermediate People’s Court”) for its failure to pay service
fees of approximately RMB35.9 million during the year ended
31 December 2014. The Ordos City Intermediate People’s
Court has rendered its decision pursuant to which, inter
alia, the customer shall pay Tai Pu (i) approximately RMB41.6
million as damages for the failure to pay the service fees
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under the services contracts, and (i) RMB1 million as
damages for breach of the service contracts. As at the date
of reporting, Tai Pu has not received the said judgement
sum. In view of the financial situation of the customer, the
Group considered that it is unlikely to recover the judgement
sum. As the financial impacts had been fully reflected in year
2014's accounts of Tai Pu, no material financial impacts were
expected.

Since 9 August 2013, the Group, as the lender, entered into
a loan agreement and certain supplemental agreements with
an individual (the "Defendant”), as the borrower, for the loan
arrangement with the amount of HK$7.5 million. The loan
was guaranteed by the Defendant and another individual
(the “Guarantor”). On 8 August 2015, the Defendant failed to
repay the principal of HK$7.5 million and outstanding interest
of HK$187,500. Therefore, the Group has filed the writ of
summons to the High Court of Hong Kong on 13 January
2016. On 22 August 2016, the Group received the judgement
pursuant to which the Defendant and the Guarantor were
ordered to pay the Group:

(@  The sum of HK$7,500,000 together with interest thereon
at the rate of 2% per calendar month from 9 August
2015 to the date hereof and thereafter at judgment rate
until payment;

(b)  Interest of HK$187,500 from 9 February 2015 to
8 August 2015; and

() HK$11,045 fixed cost.

After an investigation on the financial situations of the
Defendant and the Guarantor, the Group considered that the
chances of enforcement and recovery of the judgement sum
is very remote and accordingly, fully written off the loan and
its related provisions. No adverse financial impact to the
Group is expected.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had a capital commitment
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of capital injection in an investee amounted to HK$20.47
million.
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DONATION

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$150,000.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2019, none of the assets of the Group were pledged
as security for any banking facilities.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2019, there were 1,569 staff members employed by
the Group. The Group remunerates its employees mainly based on
industry practices and their respective educational background,
experience and performance. On top of the regular remuneration
and discretionary bonus, share options may be granted to selected
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well
as individual’'s performance. In addition, each employee enjoys
mandatory provident fund, medical allowance and other fringe
benefits.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events have occurred after the reporting period.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial conditions, results of operations, businesses
and prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties. Key risks and uncertainties affecting the Group are
set out as below:

Substantial portion of the revenue of the Group’s mining
services business from a single customer

The Group’s mining services business derived a substantial portion
of its revenue from a major customer, which accounted for 54%
of the revenue of Group’s mining services business for the year
ended 30 June 2019. The concentration of revenue from a major
customer exposes the Group to various risks that could have a
material adverse impact on its revenue. In the event that the
major customer experiences any adverse business conditions or
terminates its business relationship with the Group and should
the management fail to identify new customers, there may be
a material adverse impact on the Group's profitability, results of
operations and financial condition. To minimize the above risks, the
Group actively expand its customer base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

No long term contracts with the Group’s customers

The Group provided mining operation services to its customers
based on management contracts, normally with a term of one to
two years, with the pricing to be agreed yearly. The Group cannot
guarantee that its customers will renew their contracts or it will
be able to seek new customers. If such events occur, the Group's
future revenue and profit will be adversely affected. To minimize
the above risk, the Group has developed a significant know-how
and expertise with respect of the operation of the mines that were
being serviced and have a deep understanding of the needs and
requirements of the customers to meet the expectation of the
customers.

Mining service operations are subject to operating risks,
hazards and unexpected disruptions

Mining service operations are subject to a number of operating
risks and hazards, some of which are beyond its control. These
operating risks and hazards include: (i) unexpected maintenance or
technical problems; (i) interruptions for the mining operations due
to unfavourable weather conditions and natural disasters (such as
earthquakes, floods and landslides); (iii) accidents; (iv) electricity or
water supplies interruptions; (v) critical equipment failures in the
mining operations, and (vi) unusual or unexpected variations in the
mine and geological or mining conditions, such as instability of
the slopes and subsidence of the working areas. These risks and
hazards may result in personal injury, damage to, or destruction of
production facilities, environmental damages and could temporarily
disrupt the Group’s operations and damage the Group’s business
reputation. To minimize the above risks, the Group will continuously
enhance corporate management.

The Group’s business faces increasing competition from
competitors

The Group faces increasing competition from other mining
extraction and related service providers, particularly as the
condition of coal market is poor. The Group's major competitors are
PRC based mining service providers in Inner Mongolia. A significant
increase in competition may force the Group to lower the relevant
prices for mining related services provided, leading to a decrease
in the Group's profit margin and ultimately may have an adverse
effect on its business, financial position and results of operations.
To minimize the above risks, the Group will continuously enhance
corporate management and keep improving our services to remain
competitive and maintaining good customers relationship.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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PRC Laws, regulation and governmental policies changes
for the mining industry could adversely affect the Group’s
business

A significant degree of control over the mining industry is exercised
by the PRC local, provincial and central authorities. The Group’s
operations are governed by a wide range of PRC laws, regulations,
policies, standards and requirements in relation to, among other
things, mine exploration and exploitation, production safety,
environmental protection, taxation, labour, foreign investment and
operation management. Any change to these laws, regulations,
policies, standards and requirements or to the interpretation or
implementation or establishment of any local practice in enforcing
such laws, regulations, policies such as limited capacity and
de-capacity, standards and requirements may incur additional
compliance efforts and increase in the Group’s operating costs and
thus adversely affect the mining business, its financial condition
and results of operations. To minimize the above risks, the Group
will closely liaise with the mine owners to keep track of the national
regulatory policy for the coal industry and change of policy in
mineral resources management in a timely manner and positively
grasp policies to ensure the Group's normal operations.

Credit risks on the Group’s loan portfolio

The Group’s money lending business is exposed to credit risks from
our customers. There is no assurance that the financial positions
of the Group's customers will remain healthy in the future and the
Group do not hold any assets as security for unsecured loans,
so that the Group may not able to collect payments from our
customers on time. If the Group is unable to effectively maintain
the quality of its loan portfolio, it will be exposed to losses from
unrecoverable loans. To minimize the above risks, the Group impose
credit control measures and have a good understanding on the
background of the customers when approving the grant of loans.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cai Da, aged 44, joined the Company as an executive Director
on 16 May 2013. Mr. Cai was re-designated from the chairman of
the Company to the co-chairman of the Company (“Co-Chairman”)
on 20 August 2018. He is the chairman of nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) and the member of remuneration
committee (“Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. Mr. Cai
holds a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering from Hunan University
of Science and Technology in the PRC. Mr. Cai then obtained a
master’s degree in business administration from Bangor University
in Wales, the United Kingdom and a doctorate of business
administration in Management from the INSEEC Group in Paris,
France, which is a programme jointly organised with the Research
Institute of Tsinghua University in Shenzhen, PRC. Mr. Cai has also
been the vice president of the Shenzhen General Chamber of
commerce since June 2012. Mr. Cai has been the non-executive
director of Jlogo Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8527), a company
which shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange since
27 July 2017. Mr. Cai was the executive director, chairman and chief
executive officer of Chinese Energy Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8009), a company which shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, from 26 February 2015 to 9 May 2016. He is currently a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cai had extensive
working experience in various private companies from different
business sectors in Hong Kong and PRC, including among others,
mining and energy, real estate and tourism.

Mr. Li Xianghong, aged 52, joined the Company as an executive
Director and vice chairman of the Company (“Vice Chairman”)
on 29 March 2018, and was appointed as the other Co-Chairman
and he ceased to be the Vice-Chairman on 20 August 2018.
He holds a master degree in Law from the Party School of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China. Mr. Li was
an executive director of Munsun Capital Group Limited (“Munsun
Capital”) (Stock code: 1194), a company which shares are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from 10 July 2015 to
31 August 2017 and he acted as the chairman and chief executive
officer of Munsun Capital from 7 August 2015 to 31 August 2017.
Mr. Li has extensive experience in the investment and finance
sectors in the PRC.

Profiles of Directors
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Profiles of Directors
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Mr. Chen Youhua, aged 47, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 26 November 2012. He appointed to act as the chief
executive officer of the Company (“CEQ") on 13 June 2016. Mr.
Chen holds a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from Shandong
Economics College, PRC and an Executive Master Degree of
Business Administration from Inner Mongolia University, PRC. Mr.
Chen has worked for a number of mining companies in PRC, taking
the positions of accounting manager or financial controller in such
companies. Mr. Chen had been an executive director of Chun Sing
Engineering Holdings Limited (now known as Huarong Investment
Stock Corporation Limited) (stock code: 2277), a company which
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, during
the period from 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2016. Mr. Chen has
accumulated over 15 years of working experience in the fields of
cost accounting, financial and corporate management.

Mr. Hu Guoan, aged 50, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 9 April 2019. Mr. Hu graduated from Beijing Information
Technology Institute with a bachelor's degree in business
administration in 1994. He has extensive experience in corporate
management. He is currently the chairman of Resgreen Biological
Engineering Group Limited (“Resgreen”). Mr. Hu has been the
executive director of Future Bright Mining Holdings Limited (stock
code: 2212), a company which shares are listed on Main Board of
the Stock Exchange from 30 October 2017 to 8 June 2018. Save
as disclosed above, Mr. Hu has not held any directorship in public
companies, the securities of which are listed on any securities
market in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. Li Wai Hung, aged 57, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 30 September 2009. Mr. Li acted as Chairman during
the period from 22 November 2011 to 9 January 2015. He has
accumulated over 25 years of experience in sales related business
and held senior positions in various companies.

Mr. Wang Tong Tong, aged 30, joined the Company as an
executive Director on 12 February 2018. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in Food Science and Engineering from Inner Mongolia
Agricultural University. Mr. Wang has nearly five years’ experience
in finance and projects management. Mr. Wang served as finance
manager of Smart City (Shenzhen) Investment Co., Ltd, an indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, from July 2013 to
February 2016.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Na Na, aged 46, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 September 2015. She
is the chairman of the audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) of the Company and Remuneration committee.
She holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce in Accountancy and
Management Studies from University of Wollongong in Australia.
She is also an associate member of Certified Practising Accountant
Australia and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Wong has accumulated over 10
years of working experience.

Mr. Wang zhixiang, aged 61, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 November 2014. He is
the member of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Wang graduated from Hebei Radio &
TV University, major in Electronic Studies. He is also a certified
senior electric and mechanical engineer. Mr. Wang has been serving
certain sizable coal mining companies in PRC. He has gained over
30 years of working experience in model selection, installation and
design of electric and mechanical equipment, automation control
system and power supply system in relation to the coal mining
industry.

Ms. Feng Jibei, aged 61, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 August 2016. She is the member
of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. She holds a bachelor's degree in Heating, Ventilation
and Air-conditioning from Beijing Construction Engineering
College (now known as Beijing University of Civil Engineering
and Architecture). She also holds a certificate of professor level
senior engineer issued by Beijing Senior Specialized Technique
Qualification Evaluation Committee. Ms. Feng is currently an
advisory member of Technical Committee on Heating Supply
Standardization under Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development of the People’s Republic of China. Prior to joining
the Group, she has been working over thirty years in Beijing Gas
& Heating Engineering Design Institute, a state-owned enterprise
which specified in gas and heating engineering design and her
last position before retirement was deputy chief engineer. She has
extensive experience in the heating supply industry.

Mr. Chen Xier, aged 54, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 20 August 2018. He is the member of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor
Degree of Law from East China University of Political Science and
Law. Mr. Chen is currently a senior partner of a well-known legal
firm in the PRC. He is also a committee member of Shenzhen
Lawyers Associate in Construction Engineering Law Service
committee. Mr. Chen has been a practicing solicitor in the PRC for
over 29 years.

Profiles of Directors
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orporate Governance Report
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The Board is committed to maintaining a good corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that a good corporate
governance standard will provide a framework for the Group to
formulate the business strategies and policies, and manage the
associated risks through effective internal control procedures. It will
also enhance the transparency of the Group and strengthen the
accountability to the shareholders and creditors of the Company.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company endeavors in maintaining high standards of corporate
governance for the enhancement of shareholders’ value. The
Company has applied the principles of and complied with all the
applicable code provisions and, where appropriate, the applicable
recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 30 June 2019 (the “Year”).

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the
code of conduct of the Company regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. The Company has made specific enquiry of all
the Directors, and the Directors have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the Company's code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibility for the management of the
Company which includes, inter alia, the Group's corporate policy
formulation, business strategies planning, business development,
risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital
transactions, and other significant operational and financial
matters.

The Board currently has ten Directors, among them, six are
executive Directors and four are independent non-executive
Directors. Members of the Board have different professional and
relevant industry experiences and background so as to bring in
valuable contributions and advices for the development of the
Group's business.
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The Board holds meeting on a regular basis and will meet on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is
required. The Board held 12 meetings during the Year. Directors
are aware that they should give sufficient time and attention to the

Corporate Governance Report
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ExgEHETeER  TERAREZTEEMEE
HRENFHERREMEERETER -EFF
RAFERTHTREZ  ZEFHNTEREY
ARFBNEBHHETACEBERT SEFHE

affairs of the Company. The attendance of each Director for the ZEEZ=Eg @Z AWM T :
Board meeting is set out below:

Board meeting
Name of Directors EEgE EEgER
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Cai Da — Co-Chairman BEEE -BEEE 12/12
Mr. Li Xiang Hong — Co-Chairman TRBEE -BEEE 11712
Mr. Chen Youhua — Chief Executive Officer PRRZESE - TTHAAE 12/12
Mr. Li Wai Hung FRERBEE 11712
Mr. Wong Tong Tong T@mLE 11/12
Mr. Hu Guoan (@ppointed on 9 April 2019) BT EE(R=ZF—NFHANAEZE) 02/03
Non-executive Directors: FHITES:
Mr. Zhang Liging (resigned on 9 April 2019) REEBRE(R-ZF—AFMHANEET) 08/09
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIYFHTES:
Ms. Wong Na Na S B 48 22 = 11/12
Mr. Wang Zhixiang FEFELEE 12/12
Ms. Feng libei TS L+ 11/12
Mr. Chen Xier (@ppointed on 20 August 2018) BRAREER=ZF-NFNAZFHEZH) 08/09

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 19 to 21 of this annual
report. The updated list of Directors and their role and function
are published at the GEM website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company’s website.
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During the Year, the Directors have been supplied with adequate
and relevant information in a timely manner. They may seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at
the expense of the Company. The Company will, upon request,
provide separate independent professional advice to the Directors
to assist them to discharge their duties to the Company. The
Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal action against the Directors. The Board delegates the day-
to-day management, administration and operation of the Group'’s
business to the management of the relevant segments and
divisions. The management is responsible for the implementation
and adoption of the Company's strategies and policies. The
delegated functions and tasks are periodically reviewed by the
Board.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The newly appointed Directors were provided with an induction and
information to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the
Company'’s operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under relevant statue, laws, rules and regulations. Up to the
date of this report, all Directors have participated in continuous
professional development by attending training course, or relating
materials/in house briefing on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations. All Directors had confirmed their
participating in continuous professional development for the year
ended 30 June 2019.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In compliance with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of the Chairman and the CEO are distinct and separate
with clear division of responsibilities. Mr. Cai Da (“Mr. Cai"), the
executive Director and Co-Chairman is responsible for formulating
the overall strategies and policies of the Company. In addition, Mr.
Cai provides leadership for the Board and ensures its effectiveness
in all aspects. With the support of the senior management, he is
also responsible for ensuring that the Directors receive adequate,
complete and reliable information in a timely manner and
appropriate briefing on issues arising at the Board meetings. Mr.
Chen Youhua, the executive Director and the CEO is in charge of the
Company'’s day-to-day management and operations and focuses
on implementing objectives, policies and strategies approved and
delegated by the Board.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As at 30 June 2019, pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has four independent non-executive Directors which
representing at least one third of the Board, and one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The independent non-executive
Directors ensure the Board prepares its financial and other
mandatory reports in strict compliance with required standards,
and ensure the Company maintains appropriate system to protect
the interests and shareholders of the Company. The Company has
received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation in respect of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. Based on such confirmation,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into an appointment letter with the Company
for a specific term of one year, which is renewable automatically
for successive terms of one year. They are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company (the "AGM") at least once every three years in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Man Wo (“Mr. Ngai”), a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, was appointed
as company secretary of the Company on 26 November 2015.
According to the requirements of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Mr. Ngai has taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the Year.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

In accordance with the CG Code, the Board established three board
committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
committee and Audit Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the board committees are posted on the GEM website
of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website. The board
committees are provided with sufficient resource to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company'’s
expense.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Na
Na (committee chairman), Mr. Wang Zhixiang and Ms. Feng lJibei
and one executive Director, namely. Mr. Cai Da.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (i) making
recommendation to the Board on policies and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration; (ii) determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management;
and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year
and reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company, assessed
the performance of the executive Directors and senior management
and recommended specific remuneration packages of the Directors
and senior management to the Board. The attendance of each
member during the Year is set out below:

TEERRS

RAFE FMEEEERITMAGHELIRI A
RAZHFMBEE  FEATEERSRAEEELZ
KR ULAEZNEREEB 2 EF M FE
AEFQRLEERR AFESKEZHER
g mT

Number of
meetings
attended

Members RE HESRXH
Ms. Wong Na Na - Chairman AWz - FE 2/2
Mr. Wang Zhixiang FEHELEE 2/2
Ms. Feng Jibei HEE L+ 2/2
Mr. Cai Da (appointed on 20 August 2018) BEEAE (R _E-NENA-THEZT) 1/1

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. During
the Year, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board and determined the
policy for the nomination of Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang
Zhixiang, Ms. Feng Jibei and Mr. Chen Xier, and one executive
Director, Mr. Cai Da. On 27 June 2019, Ms. Wong Na Na ceased to
be a member of the Nomination Committee and accordingly ceased
to act as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. Following her
cessation, Mr. Cai Da was appointed as the chairman of Nomination
Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
(i) formulating nomination policy, (i) making recommendations
to the Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and
Board succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, (iii) reviewing the size, structure, composition and
diversity of the Board, (iv) assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors and (v) review the board
diversity policy of the Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and
the measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy.

REZEE

ARABEXIUIRZZEE  TREEFEATH
RIVEMBERE RNAFE REZEECR
NEFENRE RAR -EXEZTE LEE
EERAMEK-

RABERN REZEEH-RBIUFATE
EEEHLLE BESLXIRERARKLENL—
BRTEFHEELEEAKR - R-_T-NAF A
TER EPFLEABREEREZZEEKE
AT BEEREZ8EER - FH B HE
% BHELLEZERREZESIR -

REZEENIZREBFBOFERBEE - (i)
REENRELRZENESTSHUT  HERBR
BANBERFAESSROBEBES  (EH
EFENRR - /B HREZTE  (VFEE
VIRTEENBLMERVBRHTAARESTENX
B2 BRIEFEZTIEBRRDIRESTEH
HETZHEARENAFERR -

Annual Report 2019 27
20194 )



Corporate Governance Report
_u; ST IR \Aiﬁﬂ:

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year
and made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board. The attendance of each member during the Year is set out
below:

RAFE RELZEETRITMAEE  URE
ErZAMESSRLEBRES:  kEHNESS
RIZEHE - MERMAK - AFEEZSKEZHBERER
F;HAT:

Number of
meetings
attended

Members RE HESRXH

Ms. Wong Na Na (ceased be a member AWBLZ L (R=ZF-NENAZFEATHS 2/2
on 27 June 2019) KE)

Mr. Wang Zhixiang FEHELEE 2/2

Ms. Feng Jibei HEE L+ 2/2

Mr. Cai Da (appointed on 20 August 2018 and BEEAGE(R=ZFE-NENAZTHEZ (T - 11
re-designated as the Chairman on 27 June 2019) ~ R =-F—hFNA-++HEFTELEE)

Mr. Chen Xier (@ppointed on 27 June 2019) AR EE(R=_FE—NFNA -+ +HE N/A 7~ & F

ZF)

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Na Na (committee
chairman), Mr. Wang Zhixiang, Ms. Feng lJibei and Mr. Chen Xier.
The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
Company’s annual report and accounts, interim reports and
quarterly reports, (i) provide advice and comments thereon to the
Board and (iii) review and supervise the Group's financial reporting,
internal control procedures and risk management systems. The
Audit Committee held five meetings during the Year. Two of the
meetings was attended by the Company’s external auditors so that
the members of the Audit Committee could exchange their views
and ‘concerns with the auditors.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s quarterly reports for
the three months and nine months ended 30 September 2018
and 31 March 2019 respectively, interim report for the six months
ended 31 December 2018 and the Group's audited annual results
for the year ended 30 June 2019. The Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board and the management in respect of
the Group'’s financial reporting and internal control procedures.
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The attendance of each member during the Year is set out below:

TEERRS

AEREEREZHFERBEEHIMT :

Number of
meetings
attended

Members RE HEEBXE
Ms. Wong Na Na — Chairman T - FE 5/5
Mr. Wang Zhixiang FEHELEE 5/5
Ms. Feng Jibei EEL T 5/5
Mr. Chen Xier (@ppointed on 27 June 2019) BRAREER=ZF-—NFANAZFLHE N/A 3 F

ZF)

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Any nomination of Directors will be reviewed and assessed
by Nomination Committee for his suitability according to the
nomination policy of the Company and the Board Diversity
Policy. Suitable candidates will be recommended by Nomination
committee to the Board for consideration of appointment. Pursuant
to the bye-laws of the Company, any Director appointed to fill
vacancy shall hold office until the next following general meeting or
AGM of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
that meeting, and every Director is subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and shall be eligible for re-election
at such AGM.

Any further re-appointment of an independent non-executive
Director, who has served the Board for more than nine years,
will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
Shareholders. Up to the report date, no independent non-executive
Director had been appointed by the Company for over nine years.

In order to enable the shareholders making an informed decision on
the re-election of Directors, the biographical details demonstrating
qualifications, experience, expertise, leadership and other
directorships held in listed companies of the retiring Directors were
set out in the circular which will be dispatched to the Shareholders.

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

The auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, provide both statutory
audit and non-audit services to the Group. For the Year, fee for
statutory audit for the Group amounts to HK$1,350,000. Non-audit
services include tax review during the Year. The total fee paid by
the Group for non-audit services was approximately HK$72,700.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit
and cash flows for the Year. The Directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, and
have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied them
consistently, with applicable disclosures required under the GEM
Listing Rules and pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements.

The statement issued by the auditor of the Company, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited, regarding their reporting responsibilities is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 69
to 77 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems for the Group to
safeguard its assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for
reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an on-going basis.
Such risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in achieving
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatements or loss. The
Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee and
the management would assist the Audit Committee to carry out the
risk management procedures. The Audit Committee (on behalf of
the Board) oversees the management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 30 June 2019.

A Risk Management Policy has been established for formalizing the
risk management system of the Group, so as to ensure the Group
is operating in a safety and steady environment and the Group'’s
operational strategy and target could be achieved. The current
practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to follow the latest
practices in corporate governance.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, among
others, (i) a periodical risk identification and analysis exercise
which involves assessment of the consequence and likelihood of
identified risks and the development of risk management plans for
mitigating such risks; and (ii) an annual risk management meeting
for the review of the identified risks, the implementation of the risk
management plans and enhancing the implementation plan when
necessary.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant
Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management and
internal control systems, Executive Directors and the senior
management would meet continuously to review the financial and
operating performance of each segment. The senior management
of the key operating subsidiaries is also required to keep Executive
Directors informed of material developments of the department’s
business and implementation of the strategies and policies set
by the Board on a regular basis. The processes used to identify,
evaluate and manage significant risks by the Group are summarized
as follows:

Risk Identification

o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s
business and operations.

Risk Assessment

o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria

developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response

o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk

assessment; and

o Determines the risk management strategies and internal
control processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.
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The Group has engaged an independent professional adviser (the
“Internal Control Adviser”) to conduct the annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 30 June 2019. The scope of review included
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 15 of GEM Listing
Rules, Connected transactions set out in Chapter 20 of GEM Listing
rules and investment management cycle for the Company and
for one of our operating subsidiaries. Internal Control Adviser has
reported major findings and areas for improvement to the Audit
Committee. All recommendations from Internal Control Adviser
would be followed up closely to ensure that they are implemented
within a reasonable period of time. The Group therefore considered
that the Group's risk management and internal control processes
are adequate to meet the needs of the Company in its current
business environment and that nothing has come to its attention
to cause the Board to believe the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems are inadequate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
basis to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees
increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives
and sustainable development. Pursuant to the policy, the Company
seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and education background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. As at the date of this
report, the Board comprises ten Directors, amongst them, four are
independent non-executive Directors, thereby promoting critical
review and control of the management process. The Board is also
characterised by significant diversity, regardless in terms of age,
professional experience, skills and knowledge. The nomination
committee will review the policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy setting out the
nomination procedures and criteria for selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship. Nomination Committee would make
recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, with reference to the skills, knowledge,
experiences education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity of the proposed candidates, and also the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations required for the positions. A candidate who is to be
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director should also
meet the independence criteria as set out in the Listing Rules.
Qualified candidates will then be recommended to the Board for
approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on
8 May 2019. The Dividend Policy aims to set out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. The key term of the Dividend
Policy are as follow:

— The Board adopts the policy that, in recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate
cash reserves for meeting its working capital requirements
and future growth as well as its shareholder value.

— The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

— The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the
articles of association of the Company and all applicable laws
and regulations and other factors.

— The Board shall also take into account the following factors
of the Group when considering the declaration and payment
of dividends:

(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity
position;
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(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans,

(iv)  the Group’s debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v)  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

(vi) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(vii) the shareholders’ and investors’ expectation and
industry’s norm;

(viil) the general market conditions; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of inside
information and for compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group has in place, as an internal control element,
a serious of disclosure procedures of price sensitive information on
reporting and dissemination of inside information and preservation
of confidentiality. Under the current practice, the directors aware
any potential/suspected inside information event as soon as
practicable when it materializes for determining the nature of
developments, and if required, making disclosure. All staff are also
required to observe the code of ethical standards to keep non-
public information confidential.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides shareholders with high standards
of disclosure and financial transparency in a timely manner
through the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars on the GEM website of the Stock
Exchange. Such published documents together with the corporate
information of the Company are also available on the Company’s
website (http://www.silkroadenergy.com.hk).

During the Year, separate resolutions were proposed at the general
meetings of the Company for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of Directors. The chairman of the meeting explained the
procedures for conducting a poll at the beginning of each general
meeting of the Company held during the Year. The results of the
poll were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company respectively. The Directors are pleased to present
their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the Year.

TEERRS

BRRZBRE

KRB FE BRI RZEAGEM @ UL 7] 28 = F - A
HEFERSE AERABEH REMRRERE
HEKTNEERVBERE ZF2HEX
HERARANAREMIMAINARAE 2 AU
(http://www.silkroadenergy.com.hk) & [ o

RAFE ARARCHNEREZEFTHEALERE
EEENRRARGLREZEFEILRER - XA
FE AEIFNEBETARTSHRAE KK
MEMANRESTANETRRZERF - KEERD R
TERBZARAAREY EEMAREES
ERERARAAFRE 2EERRBMBEEREK

Annual Report 2019 35
20194 )



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

R -#HERERERE

ABOUT THE GROUP
Corporate Vision and Mission

Looking forward, to “become a leading coal mining service provider
in China” remains our vision and to strive to provide the most
efficient coal mining services with the highest quality remains our
pursuit. In addition, we will actively seek and seize opportunities
on the existing basis to expand our heating business and develop
clean energy heating as a main heating method. In conclusion, the
Group looks forward to building the Group into a resource-saving
and environmentally friendly enterprise as it has in previous years.

ABOUT THIS REPORT
Purpose of the Report

This is a summary and report on the environmental, social and
governance initiatives, plans and performance of Silk Road Energy
Services Group Limited (the “Group” or “we") for the year of
2018/19, which demonstrates its commitment to sustainability.

Reporting Year and Scope

The Reporting Period for this report is from 1 July 2018 to 30 June
2019 (the "Reporting Period”). Taking into account of the principle
of materiality, unless otherwise stated, this report covers the two
main reportable operating segments of the Group in the PRC,
namely, Ordos City Tai Pu Mining Engineering Company Limited
(PR MELERETLEER AT AR, Tai PU"), which engaged
in provision of coal mining services and operation of related
equipment, and Tianjin Dawei New Energy Company Limited (K&
EZETEERAR AR, Tianjin Dawei”), which engaged in provision
of heating supply services.

As a company providing coal mining services, Tai Pu was principally
engaged in the provision of services such as coal production,
drivage and mine development for coal mine owners. The coal mine
owners are responsible for the electricity, water, fuel oil and other
resource consumption and emissions in the process of coal mining
services, as we do not own such coal mines. Tianjin Dawei was
included in the scope of the report for the first time last year. This
year we included it in the report as well, and continued to respond
proactively to the green development policy of “coal-to-gas” in the
PRC, to contribute to environmental protection.
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There is no material difference on the scope of this report
compared to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
in the annual report published on 27 September 2018. The
performance data of the Group in various aspects in the previous
year were also included in the report for reference and comparison.

Reporting Standard

This report has been prepared and disclosed in accordance with
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set
out in Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
published by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“Stock
Exchange”). The corporate governance practices of the Group are
set out in the section under “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

In order to meet the requirements of the Guide, the Group has
engaged an independent consultant to provide professional advice
and allow our stakeholders to fully participate. The information
disclosed in this report includes topics of greatest concern to
our key stakeholders. In accordance with the requirements of the
Stock Exchange, we are committed to following the fundamental
principles of materiality, quantification, balance and consistency
in presenting information. In the long run, we are committed
to disclosing more comprehensive environmental, social and
governance information to enhance the transparency of the Group's
sustainability performance.

BRI -#HERERERE
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We assess the materiality based on the views of our
stakeholders and determine the material issues of
environmental, social and governance of the Group and
the focus of this report.
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Balance
P

In order to maintain a balanced performance
profile, we continue to review the areas where the
report can be improved and do everything possible
to provide unbiased information.
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Materiality | Quantification

Consistency

~

We have established a data collection system that
collects key performance indicators about the
environment, society and governance and analyzed the
performance through data analysis.

HMEL T —ENBBREERS - WERE-
e RERNBRENIESR  WEBEE
DITRHE

This report adopts a consistent approach to
ensure consistency, so that readers can make a
comparison on sustainability performance.
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Your Advices

Through this report, we hope to communicate with stakeholders
about environmental, social and governance issues effectively so
as to improve our sustainable development management system
and practice sustainable development. Therefore, we value and are
looking forward to your advice on this report or the sustainable
development policies and performance of the Group. Please email
your advice to info@silkroadenergy.com.hk.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLICIES

In the process of providing coal mining services, energy
consumption and emissions in all aspects are the responsibility of
the coal mine owners, but even so, we still attach great importance
to environmental protection in the course of business, and do our
best to reduce the impact on the environment. We have made
intensified efforts in the improvements in sewage treatment, solid
waste treatment, green environmental protection training, etc., and
actively implemented improvement measures, while enhancing the
environmental awareness of all level of the Company to promote
green production, with a view to reducing the environmental
damage caused by economic production and easing the pressure
on the environment.

In addition, as the importance of the humanitarian spirit and the
employees to the development of the corporate, we continue to regard
the occupational health and safety of employees as the top priority.
Through continuous improvement of existing safety measures, we
will do our utmost to reduce the risk of occupational injuries. In our
daily production, we not only pursue the steady development of the
corporate, but also promote environmental improvement and social
harmony, and practice corporate social responsibility.

SUSTAINABLE AND EFFECTIVE INTERNAL
CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group understands the importance of internal control and
risk management and a well structured internal control and
risk management system is closely related to the sustainable
development of an enterprise. Therefore, the Board of the
Group continues to monitor our internal control procedures, risk
assessment and management system so as to identify unfavourable
factors that may adversely affect the Group’'s business. Such
unfavourable risks include, for instance, operational, financial,
compliance and environmental protection related. Corresponding
measures will be implemented once these risks are identified. Apart
from this, our Audit Committee will review the Group’s internal
control and risk management on a continuing basis to maintain an
effective internal control monitoring system.
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To further improve the effectiveness of our risk management and
internal control system, we have appointed an independent internal
control consultant this year to conduct regular review of our risk
management and internal control system, so as to monitor the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control system
of the Group. The consultant has proposed corrective actions to
us. We expect the Group’s sustainable development policies will
be complemented by the internal control and risk management
systems to monitor and continually improve the Group’s operations
to achieve a vision of sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Our business would not have maintained stable development
over the years without the support and trust of the stakeholders.
Our key stakeholders are those highly affected by the Group or
having influence on the Group’s business, including our customers,
suppliers, employees, business partners, government authorities,
shareholders and investors, etc. For the purpose of developing
more appropriate and accurate business strategies, we believe
that communicating with stakeholders is one of the indispensable
elements. In addition, continuous communication can also
enhance our risk management and the stability of our business
development. In future, we will continue to actively communicate
with stakeholders who are directly affected by the business
operations to understand their ideas and concerns.
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We have adopted a diversified
approach, including inviting
our stakeholders to conduct
a questionnaire survey on
the importance of sustainable
development issues and
give advice on the Group’'s
sustainable development
policies. Then we have combined
the results of communication
with stakeholders to define the
overall importance of the issues.
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results

The conclusions of the steps
1 and 2 are submitted to the
senior management of the Group
for discussion, so as to confirm
the material issues of the report.
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Our Stakeholders and Relevant Channels of Communication

We maintain contacts with different groups of stakeholders
through a variety of channels. These include questionnaire, annual
general meeting, telephone consultations, site visits, employees’
performance appraisals, the Company’s team activities, meetings
and the Company’s website.

Groups of
stakeholders
EmA
e 4s)

BRI -#HERERERE
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During the Reporting Period, we also engaged an independent 3R&EHIM - HMABEB Y BEM ARMET TH L
consultant to conduct an online questionnaire for us to collect ERFAZE  NKREEFZABAEBNAFEERE
the expectations and opinions of stakeholders on the sustainable ZEMEELRER - BRMBITTAHWMEHHNE
development of the Group. We held a two-week online survey FERBFAEEE @ 5hUETI9MDEE NFERERE
that collected 191 opinions from different stakeholder groups AB#BE(BEEFE - - HER E£5AENKE &
including customers, suppliers, business partners, employees B - - BIFAB)WER - R+ O RASEZS AFT
and government personnel. We are very grateful to the valuable REZE2EER  EL B RERNEEHN A48 3
opinions provided by our stakeholders, which are very important B+ 5EZ -

to the sustainable development of the Group.

Response to stakeholders’ concerns B EER ANEE

In the process of communicating with various stakeholders, we fFHEI&HEF ABRHNBRED  HFWED — Lty
have collected some suggestions for our sustainable development FAIFE R BEMNER @ TR L5 B E =
policy. The following table outlines part of the recommendations K A8 &3 &9 [0l & :

and related responses:

Stakeholders’ concerns our responses

R AN I® M H E e

“Stakeholders express concerns about The Group has and will always take safety as its top priority in its
safety” sustainable development policy, and we will continue to review and
[ AREHLE2TENEE] improve it in our daily operations, so as to ensure the safety of working

environment of our employees.
AEETARHERRERR LBRETEH UL 2EREEEES -
BHEEEFREMbERETAMRTINE  UBREIIERE

Tz o
“Stakeholders recommend more employee The Group understands the wishes of the stakeholders and separately
training” organized targeted skills training activities during the Reporting Period
(s AEZREEZHNBETEII to improve employees’ skills and increase opportunities for career

development.
AEBTHERZAZER  UERSHBI IR EIEO LS
dEE  UMIEm B IEERENB S ERES -

“Stakeholders hope to improve employee The Group will continue to focus on the standards of welfare and
benefits and welfare” remuneration of employees in the market, with a view to assessing
[(EEAFERSEIGFBRETIREF the treatment of employees in the Group and continuously enhancing

the sense of belonging of employees in the Group.
AEEBEEBRIMSEHELIRIILFHOZE DR AEEH
HETI FB BERASEIVASENEB -

“Stakeholders hope that the Company The Group values the opinions expressed by the stakeholders and
can have more communication channels has continued to conduct questionnaire survey since the previous
to promote positive interaction with year to understand the opinions of the stakeholders. In future, we
stakeholders” will continue to consider more communication channels and hope to
[(EZAFLEAREREZHEBEE - DMZ | further promote interaction with stakeholders.

EHESENREE ] AEBEREE ANERARE VYALFERRFEXRAMSERAST

MR ATHEZANER - KRR RASKEZEAER2EE
TR FEE- S REERSANEHER -
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Analysis Chart of Materiality Issue Assessment

Through communications with our stakeholders, we identified
important sustainable development issues related to our business
and prioritized the following 23 issues based on the two aspects
of “Importance to the Group” and “Importance to Stakeholders”.
We have formulated an assessment analysis, as follows, based on

R -#HERERERE
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the results:
High Materiality Issue Matrix
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Medium IMPORTANCE TO THE GROUP High
Fh UAEBEBMH =
Issues of concern BErEE

1. Diversity and Anti-discrimination % o/t & & 548 13. Supply Chain Management 4 & §8 & 12
2. Employment Relations {& % 8 (% 14. Anti-corruption 5 £ 8 & 8
3. Occupational Safety and Health B %% 2 k& 15. Emergency Plans for Disasters ¢ B =B X
4. Training and Development 55 3l & 2 & 16. Product and Service Quality Z @ & R @ &
5, Child Labour and Forced Labour & T &3 i 48 17. Product Safety E 2% 2
6. Employee Benefits & T & 18. Compliant Handling # & i 22
7. Greenhouse Gas Emission & = & 82 5 it 19. Intellectual Property %03 & &
8. Exhaust Gas Emission & & 5 1% 20. Customer Privacy Protection & F 7. & R &
9. Sewage Discharge 35 7k Bt it 21. Customer Satisfaction & F % & &
10. Waste Disposal & £ %) & 18 22. Participation in Public Welfare Activities £ 22 % E &)
M. Saving Energy and Water & 4785 % & F 7K 23. Charitable Donation % 2 48 i
12. Green Procurement 4% & 5 8
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List of Important Category

Material Issues

ERERIIE

Corresponding Sections/Units

EERE

MEBEH NET

Occupational Safety and Health | e  Occupational Safety and Health
BEZ>RER BERELL S
Training and Development e Training and Skills Development
Bl & 2% R Bl ke ER
Employee Benefits e  Employee Benefits
BTEH 8I@H
Anti-corruption e Anti-corruption and pro-integrity
R FE BB BX EEER
Emergency Plans for Disasters | e  Review system for Accidents and Hidden Dangers and Emergency Rescue
KEESTER Plans
EHREECHERESZREEASR

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

We understand that ensuring and maintaining the safety of coal
mine work and heat supply project stations is the most important
mission and task for us who are socially responsible, whether it
is based on humanitarianism or operation safety, or the need for
compliance management. It is also the scope of our continuous
efforts in sustainable development. We have been doing our best
to provide a safe working environment for our employees. The
Group hopes to establish a safety management system on the basis
of “safety first” concept for production, continuously improve the
employees’ emergency skills and safety awareness, and shape and
promote safety culture of the corporate to achieve the ultimate
goal of ensuring employee safety.

The Group is committed to be compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations including the Law of the People's Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases ((#
AR EFE B2 HEB6%)) , Measures on the Administration and
Supervision on Occupational Hygiene of Workplace (Decree No. 47
of State Administration of Work Safety (the “SAWS")) ({ T{E % FTE%
XHEEEEERAT)ERL2EERRLEHELH)), Measures
for the Declaration of Projects with Occupational Hazards (SAWS
Decree No. 48) (B EREEFEERAMIMNENBERLZL2EEELR
£ 548%%)) , Measures for the Supervision and Administration of
Employers’ Occupational Health Surveillance (SAWS Decree No. 49)
(RABNBERREZEEEEEN ) BERLE2EETERS
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249%%)) , Interim Measures for Supervision and Administration of
the “Three Simultaneities” for Occupational Health at Construction
Projects (SAWS Decree No. 51) (EZEE B EZ® L= R K]
EEERTIRHEINBERLEE2EEBLB S ES%)) and the
national standard Technical Specifications for Occupational Health
Surveillance (GBZ188-2007) ({ B % fi& 57 25 & +% iy #7 #1) (GBZ188-
2007) ). To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group was not
subject to any significant administrative sanctions or penalties for
any breach of regulations on safety during the Reporting Period.

Safety Management System for Heating Business

A sound regulatory management policy can provide guidance for
safety management and is a basis for safety management system.
As to the heat supply projects, we have particularly established
the Regulations on Safety of Boiler Room ((#fi1E 5 % & 18 &
£ )), the Management System for Firefighting Safety of Boiler Room
(GRIEFEEMZ2EEHIE)), the Regulations on Firefighting
Safety Education and Training (CHFFZ 2% 5 « BB EHIE))
and other regulations, in addition to continuing to implement the
previously-established production safety regulations. Key contents
of the aforesaid regulations are as follows:

BRI -#HERERERE

(B 36 2 B B2 o H 0 A5 %8 ) (GBZ188-2007) & 12 B8
ERRER  MAEZEMRAN  AEBERHESH
B EEETAEREZ2HAMEREARTH
HEHETHIER

HEXBENZZEEER

BUYBREZMNAEERGE AIUARLE2EETHE
RftEs hRELXEZEBBEANER - EFEH
THRMABEMBINLZZEEREHEIN - HM
M HHEBREBODHIRERT(RERS LT 2R
ERE) (REFEHZ2EESE) CEMN%
EHE BIREHE)SHE - ATRLEAR
ERENEHAR:

Regulations on Safety of Boiler Room
(BREEZE2REFE)

o Boiler staff must obtain relevant certificates before starting their jobs

MEABMARE LHE

o Conduct patrol inspection on equipment in boiler room every two hours

EMEHRESNETREFELERSE

o Check, at any time, whether there is any unusual occurrence during the operation of boiler

RARRBENEFRESBEEMNEETRR

o Reject any instructions in violation of boiler safety regulations

HBEMERPBERZZ2ETNESRETR  BEBHTT

Management System for Firefighting Safety of Boiler Room

(BEEEHRZEZEEHE)

o Implement the guideline of “precaution comes first with active prevention”

ERMIEH AT HHEEEINITE

o No flammables and combustibles shall be stacked up nearby the boiler room

ZIERBESKOERSR  SBY R

o Boiler room shall be equipped with adequate firefighting equipment which shall be kept and under regular check

and maintenance by dedicated staff

MEFEREBREANEN =N YAZARERELTHETRERE

Regulations on Firefighting Safety Education and Training

CEIFRZ2HE - FINREFE)
o Training shall be carried out for all staff each June
BNERBEIGFENASET RS

] New staff and those re-designated to a new post shall receive relevant firefighting safety training before starting

their job

MEmMMEAFEUNE TRET EMATAER % 25
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Safety Indicators for Mining Operations and Review of EREREBNZ2EERBERB B
Potential Risks

As for safe production, we have converted our targets into the HFEZ2EEIEKBZILAEEZ (FAFR
following four indicators as standards for year-end assessment: EZHAREE - FFNTHMEOAER:

Promptly identify and assess the source of

dangers, and effectively control or eliminate Ensure 100% of special workers are qualified
the primary and secondary source of danger; with relevant certificates;

g - BIRTIEABRE LM

Achieve a zero fatal accident rate and
effectively control the occurrence of _ Complete the annual plan on the
production accidents above Level II; and implementation of safety technology measures.

FEBFET R = A A E BB ¢ 2 2 BATEHEIA
SR A -

To achieve the above indicators, Tai Pu has established the AEZ| L4512 FEH T TUTERESBRR
following measures or commitments in respect of expenditure: F

v Adequate expenditure on maintenance and purchase of the v REBHEIZEZMENSERBELLTE
equipment and safety protection system required for safe RERFNEENESER
coal mining

v Adequate expenditure on the facilities, instruments and v REBRBEE - FHE - H -  BH - 22%
meters of ventilation, dustproof, firefighting, gas, safety Al ERZANRENES  EEOER
inspection, and monitoring system

v Adequate expenditure on purchase and maintenance of v @ REFEARSEMFHES B BAWE - HEE
various protective screens, protective fences, self-rescuers BEEE  HENER

and gas masks

v’ Expenditure on the upgrading of safety equipment as v  EARBHMLTE2RERENE A
approved by the Company

F|
n

v Other necessary safety-related investments v HUUMENZEERAEAR
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v The Safe Production Department shall conduct a review of
certain works of each project on a monthly basis, review all
the projects semiannually, and conduct a final assessment
on the projects that have been completed and handed over
at the year end

v Conduct safe production inspection on a monthly basis

v" The Safe Production Department shall conduct regular follow-
up reviews. For the non-compliance that have not been
rectified or completely rectified, penalties will be imposed on
the responsible units and persons

v" The dedicated safety inspector shall inspect the construction
site from time to time to offer on-site guidance on the
hidden hazards and non-standard operations. For persons
who give incorrect instructions, perform inappropriate actions
or violate the labour discipline, the safety inspector shall
make criticism, advice on correction, warnings or severe
warnings and impose economic penalties in case of severe
circumstances

v Hold regular safety meeting on a weekly basis for updating
safety knowledge, reviewing safety performance during the
past week and arranging of safe production tasks for the next
week. The meeting shall be attended by the team leaders,
group leaders, safety inspectors, blasters and engineering
and technical staff

We convene a monthly routine meeting on safe production presided
by the general manager or deputy general manager entrusted, in
which the heads of each department and general managers of each
project will:

)} discuss guidelines, policies, performance assessment and
other aspects on safe production;

i) discuss existing problems and solutions thereto; and
i) analyze the accidents that have happened.

We discuss the responsibility and punishment for the accidents
and serious violators of rules and regulations, and hence, we can
learn from the accidents and formulate preventive measures, etc.
In this way, we further strengthen our safety management over
each project, have a better understanding of the safe production
of each project, and improve measures for safe production in a
continuous and effective manner.
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In addition, we hold monthly routine meetings on the technologies
for safe production, in which the general manager, vice general
managers, heads of each department, project managers of
respective project department, excavation, electromechanical and
ventilation engineers, assistant engineers, team heads and team
technicians discuss existing problems on production technologies
and related solutions and exchange views on technical innovations,
reforms and inventions of each project with a view to continuously
improving technology in safe production and ensuring operating
security.

In order to improve employees’ awareness and skills on safety,
we invited the instructor from Inner Mongolia Fire Protection
Knowledge Propaganda Center, to teach fire safety knowledge to
coal mine employees, and explain the fire safety knowledge and
the use of various fire devices and life-saving tools to employees
through cases this year.

Screening System for Accidents and Hidden Dangers and
Emergency Relief Plans for Accidents

Major accidents and hidden dangers may cause three deaths or
more or a direct economic loss of RMB1 million or more at one
time. Major accidents and hidden dangers generally refer to:

i) unsafe environment, equipment and facilities in workplaces;
ii) empolyees’ unsafe behaviors; and
i) defects in management.

During the course of usual operation, upholding the guideline of
“safety first and precaution crucial”, Tai Pu takes an active and
comprehensive approach in screening, rectifying, supervising
and managing major accidents and hidden dangers to prevent
the occurrence of major accidents. In addition to routine safety
inspection, we organize monthly screening work for major
accidents and hidden dangers and deliver the results of evaluation
by entities concerned to the Safe Production Department before
the fourth day of the following month. Any lengthy rectification
pending completion shall be reported on a continuous basis until
completion.
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Establishing a sound emergency response plan is conducive to
the dealing with unexpected accidents. We can initiate response
plans immediately in case our staff face sudden, dangerous and
catastrophic accidents. The prompt intervention of implementing
the plan at the early stage or even the pre-warning stage can
contribute to control the escalation of accidents and minimize the
losses. Even if accidents have occurred, relief work can be carried
out in an orderly way to minimize casualties and property losses.
Accordingly, we have prepared emergency response plans for major
accidents based on the Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China (Order 2002 No.70 of the President of the PRC)
KHRZEARHEME L 24 EE)NBEREF 220029 %705 ))(Order
2002 No.70 of the President of the PRC), Emergency Management
Document for the Production Safety of Coal Mines (H#EZ &
A FEE & B 18 XX ) (2005-2014)) , Identification of Major Hazard
Sources (GB 18218-2000) ({E K&k R # ) (GB 18218-2000)),
Coal Mine Safety Rules (2012 version) (& % 2 R 12) (2012
version)) and other laws and regulations. Such emergency relief
plan not only establish an organization for emergency relief, but
also build up a trained relief team. Also, it lists out the materials
needed to perform the emergency relief to ensure all the staffs
would be able to react in accordance with the prescribed plan
in a timely manner upon occurrence of accident and ensure the
emergency relief works shall be carried out smoothly.

In addition, it is required by China’s laws that effective management
measures for major hazard sources shall be applied by enterprises
and governments at all levels shall establish effective control
systems for major hazard sources. Therefore, we have formulated a
variety of management systems as required to enhance our control
over major hazard sources.

Energy and Environment Monitoring System

We have fully applied the electronic energy management system for
all heat supply project stations, monitoring, in real time, the water
supply, water temperature, pressure, electricity, boiler operation of
each heat supply project station, so that we can obtain real-time
information of each station, and hence, we can make rectifications
immediately upon occurrence of any abnormality and further
enhance the energy management of each project station.
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We have also set up a round-the-clock monitoring system with
alarming function in all heat supply project stations, which is able
to monitor relevant areas in a 24-hour basis and raise the alarm
immediately in case of any moving object detected. As such, each
project leader can immediately respond if any unauthorized person
enters into the heat supply project station, so as to maintain the
safety of the heat supply project station.

GREEN OPERATION

Amid the increasing global warming and environmental pollution,
participation in environmental protection has become a social
responsibility that all sectors of society have to bear. All parties
in the community have made different efforts to strengthen
environmental protection measures. Improving energy efficiency,
reducing carbon emission and further enhancing resource
utilization and management are the best choices to improve
the environment and promote sustainable development. We will
continue to consider adopting more appropriate green business
models in our business' given that the operation mode of our coal
mining business and the mining procedures involved may have
a negative impact on the geology, vegetation and the ecological
environment.

! Given that the principal business of Tai Pu is the provision of coal mining
service with no ownership of related mines, the electricity, water and other
energy consumption and emissions in coal mining are under the control of
coal mine owners. Therefore, the statistics on such part is not available for
calculation
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Description
i at

2019

—E-hF

R -#HERERERE

2018 | Unit
—E-N\F | B

Total greenhouse gas emission 514496 7,46795 Tonnes of CO, equivalent (“tCO.-e")
RERBHEMES —akRE=
Direct emission (scope 1) 4,636.91 6,865.30 | tCO.-e
B (EE) M-S ik E £
Indirect emission (scope 2) 508.05 602.65 tC02
5 BE i (BB E2) “R{tIRE=E
Total greenhouse gas emission per square 16.72 25.81 k|Iogram of CO.-e per square meter with
meter with heat supply heat supply
BHETARRNAEREERESE ATZEREE BHREFHK
Nitrogen oxide (NOy) 4,012.45 5,940.73 | kilogram
AAEYIINOY /NN
Sulfur oxide (SOy)? 857.82 1,270.06 | kilogram
1 &1k ¥ (SOx)? /NN
Particulate matter (PM) 37.57 55.63 | kilogram
SE KLY (PM) i
Total energy consumption 23,766.00 35,018.22 | ‘000 kwh
R RfEE T+ & &
Electricity purchased 574.52 681.50 | ‘000 kWh
BEE T &+ & &
Natural gas 23,191.48 34,336.72 | '000 kWwh
RAR T8 T
Energy consumption per square meter 0.08 0.12 | '000 kWh per square meter with heat
with heat supply supply
BHEFHRNEREE T & F R &5 T 5K
Total water consumption 12,340.00 31,116.00 | cubic meter
BREKE 3K
Water consumption per square meter 0.04 0.11 | cubic meter per square meter with heat
with heat supply supply
BHEFAROEKE SRR K

As Tianjin Dawei has sold the cars it owned during the Reporting Period, the ?
relevant environmental statistics are no longer applicable. For Tai Pu, we have
established a related data statistics system regarding the automotive related
data during the Reporting Period, but as the relevant statistical methods are
still in the testing stage, the Group will disclose relevant data in this report
after we completed the relevant testing procedure and ensure the accuracy

of relevant data.

REEBUNBRESPHCHEMBEE 2 AFTLHE &
A EAIRARBEGCTER - MEEH@E - #H
AEARITEMEE  RMERSHBECELARIE
MBE G RG  EhRARAR AR HRE
7N 5 B 5t 8 A2 5e AR AE BRI BUAR 7 30 E AR AR B BUE Y
HERNER  RARERBEB I EOERE
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Heat Supply Business to Reduce Pollutions

The PRC government has actively pushed ahead with the
advancement of natural gas market-oriented reform and continual
introduction of stringent environmental protection policies with
a view to replacing coal with clean energy, thereby reducing air
pollution and mitigating climate change. The National Development
and Reform Commission (the “NDRC") also promulgated the 13th
Five-year Plan for Natural Gas Development ((XARERE+
— R JRE)) in 2016 following the release of Action Plan for
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution ({K&R 528178
ZI)) by the State Council. We will remain highly responsive to the
national low-carbon and green development objective of “coal-to-
gas conversion” by vigorously pushing forward the use of natural
gas by township and rural residents. As such, we plan to continue
the development of heat supply business in the future through
replacement of coal with clean energies, so as to mitigate the
severe haze weather in northern China.

Energy conservation and Emission Reduction

Greenhouse gas refers to the gas component of the atmosphere
that contributes to the greenhouse effect. Electricity consumption
and vehicle fuel consumption are the main sources of our
greenhouse gas emissions. While the usage of electricity is for
maintaining daily office needs and operation of heat supply
project stations, vehicle fuel is mainly used for daily administrative
purposes. As mentioned above, given that most of energy
consumption for coal mining business is under the control of
relevant coal mine owners, our environmental protection measures
are subject to restrictions to a certain extent and thus the
implementation thereof is unable to proceed with. However, the
Group will still adhere to our guideline on environmental protection,
actively advocate the low-carbon concept and encourage
employees to adopt a low carbon living habits, and reduce the use
of natural resources, for the purpose of promoting environmental
protection and energy conservation at our utmost efforts. The
following are the low-carbon measures adopted in our daily office
operations:
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Reducing power consumption

WA RE

o Set the air-conditioning temperature at 25°C in summer, and ensure the air-conditioners are turned off after work
THAAEESTHSSNERSE  BRERZEHAE T &SR

o Adjust the computer’s screen brightness at 50%-75%, and preset the monitor to turn off automatically when it
is left idle for ten minutes
HEREE T EHIFRO0ESPE RS ERBRERERI0D E%E B

o Switch off unnecessary electronic devices or lamps while not in use
ETERAEN  BRATVENEFREREE

o Use sensor-controlled lights in some office areas
BoOMAEHEF A XEXRAE

o Make full use of natural light and wind to reduce the usage of lights and air-conditioners
THAMABRAXMBAR - LR EBMZEFEE A

Reducing paper consumption

WA AR

o Strive to be a paperless office to avoid wastage of office consumables
EERTEAERS  UWBERENAEMAREBFER

o Provide recycling bins to collect single-sided paper for reusing
RHEBERANERERAEER

o Employees bring their own cups to avoid using disposable paper cups
BT EBRAKN - & REAINERN

o Encourage employees to dry hands with handkerchief to reduce paper consumption
SEETERFHEEF  BLAR

Reducing water consumption

A Ak

o Employees must make sure to turn off the relevant water equipment when finish using to prevent wastage of water
BTIRGEHAKRKZEEVERRDSZAB@ERE  BHIEREAK

o Check the water equipment carefully to avoid water dripping or leakage, and repair immediately once any
abnormality is found, to reduce wastage of water
REBMEAKEE LB EXHRETKRIRETEE  RIOREBRK

Reuse and recycling

MSEHARBRBE

o Reuse office supplies such as envelopes, file folders, paper bags and choose replaceable stationeries
EEFERAPLAERAR BEGEH BR HARERERAZHRHONXA

o Entrust a professional environmental protection company to recycle scrap paper regularly
L EEIRR A AT H B E R

Use of Water and Management of Sewage Discharge AKRBKERER

The Group's heat supply service relies mainly on water as a 7N & E &) 408 R & X ER S KE A E N # 17 &
medium for heat transfer to achieve heat supply. Subject to the EENZEFIHEENIERD  AREERSEENRE
nature of this service, we will inevitably consume a large amount of %/ - HM T2 HRERKENKER  BEAEEHE
water resources, but the Group will reuse the water resources for 22 ER 2 E R M ATEENS AR HE M KE R
heat supply purpose as much as possible during our heat supply  fTERE B AR D /KERNER -

business operation, with a view to reducing the usage of water

resources.
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In addition, the sewage generated in daily life is also one of the
Group’s main sources of sewage. Our domestic sewage is treated
as required by local governments. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Group was not aware of any issues relating to water
sources during the Reporting Period.

Waste Treatment

No hazardous waste is generated and no packaging material for
finished products is used during our coal mining business and
heat supply business. Non-hazardous wastes we generated are
mainly domestic wastes and office papers. Such wastes are sent
to the city environmental and hygienic department for unified
treatment. Given that no significant non-hazardous waste has been
generated in the business operations of the Group’s subsidiaries,
the relevant data will not be disclosed for the current year. In the
future, we will continue to review the importance of non-hazardous
waste generated and review whether there is a need for relevant
disclosure.

Impact on the Environment

Due to the nature of our service, emissions of pollutants such
as noise, sewage and solid waste are inevitable during mining of
natural resources of Tai Pu, which will cause damage to the natural
environment. Nevertheless, in the course of our business, we still
do our best to teach and require employees to operate properly,
and at the same time implement proper noise control measures to
minimize our impact on the environment.

Tianjin Dawei, which supplies heating service using natural gas
as its fuel, will continue to seek opportunities in the future for
expansion of our heat supply business, thereby strengthening
our positive impact on the environment. In the future, we will
continue to follow closely the national policies and actively promote
development strategy for environmental protection.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

When conducting coal mining service and heating supply
businesses, the Group will abide by the Mineral Resource Law of
the People’s Republic of China ((hZEARELFEEEERE)),
Environmental Protection Law of the People’'s Republic of China
((RE AR AFBEIRE®R#E L)), Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Appraisal of Environmental Impacts ({/ Z A R £ F1
BliziE & EF(BA)) Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ({/ = A R £ HE K5
ZBh367%)), Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Air Pollution ({FFZE A R HEFME KR IFLEEZED)
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and other relevant laws and regulations enacted by the PRC and
comply with all environmental protection regulations binding on
the coal mine owners. To the best knowledge of our Directors, the
Group was not subject to any significant administrative sanctions
or penalties for any breach of environmental laws or regulations
during the Reporting Period.

TREATING EMPLOYEES WITH KINDNESS AND
EQUALITY

Talent is a significant factor in the development of an enterprise. It
is therefore wise that we have always been adhering to the principle
of “people-oriented” and treating our employees with a benevolent
and generous attitude. We are committed to providing a decent
working environment, encouraging our employees to collaborate
and giving them opportunities to learn, grow and succeed in their
work and life.

Employment

The Group, as an employer with equal opportunities, adheres to
the principle of fairness and transparency and never considers
any unrelated factors such as employees’ age (not recruiting those
under the age of 16), nationality, race, religion, sexual orientation,
marital status, pregnancy and disability when recruiting and
promoting them, with a view to creating and reflecting the Group’s
values on equal opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination. We
warmly welcome talents and insightful workers to join us.

The Group consistently insists on signing labour contracts with
employees within the time prescribed by laws. In terms of
dismissal, our dismissal policy is implemented in accordance
with local regulations. Our human resource department also
conducts interviews with separated employees to ensure that their
dimissions are not due to the unfairness in workplace. The Group’s
employment, resignation and dismissal for employees are carried
out in accordance with the provisions of the Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({(FPFZEAREXFBELS)%)) and the
Employment Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China ({
EFEAREMELES AR L)) as well as the employee handbook.

In addition, the Group has also established the employee handbook
and the personnel management policy to specify the relevant
requirements such as employees’ employment management,
the right to terminate labour relationship, social security funds,
remuneration, employee benefits and vacation benefits for the sake
of protecting employees’ rights and interests. The main regulations
in China related to the employment of the Group include the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FhEA RFEMELAENL))
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and the Regulation on the Implementation of the Employment
Contract Law of the People's Republic of China ({F#EA R H£F1E
LEARIEE M) ). To the best knowledge of the Directors,
the Group has not received any material administrative sanction or
penalty for any violation of employment laws or regulations during
the reporting period.

Employee Benefits

We value the well-being of our employees and care for their work
and life. We understand that, providing boons to our employees
is a vital factor in retaining talents to promote the business
development. According to the labour market and the remuneration
and benefits of peers, we regularly review the remuneration and
benefit standards for each position, take into account for the
performance and working experience of our employees to provide
them with competitive remuneration and benefits, and motivate
them to achieve a better performance with more contribution.

Furthermore, we provide employees with many benefits as
prescribed by laws, such as pension, work injury, medical care,
unemployment and maternity insurance. We, as an employer
valuing the employee benefits, are also concerned about the
physical and mental health of our employees. In addition to the
above-mentioned benefits, we held a basketball game during the
reporting period, with a view to enriching our employees’ spare
time, releasing their stress and building up their bodies by way of
doing exercises.

LABOUR STANDARDS

Since Tai Pu is engaged in the mining operations and services, we
need to arrange the working hours of our employees in 24-hour
shift. We understand that the work of our employees is tough,
thus we provide overtime pay and additional compensation for
the employees whose working hours exceed the specified working
time. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has not
received any material administrative sanction or penalty for the
violation of relevant employment regulations to deal with the
working hours and break time during the reporting period.

Regarding the prevention of child labour or forced labour, each
of the Group’s enterprise has a special personnel management
department to carry out professional management for preventing
the employment of child labour or forced labour in the Group during
the time for recruitment and employment. At the same time, we
also clearly specify the working hours for each employee as well as
the management of overtime and vacation, and protect their rights
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and interests. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
has not received any material administrative sanction or penalty
for the violation of the regulations regarding child labour or forced
labour during the reporting period.

TRAINING AND SKILLS DEVELOPMENT

We believe that our complete training can effectively enhance
the ability of our employees, while their growth can also make
enterprises go from strength to strength. We provide our employees
with the career development opportunities, encouraging them to
diversify and develop a positive learning environment. We develop a
number of training programmes for our employees annually, in which
all of them can be divided into two levels: the company level and
the branch and project level. The company level training is carried
out based on the working condition so that all employees can fully
understand each of the working procedure, system and related
knowledge of the Company. And the branch and project level is to
develop training plans in internal departments and implement them,
on the basis of their respective working conditions.

During the reporting period, we also conducted training activities
relating to electromechanical and equipment maintenance, to
enhance the working ability and proficiency of our employees. In
addition, in order to improve their enthusiasm towards learning,
we also organised many activities such as knowledge contests
and skill competitions to enhance the interest of learning, making
them more engaged in learning and enriching themselves with it.
We hope that the basic skills, knowledge trainings, job expertise
and management skills of senior management can meet the
needs of different departments and actual functions through a
comprehensive training system. Moreover, we will hire external
professional teachers or teams for training activities as needed, or
organise relevant employees to participate in training activities so
as to acquire the knowledge or skills as required.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

We believe that an effective supply chain management is of great
significance to maintain the quality and reputation of our products.
The effectiveness of the operations of the Group depends on the
level of the equipment or raw materials provided by the suppliers.
Therefore, we attach great importance to the quality of our
suppliers. The Group has established a set of supplier management
process to ensure that its operation is in full compliance with
the laws and regulations in the PRC regarding the society and
environment. Every year we review the existing suppliers based
on their product quality and certification, delivery speed, after-
sales service, evaluation for using units, non-compliance, etc.,
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to examine whether the existing suppliers meet the Company’s
standards. In order to ensure the quality of the Company’s supply
chain, unqualified suppliers are classified to the list of “Unqualified
Suppliers” and are no longer employed.

Besides, we have developed a complete set of acceptance process
to check the purchased equipment and raw materials to ensure
that their quality is up to standard. For unqualified products, we
will contact the suppliers and arrange for returns.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

As the market becomes more competitive, customers have more
choices and demands for products and services. Therefore, in
order to obtain the trust and support of customers and promote
the development of the Company, it is extremely important to
provide the quality products and services. As a provider of mining
services, the health and safety of the product is not involved in
any production process, but we are still striving to maintain quality
with an aim to provide a high level of service.

In terms of heating services, we are committed to maintaining a
stable heating supply to guarantee the needs of our customers. As
mentioned above, we will monitor the operation of the natural gas
boiler and boiler system data all the way through, to ensure the
normal operation of the heating service. In addition, if we receive
complaints or problems from local residents about heating services
in daily operations, we will deal with them in a timely manner. If
project or equipment is involved, our maintenance team will take
action as soon as possible to make up for the defects in project
or equipment. During the reporting period, we received valuable
suggestions from residents and will review the suggestions received
and make further follow-up actions and improvements.

PRIVACY PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to the privacy and
confidentiality of employees, customers, suppliers, business
partners and other identifiable persons, and will ensure that the
privacy of these objects is strictly guaranteed. For safety, the Group
has established a confidentiality system for customer privacy,
requiring all employees to fulfill confidentiality obligations, including
but not limited to customer information, commercial and technical
secrets. In addition, the customer information we collected are for
specific purposes only. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has not received any complaint about the violation of the
privacy ordinance, or other related misconduct during the reporting
period.

58 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
e RIRGEEER AR

HEBETHE UBEARTHEBRSTAR
AIZIEE -  QERAFIHEEIER  HRNTE
WRZHER  —BSERERNCTABHER) S
BZHRATEEM -

AN - BAITHIE T - EXBNREEFHREZ
BEREMEETREABREREER - R
TERMER RAKKEREALLHRE -

EmEFE

BEMSHFNEZARN  TFEAERNEER
MRABHERMRENERLBEZRS - Bt
RREEPHEBMXENEECENER 1R
HEANEMTIRBEEAEE - (EARBERBEHN
RMHE EEBEPULTISRIERNRERLY
2HEE BERMADENRFEE  KEHEKE
MRBSBERE -

EHREREIE HA-—ERNIRERRBENE
RHEBAREBRAFER - ML RPGF2 XK
B R AR RIE O EE N IE R BB ARER A
B RIS EH B o b MAERBERKEFREE
wERABHERGHORFHMEE RS RE
EITRE B RITREARE  RANEEEEK
NEHFREMTHEM LRAREHEHRE -
RBERHE - RARITLPEREENEER
FAPIHS AR P U B 1) B R AE A — P ERE AN 2L
£,

B RE

AEEFEEREER TR HEH  EBBHR
Hr FAIA LR REE W EERN LY
KNBLZIBERRE RERELE  AKEE
HEERLSETHENREZSE  RE2ER
THEHEBREZRY  BREIRREFERH
BEMBRMMES - I KMAMBENEFER
TEFEERSZ - MUEFAMARM  AEBER R
SHIRY EEEE B RERLE GO E M
A TNETRRIE °



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ANTI-CORRUPTION AND PRO-INTEGRITY

The Group is committed to achieving and maintaining the highest
standard of openness, integrity and accountability. Our employees
of all ranks must act with a good faith, impartiality and honesty,
and abide by relevant legal norms and ethical standards to ensure
the misconduct that harms the interests of shareholders, investors,
customers and the public is not made, thereby safeguarding the
Company's interests as a whole.

We have developed anti-fraud management and reporting policies
including reporting mechanisms to provide several anonymous
channels for our employees to report suspicious corruption, bribery
and fraud cases. All reports and whistle-blowers’ information will
be kept confidential. Staff who report complaints or participate
in fraud investigations should not disclose any unauthorised or
confirmed report information. In addition, we have developed an
evaluation mode to determine if further investigation is needed
when a report is received. We will adopt a zero tolerance policy
for any form of corruption including bribery, fraud and money
laundering, and report it to the relevant judicial authorities. To the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has not received any
complaints about corruption, bribery or other misconduct during
the reporting period.

COMMUNITY CARE

The Group understands that, as a member of the community, we
are obliged to contribute to the harmonious development of the
community, and the growth of the Group relies on the support and
trust of the community. Only when all parties in the community
endeavour together can we create a harmonious and decent
community. Consequently, we often provide quality services to the
community residents with gratitude. Meanwhile, we have always
been committed to participating in local economic construction
and fulfilling our social responsibilities in an effort to improve the
public life, spur the regional economic development and promote
the social harmony.
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We understand that many residents who use our heating service
may face financial difficulties. In order to benefit the community, we
have established a fee reduction policy that provides an additional
up to 4% fee reduction as long as the relevant conditions are met.
We hope that the economic burden of local residents can be eased
by this policy. Currently, our preferential policies have covered the

residents from Dahouzhuang ("X #t"), Xiaosunzhuang ("/NREE")
and Donglantuo ("R 1E").

PROSPECTS

During the reporting period, we have always shouldered our social
responsibilities, being committed to providing quality services to
our guests, actively participated in community construction, and
continued to seek opportunities in the future to help disadvantaged
groups, create a harmonious and comfortable working environment
and provide trainings for employees, making significant progresses
with them. Looking ahead, we continue to develop more projects,
adhere to the highest ethical standard, and explore talents. In the
meantime, we will be more active in reducing the environmental
impact from our business processes. We will continue to take
advice from different stakeholders, continuously improving
and balancing the relationship between society, environment
and business development, and implementing a sustainable
development.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding Company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group’s operations for the
Year by business activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 79 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the Year (2018: nil).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 192 of this
annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of acquisition of subsidiaries and disposal of subsidiaries
during the Year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2019
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 82 to 83 of this annual report and
in note 30 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to its shareholders comprised the share premium and
accumulated losses which in aggregate amounts to HK$102.98
million (2018: HK$122.72 million). Under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or dividends to its
shareholders subject to the provisions of its memorandum and
articles of association and provided that immediately following the
payment of distributions or dividends, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company'’s articles of association, dividends
shall be payable out of the profits or other reserves, including the
share premium account, of the Company.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Da (Co-Chairman)

Mr. Li Xianghong (Co-Chairman)

Mr. Chen Youhua (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Li Wai Hung

Mr. Wang Tong Tong

Mr. Hu Guoan (appointed on 9 April 2019)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Zhang Liqing (resigned on 9 April 2019)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Zhixiang

Ms. Wong Na Na

Ms. Feng Jibei

Mr. Chen Xier (@ppointed on 20 August 2018)

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed "Profiles of Directors” on
pages 19 to 21 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ and chief executive’'s interests and short
positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures

As at 30 June 2019, none of the Directors and the Chief Executives
had any other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the Directors, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

To the best knowledge of the Directors, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporation.
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Substantial Shareholders’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares

As at 30 June 2019, so far as is known to the Directors and the
Chief Executives, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO;, or who was directly or
indirectly, to be interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each of the
Company
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, no other person
or corporation has interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO; or, who was directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business, to which the Company or any of the
Company'’s subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year, and in which a Director had,
whether directly or indirectly, a material interest, nor there were
any other contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business between the Company or any of the Company’s
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

Share Options Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the then sole
shareholder of the Company on 20 April 2004, the Company
had adopted a share options scheme (the “2004 Share Options
Scheme”), pursuant to which the Board was authorised to grant
options to the eligible participants for the period of 10 years from
20 April 2004. The 2004 Share Options Scheme expired on 19 April
2014 and no further options can be granted pursuant to the 2004
Share Options Scheme. No options under the 2004 Share Options
Scheme are currently outstanding.

As the 2004 Share Options Scheme expired on 19 April 2014,
an ordinary resolution for the adoption of a new share options
scheme was passed by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 12 December
2014 (the "2014 AGM"), thereby allowing the Company to grant
options for subscription of up to a total of 533,250,233 shares of
the Company, representing 10% of the 5,332,502,338 shares of the
Ccompany in issue as at the date of the 2014 AGM. The new share
options scheme will enable the Company to reward and provide
incentives to, and strengthen the Group’s business relationship
with, the eligible participants who may contribute to the growth and
development of the Group. No options have been granted under the
new share options scheme as at the date of this announcement.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers combined
accounted for 95% of the total revenue of the Group and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for 42% of the
total revenue of the Group. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers combined accounted for 78% of the total purchases for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 23% of the total purchases for the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors, substantial shareholders,
and their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
had any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group or any conflicts of interest which
had or might have with the Group.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
UNDER RULE 17.50A (1) OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A (1) of the GEM Listing Rules, there are
no changes in information of the Directors since the date of
third quarterly report of the Company for the nine months ended
31 March 2019. There is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.05A (1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 22 to 35 of this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee with reference to their
merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the
Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

Report of the Directors
EEERE
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details of
the scheme are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report as required under the GEM Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited. The consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited. A resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board

Cai Da
Co-Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 September 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B M % B RS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

iAo
Shine‘ZO[ng

TO THE MEMBERS OF
SILK ROAD ENERGY SERVICES GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Silk Road
Energy Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
78 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
reguirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment test on coal mining services cash generating unit
REREBRERSELEEVRENR

Refer to notes 17 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

AREREXRER

REESNEXHE  BREZFA/YESE
BEAMRGAMBEREREFEENEH - B
ERELREAMBRRAMEEZERERKRE
FFEE MIEREFEEEFERER -

E2RHERE M RRM EI7EI9 -

The key audit matter
BREREREE

The coal mining services cash generating unit (“Coal Mining
Services CGU") consisted of certain property, plant and
equipment and customer contracts with carrying amounts
of HK$15,845,000 and HK$71,994,000 respectively as at
30 June 2019.
HRERARGEELELU(HBERERGERSEELSE
) BERZE-—AFENA=THEEESD 5 A15,845000
BT R719940008 THE TYE BERREREFE
O

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEEBERYEEZEBENS

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
reasonableness of the selection of valuation model,
adoption of key assumptions and input data by reference
to the historical information together with other external
available information. In particular, we have tested the
future cash flow forecast prepared by management on
whether it is agreed to the budget approved by the
directors of the Company and compared the budget with
actual results available up to the report date. We have
also evaluated the appropriateness of the assumptions,
including the future revenue, the future expenses and profit
margin, against latest market expectations.

EENBEZEFECBBR2ERLEN EREMINET]
FEHRIHEEEANEE  BEREBRINVEMARE A
HENEEE - LERE  EEELARBTEEMFRENRER
BenReEA BFHERFEG BRAREFHACZEEY
HEREESEBEREAMIEAESC ERERETL
Qo BENMA RIS ERRRER(BERKEE -

ARAZEMBR)NEE K -
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Impairment test on coal mining services cash generating unit (Continued)

BEARBRBERSELECRENRE)

The key audit matter (Continued)
BREREXEE(E)

We have identified the impairment assessment of the Coal
Mining Services CGU as a key audit matter because of
its significance to the consolidated financial statements
and because determination of the recoverable amount
of the relevant cash generating unit required significant
management judgement and assumptions made for the
profit and cash flow forecasts.
ZEEREBRARRERSELEECMNREN I AHE
REREFR RAAHUGAMBBRRAGEEEE Bl
NETHBARSEASU 2NN BEFLEAERE
BHERERFNEBSRERANRE

How the matter was addressed in our audit Continued)
EEEERPTEBEZSBENGTE(E)

We have also assessed the discount rate employed in
the calculation of value-in-use by reviewing its basis of
calculation and comparing its input data to market sources.
EENEBENEGE EERGH B A SR ET ISR
LEBART BT HEEAEEMEKABZMERE -

As any changes in these assumptions and input to valuation
model may result in significant financial impact, we have
tested management’s sensitivity analysis in relation to the
key inputs to the impairment assessment which included
changes in future revenue and expenses.
ZEBBZAAERANGARBENES N GESLE KRN
BrE EECHFEREEAMAMENHNERE AR
BEERKREGEAXNEE)NBEEREIN -
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Valuation of trade receivables
B2 RWKENSE

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
BEL2HEAY B RERM 22 -

The key audit matter
HRERSEE

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was HK$70,445,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$10,362,000.
RZE-—NFERNA=TH BEH5ERFENEDEAS
70,445,000 7T (F0 B R &t (8 E51810,362,0007% 7T) ©

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on
expected credit losses (“ECL"), which is estimated by taking
into account the credit loss experience and forward-looking
information including both current and forecast general
economic conditions.
BEORKHKBREREDREEREESB(EREE
BEDAE MERGCGEEENLCEREEEEBRLRK
BREARIEN -REBERAEANNRELEERmED
5t -

We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a key
audit matter because the impairment assessment of trade
receivables involved a significant degree of management
judgement and may be subject to management bias.

$EE 5 M IR B0 L (5 34 B A IR LT+ 3 T
FEBBEMFEMLE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEEERDPEEZEENE Z

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s ECL model on
impairment assessment of trade receivables.
EENEZETFEENME ESEEREEEEEXY
B 5 [ W AR IR R E ATl B R AR Ko I -

We have assessed the reasonableness of management’s
estimates for impairment allowance by examining
the information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information.
EERAEEEEERARTEREEAEGNERFGLER
B REREELNGET 2B  BEARELED
HEMNERE FHELEAEZEEREBEBELBENRR
ETHERABYAEBAELHER -

We have also inspected cash received from debtors after
year end relating to trade receivables balance as at 30 June
2019 on a sample basis.
BEMAEREBEE_ S - NEFEANAA=ZTANEBE SRR IEL
BRERFREBEBARDOR @ ELHEBRSE
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Valuation of loan receivables
PE W & SRS {4 (B

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
BE2HEAU B HRAM E23 -

The key audit matter
HRERSEE

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of loan receivables
was HK$177,122,000, net of accumulated impairment loss
of HK$7%O 000.

AZE-NFARAZTH - BRERWREE/S177,122,000
78 7T (F0Bx 2 51 R (B 18 187,960,000/ 7T) ©

We have identified the valuation of loan receivables as a
key audit matter in view of the significance of the carrying
amount of loan receivables to the consolidated financial
statements and there is significant degree of management
judgement involved in assessing the ECL model, based on
the historical credit loss experience and forward-looking
information including both current and forecast general
economic conditions.
EREWEFEHESGEUBERENEZNL - &
MEBEEROEEH#RR REREZEIE - %mﬂfﬁf
85 18 A5 B To B0 95 IR B I TR ORI — AR AT AR L T 0 B RITRE M
B A EEHCEEREEARIRENEEEHE -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEEERDPEEZEENS Z

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s ECL model on
impairment assessment of loan receivables.
TENEZEFEETN ESEEHEEFEENY
JE W B TR B 7T 1k B R AR K H B e

We have obtained an understanding of methodology
for ECL model through discussion with management
and an independent valuer. We have also assessed the
reasonableness of assumptions made by the management
and the key data inputs to the ECL model by reference
to the historical information together with other external
available information
ETEFRETEERB L HEMNS R STHREREE
BEERANTE BATHAEEEER2ERLERAR
HEmsnfrolAERAEENRILREREEEEREA D
ERBEBEEANSIENYE -

We have also inspected cash received from borrowers after
year end relating to loan receivables balance as at 30 June
2019 on a sample basis.
BEMAERBEE_T—LEFAA=THNERERGERY
REREZEBEBERARBDNER 2 ELEBERS -
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
iS necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company'’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Hon Kei, Anthony.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Hon Kei, Anthony
Practising Certificate Number: P05591

Hong Kong
20 September 2019
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consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEeElEER

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% F&T FAT
Revenue W 2= 6 316,760 298,164
Cost of services rendered 124 AR 75 5K AR (253,002) (238,142)
Gross profit = 7 63,758 60,022
Other income H Az A 8 19,843 14,036
Other losses H A 18 9 (CARY) (5,346)
Administrative and other operating THREMEES A
expenses (65,201) (64,711)
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR ZWE (EiE) 34 175 (1,016)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of LAl it HEREHER
available-for-sale investments BEEE 20 (1,897)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FtEUR— B & N a] FRIEE R
amount due from an associate 2 BIEBE 21 (6,000)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FLE 5 K HAth fE UGB fE R
trade and other receivables REEE 22 —
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FLIEW EFKER Z R IEE B
loan receivables 23 (4,109)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FEW%  BMERREERZ
property, plant and equipment BEEE 17 (12,900)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FEFAXER ZREEIE
customer contracts 19 (61,660)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  FLEEME R Z R (EE I8
goodwill 18 (1,739)
Finance costs A& KA 10 (7,063) (6,854)
Loss before taxation BREiRIE B (20,491) (92,174)
Income tax (expense) credit Frisf (A & 1 (9,051) 16,841
Loss for the year REEEE 12 (29,542) (75,333)
Loss for the year attributable to: IATA TG ARFEFIE:
— Owners of the Company — AREHEB A (29,989) (75,721)
— Non-controlling interests — FEERE R 447 388
(29,542) (75,333)
LOSS PER SHARE BRER 16
Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) EARR#E(GRBW) (1.10)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT TR

Loss for the year REFEIE (29,542) (75,333)

Other comprehensive (expense) income AEEHMEE X)) KE
for the year

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit H#EAseEFH DB EEB 2

or loss: HH :
Exchange differences on translating foreign MEBIINEBHEEZIER
operations =58 13,100
Reclassification of foreign currency translation reserve R HEEINEFE L EBIR 2 HNE
upon disposal of foreign operations BhERBEENSE 30
13,130
Fair value changes on available-for-sale investments AREEAHEERE 2 AFE
for the year # (1,897)
Reclassification adjustments of investments R EREREREIEE
revaluation reserve upon impairment of EhREELHCETSE
available-for-sale investments EEE 1,897
Other comprehensive (expense) income for the year A4 E4th 2w (B X ) W 2 13,130
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEEE2HBMRAX (62,203)
Total comprehensive (expense) income for the year A TATEMMARFEE 2MHEE
attributable to: (B 2) W 25 -
— Owners of the Company — KRBEEEA (47,991) (62,632)
— Non-controlling interests — RS 446 429
(47,545) (62,203)
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B AR O &R

As at 30 June 2019
RZZ-NFRA=TH

NOTES
B 5%
Non-current assets FEMEEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WERZE 17
Goodwill EES 18
Customer contracts BEFPAEH 19
Financial assets at fair value through other 1% A (B A H b 2 mEW
comprehensive income LEREE 20
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 20
Deferred tax assets Lf)fé HEE 28
Interests in associates NGy 21
Prepayments %Eﬁ ;IE 22
Current assets mMENEE
Trade, bills and other receivables BEoRMEIE BUREER
H h & W k1B 22
Loan receivables fE W E K 23
Amount due from an associate FE U — B & R EIR 21
Financial assets at fair value through profit %Em$§2$ﬁkﬁz
or loss/Held-for-trading investments CRMEE BFEEERE 24
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 25
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K Hth FE T 3K 26
Income tax payables FER P15 HE

Net current assets

2019
—E2-NEF
HK$'000
TER

26,687

71,994

11,108

10,322

120,111

173,857
177122
35,490

28,662
151,107

566,238

2018
—N\fF
HK$'000
TAET

135,640

219,329
162,542
43,000

24,087
170,805

619,763

81,497
9,932

91,429

528,334
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consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e M AR R &R

As at 30 June 2019
RZZ—NFRA=TH

2019 2018
—E-hF —F-N\F
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
iog=s FET FHET
Total assets less current liabilities EEBEBERADEE 617,383 663,974
Non-current liabilities IEREBERE
Promissory notes EHER 27 117,267 111,771
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 28 17,998 19,811
135,265 131,582
Net assets EEFE 482,118 532,392
Capital and reserves BARR
Share capital fi% A< 29 374,628 374,628
Reserves = 107,103 157,823
Equity attributable to owners RAFHEB ANEMLERS
of the Company 481,731 532,451
Non-controlling interests FE 1 e = 387 (59)
Total equity W 4R EE 482,118 532,392

The consolidated financial statements on pages 78 to 191 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
20 September 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Cai Da — Director
HERE —EBES

EEEN_T-NFLAZTHERERKESFETS
VMBEZEAUBHRR2TE  YHUTALIR

Mr. Chen Youhua — Director
BRERESE —ES
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREERKR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREEAERS
Foreign
currency
translation Other Non-
Share Share reserve reserve  Accumulated controlling
capital premium (note i) (note i) losses Total interests Total
EBRE
wE  EthREE
A& BRHEE (B 2%1) (W 5D ZEE B AF FERER G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET THT TET TET THT
At 1 July 2017 R-_F—+FtA—H 342,728 652,695 (29,998) — (401,444) 563,981 14,620 578,601
(Loss) profit for the year AFEE(EHE) & - — - - (75,721) (75,721) 388 (75,333)
Other comprehensive income (expense) R4 E E 2 & I % (B %)
for the year
Exchange differences on translating ~ #EBNEBLEZER
foreign operations =8 — — 13,059 — — 13,059 4 13,100
Reclassification of foreign currency REEENEBEER 2
translation reserve upon disposal SNEREREEN AR
of foreign operations — — 30 — — 30 — 30
Fair value changes on available-for- ~ AtHERE 2 A FE
sale investments 2 — — - (1,897) — (1,897) — (1,897)
Reclassification adjustments for HaHEEREZRE
impairment of available-for-sale fEl 2 EF D BAE
investments — — — 1,897 — 1,897 — 1,897
Total comprehensive expense (income) 7% £ 2 45 3 (Wi zf)
for the year — — 13,089 - (75,721) (62,632) 429 (62,203)
Issue of shares upon placing (note 29) B2 & B %17 B 17 (B £ 29) 31,900 — — — — 31,900 — 31,900
Direct expenses of placing (note 29)  EL& 2z E#& X (M 729 — (798) — — — (798) — (798)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 34) o B B A R (B E34) — — — — — — (15,108) (15,108)
At 30 June 2018 RZE-N\EXA=1+H 374,628 651,897 (16,909) - (477,165) 532,451 (59 532,392
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GERBEHR

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

At 1July 2018

Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9
(note 2)

Attributable to owners of the Company
AAREEAER

Foreign

currency
translation

Share
capital

Share
premium

reserve
(note i)

MEBRE

&S
HK$'000
TR

1% 17 % B
HK$'000
TER
R=ZT—-)\E+A—AH 374,628 651,897
BMEENERE LA
F9% 2 AR (M E2)

At 1 July 2018, as restated

(Loss) profit for the year
Other comprehensive (expense) income
for the year
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations
Reclassification of foreign currency
translation reserve upon disposal
of foreign operations

RZZE-\FtA-H"

RE7| 374,628 651,897
AEE(BR)ER
AEEEMEE G ) RE

BEBNEBEEL
EAEE

RHEENEBZERZ
IMEREREEN D E

Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year

reEeEL (R RE

Transfer

L33

At 30 June 2019

RZE-AFRA=TH 374,628 651,897

Notes:

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets or liabilities
of the Group's foreign operations from their functional currencies to the
Group's presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve. Such exchange difference accumulated in the foreign
currency translations reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss upon the
disposal of the foreign operations.

Other reserve includes (a) the investments revaluation reserve; and (b) the
safety fund. Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance
and the State Administration of Work Safety of the People’s Republic of China,
the Group’s subsidiary, SRZHMEERXTIREREE LA ("REEE
T#2"), which is engaged in provision of coal mining services is required to
set aside certain amount, which calculated based on certain percentage of
revenue, to a safety fund. The safety fund can be used for safety facilities
and environment improvement, and is not available for distribution to
shareholders. Upon incurring qualifying safety expenditure, an equivalent
amount should be transferred from the safety fund to accumulated losses.

=1
(B &)

HK$'000

TR

(16,909)

(16,909)

(17,969)

33)

(18,002)

(34,911)

Other
reserve
(note ii)

Non-
controlling
interests

Accumulated
losses Total

Hi i
(B i)
HK$'000
TER

R KGR
HK$'000
TET

a4t
HK$'000
FE7

FERESR
HK$'000
TR

HK$'000
TET

(477,165) 532,451 (59) 532,392

(2,729) (2,729) (2,729)

(479,894) 529,722 529,663

(29,989) (29,989) (29,542)

(17,969) (17,970)

(33) (33)

(29,989) (47,991) (47,545)

3,305 (3,305)

3,305 (513,188) 481,731 482,118

MEAEBEEIEBEEZEERABEFERRY
EEBRERAER 278 (AVBT) ZERLZ8T)
BEEREREMEERETHEBL N IINERERFET RS -
RARNIEREFRIAZSEAZRHNBEBINE

BEEREH S BEES -

=l
Bt

Hit#EEEQRAEAEGRFHR DX 2ES - REH
BAERhEARANBERZ2EEEEER2ARMRE
WETER  AEEN—RNBARSEAZHHRLEE
ETRERAEEAR(REWETRR] AR ERHR
BHERRE) AR EESTRBRE —ELAINRETE
METEHE ZEXEESUARNT 2R LRRWE
ATADRTER RELEARNREIHE  FED
HEEAZ2ESHBRERMER -
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consolidated Statement of Cash

REBRERER

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Bz

TE-AERAZTRLEFE

Flows

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest income on bank deposits
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation

(Gain) loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Fair value changes on financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss/held-
for-trading investments

Government grants received

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of available-for-sale investments

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of amount due from an associate

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of customer contracts

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of goodwill

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of trade and other receivables

Impairment loss recognised in respect
of loan receivables

mEEE

NOTE
P

B B Al B 18

FE:
RITFRZF BHA
B & kAR
PrEE s
HEMB AR (W)
(=t 34
CHREREATEARY
TRMEE,/HIEEE
BEZAFEEZE
2 W BT 48 B
HEME  BMEKL
RiEEE
RAEHERERER
WEEE
LA — B & AR FRIE
R RmEEIE
M%% BEREEER
2 B E 8
MEFAHNERZBE
&5 18
MEAEERZRERRE
B S KH M E WA
R 2 A B
DLEWE KR 2 R E
&5 18

Operating cash flows before movements

in working capital
Decrease (increase) in trade, bills and
other receivables

(Increase) decrease in loan receivables

Increase in financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss/held-for-trading
investments

(Decrease) increase in trade and
other payables

lllllll SBHZEERS

i
my S e
SmMWNw

FEU IR - FEUR
TR A B
LA (B hn)

FE W B R (38 hn) Ok 2
KERFRRAFEARZ
TREE/FHEESH

RE

B 5 N A BKIR

OBl 2) 3 AN

Cash generated from operations

REZPAERE

2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
TR

(20,491)

(531)
7,063
27,921

(175)
9,131

(12,994)

2,438

14,777
(26,126)

(8,254)

(14,459)

1,172

2018
—N\fF
HK$'000
TAT

(92,174)

(369)
6,854
28,635
1,016

5,346
(10,406)

1,897
6,000
12,900
61,660

1,739

4,109

27,207

(22,191)
22,039

4,718)
3,398

25,735
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consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERE

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF ZT-N\F
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
B = TER FAET

OPERATING ACTIVITIES IR E
Cash generated from operations KEFHMERS 1,172 25,735
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEENGEH (474) (225)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BERNPEMCEMEH (15,002) (9,900)

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING e EE) (FTR) TSR & %5

ACTIVITIES (14,304) 15,610
INVESTING ACTIVITIES wKEEH
Purchase of property, plant and BEYWE BENMEB
equipment (19,379) (8,524)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BMELRERES
and equipment RIE 3,905 —
Bank interest received BEUERITHE 531 369
Net cash inflows from disposal of HENBARZEER
subsidiaries F R 34 180 16,269
Repayments from an associate e E AT 2B — 12,500
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING KEEFE (A FFEHR /%58
ACTIVITIES (14,763) 20,614
FINANCING ACTIVITIES B & E B
Government grants received B2 U Bk KT 485 B 12,994 10,406
Interest paid B F & (1,381)
Proceeds from placing shares of the NAR 2 RERMFTEKIE
Company 31,900
Direct expenses of placing EsEERAX (798)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEESREFE 40,127
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Consolidated Statement

REBRERER

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

of Cash Flows

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

2019
—E-hF
HK$’'000
FERT
ReMReFEWORLD)EINFE
(17,640)
FONRELREFED
170,805
EXBHTE

(2,058)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF
THE YEAR, represented by bank balances
and cash

FRANRE LIRS FEY  ARTHER
NB & KRR

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000
TET

76,351

91,279

3175

170,805
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE_ZT-NFEA=THIFE

GENERAL

Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, and its shares are listed on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"). Other than those subsidiaries
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “"PRC")
whose functional currencies are Renminbi (“‘RMB”), the
functional currency of the Company and other subsidiaries is
HKS.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(s)")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first time,
the following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA").

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and related Amendments
K (IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to  Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 4 with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to  As part of Annual Improvements to
HKAS 28 HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to  Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40

—BER

BB RRGEBAERAR (AR ITIIR
BEREBEERAREZNHAEHEREMAKLA
ERPBEREERAT  UEREBRNDHREHE
ERGFBRAR(E ZFﬁJ)GEMJ:m PN
NAZaMBREE R EEE MBIt
WERAARFERIARER]—F -

ARRA—HREZRAR  EXEZHER
BZEBENGA B MRMEEIT -

RAEMBRRZBT(EBTDEY - BESD
FEARAMBE(HEDKIZZEHE LT
ZHREEBER/RARBTARKEDSN - KART]
REMMBARZIEEERET -

ERHMATREETEBMBRSE
ZA(TEBMBREERD D

EA$¢F AEBEEERERATE L&
B o (BB SR RE]) T RM AT &
RETBEMHHREER -

BEEMBHREEY SRMIA

F95%
BEEMBREEN KERFFAOMUE
£155 FABERT

R (BRMBERE IERXZREBEMKE
nBZEg) -»E

F225%

EEUBHREEDN UROAERMXZN
F2RZEFT A RHpZDBREE
BEEMBHHREEY RAFTEVHHREER
FARZEFR FARRBRADOE—

HEBEEUBERE

HAEIRERTA
B GRTERIFE2R BEMBHRE LR

ZABETR —E-MEFE
“E-RFRHZ
FENESH
BEtRAIFI0N BEREDE
ZL.:TK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ET

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
and HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
have been summarised below. The application of other new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material effect on the Group’s financial performance
and position for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it applies
to all revenue arising from contracts with customers, unless
those contracts are in the scope of other standards. The
new standard established a five-step model for determining
whether, how much and when revenue is recognised. The
Group has elected to adopt the modified retrospective
approach for contracts with customers that are not
completed as at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 July 2018)
with the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 15 as
an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
and comparative information is not restated. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue.

The Group's accounting policies for its revenue streams are
disclosed in detail in note 3 below.

The impact of transition to HKFRS 15 was insignificant on the
accumulated losses at 1 July 2018.

The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have material impact on
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the current
year and the consolidated statement of financial position
at 30 June 2019, by comparing the amounts reported under
HKAS 18 and related interpretations that were in effect before
the change. The adoption of HKFRS 15 did not have material
impact on the Group's operating, investing and financing cash
flows.

FERMIREETEEY B RS
ZA(TEBMBREED D)

RMBELVHREENERD M TANE
B REERNFBISHA G HEF & #87K
@R ERRINT - RAFEEBEMAET
REEIEAMBRELALEHARNEH
REFERBEFE 2UBRAERMA KR,/
HZEFEAMBEHRRAMB W ET KM
BEARE-

ERVBBEENEISERBEEEFSHON
iy &

EAREVBREERNERMATELEGAHE
AIENREZRE LA - BAE S ERIF18RHL
mLAEARE YTERARERPANESL
MBS RIFZFANBREMERN DN
HE - FENET-EAREZRA - UEEZ
B ZLEMEEARE - AREDEEH
RERERBBHEIZZ-N\ELA—H)H
ATERNEPANRMEETEWE - AR
JEREBMBREERBEI1SHRH R ZER
SIS R B S IV SRR EE EYEE
FILL AR - Bt - AR BRERREE
BB EAE R U RE  ETHLREHN
RUAFLOE -

7 55 7 0 L M8 SRR 2 B R R
BRTXHES -

BEEEEBVBBRESEEGRY TN
FLA-HRABENFELTEKR -

BRALBREBEBEBGAERNERELES
RIDERZHBREMER 22 RAE
BB REENFEISR Y BHAFEHFSRE
BRARR-ZF-NFAA=ZTBHZHEEHM
BRNKBREATE - RNE B R
SEAFSFABEAEELE  RENE
BEHREREBREATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to
the recognition, classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities, derecognition of financial
instruments, impairment of financial assets and hedge
accounting. The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
financial instruments that have not been derecognised at the
date of initial application (i.e. 1 July 2018) in accordance with
the transition provisions under HKFRS 9, and chosen not to
restate comparative information. Differences in the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities on initial
application are recognised in accumulated losses as at 1 July
2018.

The Group’s accounting policies for the classification and
measurement of financial instruments and the impairment of
financial assets are disclosed in detail in note 3 below.

(i)  Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

The directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the Group's existing financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 1 July 2018 based on the facts and
circumstances that existed at that date and concluded
that the initial application of HKFRS 9 has had the
following impact on the Group's financial assets as
regards their classification and measurement:

Listed equity investments previously classified as
available-for-sale ("AFS”) investments carried at fair
value

For AFS equity investments amounting to HK$5,452,000
carried at fair value, the Group has not elected the
option for designation at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and reclassified
them to financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL") upon its initial application of HKFRS 9.
The Group measures them at fair value at the end of
subsequent reporting periods with fair value gains or
losses to be recognised in profit or loss.

FERMIREETEEY B RS
ZA(TEBMBREED D)

ERVMBEREEAFEINEMIA

BEEUBRELERFEIRMAEE LR
FIFHEX HEEeREER SR AER
RDERGE - ERTAKLIER /8
BEREMRAPEFEE -AKBERIE
EEMBREERNEIRIE T BIEGRY
BERXEREBHEI—_Z-N\FELA-RHRK
RIEANSRTEEPERTEMBR
SREAFEOT - MAL MEEREINLLBEHR -
REXERKEREERERBGEREE
ZENEREN T N\FLA-RBZRFHE
BPER -

AEESRTASEMTERSREER
ENSTBRRFBRERTXMES -

(i) ZBTAWDERE

ARREZERER-_F-NFLA
—BEENSERBRAEHEFMER
SEREANBEEREERSMA
B UBHEw BXEATEMB
BELMNFIFUAEE I ERMEEL
DREAEBANTRE:

IE B 7 8 75 1 B S R 9 BT (R
(ARG ERER L TKARE

REAFEIEOIHEERAEZE
54520008 L mE AEBEWERE
RERE BB RELLFIREBIRIE
BERAFEFAEM 2 EWE (1R
AFEFAEM2EREDREHE
HOBABEEZERAFTEAER(E
BaERRAFEARNDZEBMEE -
AEBREEREHARZATETE
FE  WEREBERRRAFAEKZ X
B8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ET

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(M)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Unlisted equity investments previously classified as AFS
investments carried at cost less impairment

For the unlisted equity investments carried at cost
less impairment, the Group has elected for designation
at FVTOCI upon its initial application of HKFRS 9. The
Group measures them at fair value at the end of
subsequent reporting periods with fair value gains
or losses to be recognised as other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the other reserve, which
will not be reclassified to profit or loss when they
are derecognised. As at 1 July 2018, upon the initial
application of HKFRS 9, the fair value of the unlisted
equity investments approximate to their carrying
values.

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”)

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the Group’s
accounting for impairment losses for financial assets
by replacing HKAS 39's incurred loss model with a
forward-looking ECL approach. As at 1 July 2018, the
directors of the Company reviewed and assessed
the Group’s existing financial assets subject to ECL
for impairment using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or
effort in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS 9.

As at 1 July 2018, an additional allowance on the
Group’s trade receivables of HK$3,638,000 has
been recognised, thereby increasing the opening
accumulated losses of HK$2,729,000, net of their related
deferred tax impact of HK$909,000.

FERMIREETEEY B RS
ZA(TEBMBREED D)

ERMBBEELERNFEIREMTAE)

(i)

(i)

EHITRT BRI E (&)

FEHI S BRI R ERE R IE LR
AR & 1z /5% A5 6 18 51 AR

AR X ASRURE P R BO 3F BT IR AN IR
AMs AEECREXREREEY
B|EEFIRBERREERQTFE
FAAHMEE R E - AEBE R EERR
THREAFEAENS  BHERAR
HitzmREH A FERGAKEEL
EEMEREPRE  MERFRILE
RAESITEHOBELABRRZ -R_F—
NFLtA—B BRERBEEVBR
SFERNFIREK  FLEMBEARENR
FEEHEEKEEMES -

ARGEEER(BAEEER])HE
BREE

BN AR R HE E BB ERK
B ENEIRZCELEFER
A MERRBEM B RELNFIRE
NEAREGEREEREBRZE
ARIE - RZE—\F+LA—H AR
AEFCREFEMBMEEREHR
ZHRE AXERBEBERARES
MAlERzABABEBEXHNER
ERLFEAEEEYEREEER
ZHRAEEMEERTOHME -

RZZE—NFLtA—R HAEEE
5 e W 3% 18 #E 72.3,638,00078 T K 5B
SNBEE RS B R E5 1B
2,729,000/ 7T » $0 Bk E HH B R IE 7 8
£ ££909,0005% T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE_ZT-NFEA=THIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and

FERMIREETEEY B RS
ZA(TEBMBREED D)

ERMBBEEERNFEIREMTAE)

(iii) BEXEREEBUBERELERFEIREL
ZHEME

TEREBAR-F—NFLA—ARH

measurement of financial assets upon adoption of BBV BRERIRENSREEND
HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018. HMEaEtE -
Carrying Carrying
amount at Adoption of Adoption of amount as at
30 June HKFRS 9 - HKFRS 9 - 1 July
2018  Reclassification ~Remeasurement 2018
R-Z-NF RREBHE RAEBEE R-Z-N\F
AAZTAZ  BEEHSIN- REEAFIR- tA-A2
BHE EFSE EfiitE BEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL THEL TEL
AFS investments fHERE
— Listed equity investments — LWRARE 5,452 (5,452) — —
— Unlisted equity investments — FETMRARE — - - -
Held-for-trading investments HEEERA
— Listed equity investments — ETRARE 24,087 (24,087) — —
Financial assets at BREREAFENE
FVTPL LEREE
— Listed equity investments — FARAKE — 29,539 — 29,539
Financial assets at FVTOCI BATESAEM2ENRE
— Unlisted equity investments — FETMRARE - — - -
Loan and receivable (under HKAS 39/ ER R EKFEREERS
At amortised cost (under HKFRS 9) SiHERI539%),/
BRERA(RER S
B RELEREIR)
— Trade, bills and other receivables ~— — Z 5 EKFIE -
EREER
H it IR 219,329 - (3,638) 215,691
— Amount due from an associate — Féﬂﬁl B 5%%:’&
I 43,000 — — 43,000
Except for the above, all the other financial assets and Br ExCRriai &SN - BAEM B HREER

financial liabilities within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
continued to be classified and measured on the same
basis as they were under HKAS 39.

FORBEANFBEMBEREERS
MEBEREERERBETEGTER
FIVHFHMRA—REETORERGE -
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii) Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The table below summarises the impact of transition to
HKFRS 9 on accumulated losses at 1 July 2018.

FERMIREETEEY B RS
ZA(TEBMBREED D)

ERMBBEELERNFEIREMTAE)

(iii) BXEREENBEREEREINEL
ZRHEBE(E)

TRELBEEETEVERELE
OMB —_E-N\FLtA-BNRFEE
WEE -

Accumulated

losses

2 B8R

HK$'000

FAET

Balance as at 30 June 2018 as originally stated R-Z—NEXA=F+HZ&E& (R]) (477,165)

Recognition of additional ECL BARAEINEMEEEE (3,638)

Tax impact MIEF & 909
Balance as at 1 July 2018 as restated RZE—-N\FEA—Bz#&#®

(E5) (479,894)

There were no financial assets or financial liabilities
which the Group had previously designated as at FVTPL
under HKAS 39 that were subject to reclassification
or which the Group has elected to reclassify upon the
application of HKFRS 9.

WaEAREBMERBRESEGTERE
VWIETACEIREELAFEARYZ
CREESCRABEENHE X
AEBCEEREREBUBREE
BISEOSREEFH LR -
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

FERMIREETEEY B RS
ZA(TEBMBREED D)

CEMGEEMRER ZHTRSETETEY
% 3 & 2 A

AEBYERFEATIECEMERRE
M2HAI REERTEEMBREEIRR

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9
Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKAS 19
Amendments to
HKAS 28
Amendments to
HKFRSs

Leases'

Insurance Contracts?

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Definition of a Business*

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015—
2017 Cycle'

BEMBREENZGE HE
BEMBREEANZETRE  RRAKS
FE(ARMBRERE FEHRENTRENR
ZE8)-REFBH
EREMBREEANEIR . FHLER

EHEN

ERMBREEANEN . BAFEBUREHE
LN

BRMBREENE0RL
R Ey v
LHEN

BB GBS RER
ERELIELTPA RN

BEGHERE0RE L
LN

BB G ERIS28% 2
LHEN

BREMBHREEN BT

REEEEBENTRAE
PRZEZEEHED
iy

EAZER?

A BRAAE

RBEATRAELEY
RgER

BANBRL LN -_Z-1F
FIEtERHER
i

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

2w N -

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except
as described below, the application of other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.

KB —A—BREBES 2 BN -

KRB —F—A—HAERRABZFEHRRER
HUBRAR T -_ZF A AxERABZE
BEFEHRZEBAHREERBER -

2w N o

S O REEEMRERFARZFERHER -

BT ES  ARREFETERAEMIET
REETEAEVBEREEN KIS H AR
BzXERMBERAERNERTE
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in
the financial statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces
a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset
has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which
consists of the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability, plus any lease payments made to the lessor at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received, the initial estimate of restoration costs and any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured by
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payment made, and remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect
revised in-substance fixed lease payments. Depreciation and
impairment expenses, if any, on the right-of-use asset will be
charged to profit or loss following the requirements of HKAS
16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while interest accrual on
lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17 Leases. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account
for those two types of leases differently.

FERMIREETEEY B RS
ZA(TEBMBREED D)

CHEMGEHRER ZHTREETTEY
BREER(E)

EEUBHEERFEIEHE

BB B AR B E 169 5 T E 25 5
REZE WA R AT A BT 5 35 % 0 i g 52

RftEARA -

A ARFRIETAMS - ZERISIAE
—ABAGHENX  REAHARRZME
HEHRAREAALZEENMAE  KE
ERBEERRI -

AR A AR E R s B 8 i AN R A
REE BREEREBEZVGESE M
Fta BEIsk Z Al A AEH 2 ERA SN
FooOREAERHEHEREARABRAEL
ZNFEEHEER A RE RO EREAAR -
HERBVNFREBRNHEN R ZRERE

e

Hig  EREEEIRKAB AR
EREMRBERENE  YRBAERE
ERMEHRFEMELAR HERBHER
ETHE RAENEEEARRESERE
ZhEE RO BRAEARREELE 2HER
AR EHFEREEARBREAEM-KE
ERFTARMREEITEEBTE 2HEMNK
EREEEZMERBERM(NE) KR
RBBGAEUNERYF BELKRELZ
RERBEAK MEEREZN S B
ERBETART -

REEASHERDEMS - BEVBRE
HERIE16E AR LREBE G EANFE7HR
HERHHBAGHRENEZHRE -
B HEAEBEBEERESDRAKERE
SMEMRE  YAUMEHELETTIRZE
TR IR o
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is effective for the Group’s annual periods
beginning on 1 July 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the
Group plans to use the practical expedient to grandfather
the previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are, or contain, leases. The Group will therefore apply the
new definition of a lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
are entered into on or after the date of initial application.
In addition, the Group plans to elect the practical expedient
for not applying the new accounting model to short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group plans to
elect to use the modified retrospective approach for the
adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to the opening
balance of accumulated losses, where appropriate, and will
not restate comparative information. As at 30 June 2019, the
Group has non-cancellable operating lease commitments
of HK$3,762,000 as disclosed in note 35. The Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in
respect of all these leases unless they qualify for low value
or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In
addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in the measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited ("GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services.

FERMIREETEEY B RS
ZA(TEBMBREED D)

CEMGEEMRER ZHTRSETETEY
BREER(E)

BEEMBHMEER F16% H & (F)

EAVBRELEBFICHER - NELA
— BB ZAEBEFEHMER - WEBH
EIWREERFEI6RAT A - AEBEEIER
ATHEEAFERECBENREE LA (R
SHENTH AEESEMBEBNH
HEEBHRFHFTEETE  EARE
BREABHKZEITINEL - 1 - &
EEFEEENTEEAETEBH 5
BERARECHHEXNEEELENTEE -
EEAHEEEFEALBINENEIENE
B ISR EXERE165E - WS R E R E A
MR EERRNBEBVAS (WWER)
MAZ HEERBTTEY - S
BHEE RZE—hLhEXA=Z+B &%
B 5 1~ AT HU8H 48 & T & HE 3,762,000 7T °
AEEBHMEZSHERRERAEEE
LIEEAE HEREASBWHEHREER
FOREBEEEINETHHEENRI - 1t
S ERFRTEREEEGE 2V REER
HIR EXFTii e e -

FTEEHRE

RAMBHRRERETESIMASHEM
BBV B REENRER - I REFH
BREEETBH AR I AARAFGCEME 7
£ R BI(TGEM L 48 BY 1) K & 78 22 8] & )
FiT 35 € B B E B FR o

HMATEFARRABEE RETERT
BERAFEFEIN SRV BHRRIRIE
B2 RAE#REL -

B s AR — R AR B R R B
HRE2 AT EHE -
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). If a subsidiary prepares
its financial statements using accounting policies other than
those adopted in the consolidated financial statements
for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that subsidiary’s
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group's
returns.

The Group reassess whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

3.

FESHEHE®)

AP ERRFERRERETRTITME2
BEZHE-—BAZZEKEN MSETE
BERXHHEEERRRSHEBRABR X
NzEBHEREVFEER) THR%ZERESD
EABRIERS - ABEXRMER - AR
RFEFAENFBER T XAEN SR
PR

TESAHBOREIMT o

RAaRBEEE

FEMBRRBBARBTRZAREE K
BEMBAR) MM BRE - HHBA
ARBEVBRRFEAGRBELUERT
MBRUR S RERRE GG B 7% WK T A
BT BEIINGHERE  BARZH B
RAMBEEGAVHREREIFLEEHE -
UEREREEN SRR B

o 3%

\;

AREBMRATERTEGZEGE: ()BT
BIREHR (N2 EREHREHEF
B = BAEREN  R(iDESHERHE
HREHRHENZELAEBNERSE

WEFRRBRET R EHEE RS T
~EXSEEEFEEY AAEERSE
FHGEETHREHREGRER -

REBERESHBERARZEHREEHBAR
REARR  WRKRENBARES BRZ L
N

MEBARZWARMAX  REASEESE
HEEAREAEEREMBAREEE
BiE StAKZABERA -

96 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited

HIBBEERIRIEEE AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date
when control is lost; (i) derecognises the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost (including any components of
other comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, with
any resulting difference being recognised as a gain or loss
in profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets and liabilities (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (on or after
1 July 2018) or HKAS 39 Ffinancial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement (before 1 July 2018) or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate
or a joint venture.

3.

FESHHE®)

RERBEEE)

f B8 2 B 48 2 M Ho i 2 T W a2 & 4B AR
DHEBTARREAANEEREE - B
RAZ2EBRERBETARETHEEARIE
RS RSP RS D
BB AL ERIRR o

WRASEBTERRRS MARENRE
BENAE #zm WA AXKERERE
BREARERZEEH -

FEEREENBLAEERZEE

MAEEREMBAT 2 ZHE - Hl)IEK
EEHRERNBAR ZREER LERE
BEERBREMHE)REE  (NRLEER

EVEHIEE B AT E A BE A IR H 1
sMEAEERREFEEEMCE2E K ED
EAED) - R(i)fER S WRERFERE
MEREBEEAFEMNER EENEMAE
BHERRAREREESNAER ° WM&
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (the “CGU”") (or
groups of CGU) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control of those policies.

FESHEHE®)

o
I

EBEHMELRBRERANR R RES
BMA) I -

LREREAMS  BEEHEEAKEEY
AXBRAHZIMAREZEREELEN
(ReELBLDERSEELFEMAR) -

BOoRBBZRcELBUEEFINAT

WMERS - AN R EMEETRBRES
BEMS  BEOoEBE2ReELEUER
BEHEEERZAETRERNR - MRS
ELXEM RO BEREREE B
EE B G %D PATR % B AL PT & D B E
MEEz&EEE  ERIRBZEVLAZTA
BEZEREERLASEZZEML ZEM
BE TAREZREBREERERR
BR - mEZEERAREBETSNERS
R E -

HEHBRESELABEUMBEELERES
B STAMERESRE -
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SERE -

98 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited

HIBBEERIRIEEE AR AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE_ZT-NFEA=THIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group’s investments in associates are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. Under the equity method, interests in associates
are initially recognised at cost. The Group's share of the
profit or loss and changes in the other comprehensive
income of the associates are recognised in profit or loss and
other comprehensive income respectively after the date of
acquisition. If the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, which
determined using the equity method together with any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

If an associate uses accounting policies other than those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made to make the
associate’'s accounting policies conform to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by the
Group in applying the equity method.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s losses (if any), the Group determines whether
it is necessary to recognise any additional impairment
loss with respect to its investment in the associate. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the investment in the associate. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated
financial statements to the extent of unrelated investors’
interests in the associate. The Group’s share in the
associate’s gains or losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Policy applicable to the year ended 30 June 2019 (with
application of HKFRS 15)

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those services. Specifically, the Group uses a
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

o Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services
underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a service (or a bundle of
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct services that
are substantially same.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy applicable to the year ended 30 June 2019 (with
application of HKFRS 15) (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o The Group's performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created
and enhanced; or

o The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on

behalf of third parties and sales related taxes.

The Group recognised revenue from the following major
sources:

o Provision of coal production and technical services

o Provision of heating supply services

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy applicable to the year ended 30 June 2019 (with
application of HKFRS 15) (Continued)

Provision of coal production and technical services

Provision of coal mining services mainly includes the provision
of coal production and excavation works to coal mines.
Provision of coal mining service income is recognised when
the Group renders the services and all of the benefits are
received and consumed simultaneously by the customer
throughout the contract period. Thus, the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises revenue over time.

Provision of heating supply services

Heating supply services mainly include transformation of
coal-fired heating systems and provision of heating to the
customers. Supply of heat is recognised at the time when the
heat is transmitted.

Policy applicable to the year ended 30 June 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for services rendered in the normal
course of business, net of sales related taxes.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Policy applicable to the year ended 30 June 2018
(Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’'s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HEZZ-NFA=THILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as prepaid lease payments
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of foreign currency translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs and termination benefits

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

FESHEHE®)

EHMEEREAN(E)

BEFBAIELRFE  FREBBRZERE
MR IR AR AR - LA R E
ZRBMANZ RBERBEAN S REREE -

Bi 18

PSR SR 18 2 B R Y B TR MO FE 7R IR
M AR -

EHIRMNREZFARRBGENAE - AR
B E A 8 SR 3 R AN A B U A 2R
NXEBETABEKTRBHINEZEA -
ERBGM B ABERAEHRZF AT
EETR AREREHHBENOEETS
URBREHRESEMIARE LCBAENB
RtHE -

BEREHRBADNRBGEMBREPEERE
18 B 8% T (B 52 1 &t 35 JB AR 50 B /O 4R 18
MEZENEREZRER - —RANME
ERVERZREAERLEHREME - BT
MBEEE—RERAEARRY G HA
HREREZREHEE M ATIRY
RERER - WEREZRDREBMERRE
TRERRAV RN XN EGENZHHZHM
BENMABZVZERBREHEHIN - A
ZERTEEENABBEITHER -

106 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
e RIRGEEER AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019

HE-_Z-NFNA=1HILFE
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EgHREX )
(Continued)
Taxation (Continued) HEE)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary HERBEARREERRIRERHZERT

differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there
will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply of services,
or for administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment 10ss.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on
a prospective basis (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand.

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash as defined above.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at FVTPL) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets
are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured
at amortised cost, FVTOCI and FVTPL. The classification of
financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group's
business model for managing them.

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

J the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are subject
to impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are credit-
impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) excluding ECL, through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for
any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for debt instruments measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial assets other than purchased or
originated credit-impaired financial assets, interest income
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset.
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e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the Group recognises interest income by applying the credit
adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from initial recognition. The calculation does
not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the
financial asset subsequently improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included
in the “Interest income” (note 6) and “Other income” (note 8).

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation
at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held
for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the other reserve. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE_ZT-NFEA=THIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL. Specifically, investments in equity instruments are
classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an equity
investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent
consideration arising from a business combination as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a
financial guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not
part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the “Other
losses” line item. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 33.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HEZZ-NFA=THILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk if (i) the
financial instrument has a low risk of default; (i) the borrower
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term; and (iii) adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but
will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil
its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group considers
a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has
external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with
the globally understood definition or if an external rating is
not available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

o when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower,

o a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

o it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. As for the exposure at default, for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to
12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets
for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE_ZT-NFEA=THIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

AN equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

All the Group's financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of
an acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or
(i) designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter
period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9 (applicable on or after 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Under HKFRS 39 (applicable before 1 July 2018)

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the
following categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, AFS
financial assets and loans and receivables. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included
in net gains or losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 39 (applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
change in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets and
is included in the other losses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 33.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 39 (applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as AFS or are not classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
The Group designated investments in unlisted equity
securities as AFS financial assets on initial recognition of
those items.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as
AFS financial assets and are traded in an active market are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of other reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the other
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade, bills and other receivables,
loan receivables, amount due from an associate and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 39 (applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets,
impairment could include:

objective evidence of

J significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and bills receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

FESHHE®)

E¢RMIAEE)

REBEEEBETEREIOR(R=F-NFL
A—HEIEA)(E)

EHEE(BE)

TRMEEZHERBRE
TREE(KBERRAFEARERINRK
EREPRFIGERETR - WEREER
‘}J*FEE%’ BRBEE-BRZHEEIHEMERAR

ERERAEREEZHFARRERE
RAFE REBMEERR/LIREE -

AL ERAIRENS  ZRKEQFE
ZREBR AL RERERDEREXAE  #
ERBEZEBER -

A HMLEREENS
B

CREZEBER

s  BITAAXRZHTFE
%

DIBRE SN E:

o  EXN - PlmAaMKRIERIMFEHA
SN

s ERABRHRENENETHMBER:
&

e HRYBRHE ZEMEEXREER
M5

o

A TRz RE E (WE 5 - KA R

EBWREB)ME X ARFERERBEZE
ENEREEEEETREN G - BUEK

HEAGREZEBERAREAREBER
MK HEANTENREBBTIHEER
HARR R UL 0~ BIR Skod 75 A EAR R H 3R
B R EWRIBHREZAREL -

Annual Report 2019
20194 )

123



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 39 (applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods (see the
accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade, bills and other receivables, loan
receivables and amount due from an associate, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade,
bills and other receivable or loan receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit and loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 39 (applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequently
to an impairment loss is recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

The Group's financial liabilities are classified into other
financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and promissory notes are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form as integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

FESHHE®)

E¢RMIAEE)

REBEEEBETEREIOR(R=F-NFL
A—HEIEA)(E)

EHEE(BE)

EREEZRERBEGE)

A ERAKREMS @ AR B S E
REOBMEBEISEBEaBE - RERER

ﬁ&mﬁﬁ FEEEEENEMEZEK
ST ERERNEMEHEF R

EHEERKATA

%l*m%%ﬁZﬁ%&%KIﬂﬁﬁﬁ
EBHRRBERNTURERAERRATARAZE
%E“ﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁik$

AEEZERABEDHELSEMLERARE -

Hi @A

Hip SR AEEEE S & H b & 508 Kk
REE  HREBBERMRR IR EHK AN

o

BB X

ERMEEDAESB BB Z#IHEKR AR D
FEABEHENER 2T - BBEMNEXTS
RemAaB R FHICER 2B EHRE
RN FERE G RRBEE MR (BEE
RERENETAHREBD 2 —ENRER
BRAMNEXEZE KXSHRAREMEESRT
B)EBEBEEREFEINEK -

iﬂgsﬂi]—ﬁi gﬁ%’%J—v—/fﬁEwu ©

Annual Report 2019
20194 )

125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ET

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 39 (applicable before 1 July 2018)
(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
COsts.

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retain interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in other reserve is
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives (other than goodwill set out in
the accounting policy of goodwill above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment 10ss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or the CGU) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately in profit or loss.
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HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the value in use
of the Group's goodwill, property, plant and equipment
and customer contracts for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability
at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value
measurements into three levels, based on the characteristics
of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair
value measurement.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses
reported and disclosures made in the consolidated financial
statements. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Ownership of buildings

Despite the Group has paid the full purchase consideration as
detailed in note 17, certificates of ownership of the Group's
certain buildings were not yet granted from the relevant
government authorities. Despite the fact that the Group has
not obtained the certificates of ownership, the directors of
the Company determine to recognise these land and buildings
on the ground that they expect the certificates of ownership
being obtained in the future should have no major difficulties
and the Group is in substance controlling these buildings. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the absence of
formal title to these buildings does not impair the value of
the relevant assets to the Group.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continuead)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment on coal mining services cash
generating unit

The Group's coal mining services CGU consists of goodwill,
customer contracts and certain property, plant and
equipment. In determining whether there is any impairment
loss of the coal mining services CGU, management estimated
the recoverable amount of the CGU based on the value-in-
use calculation. The value-in-use calculation is prepared by an
independent professional valuer based on the management'’s
assumptions and estimates taking into account the existing
business plan and other strategic business development.
These calculations require the use of estimates such as the
future revenue, expenses and discount rates.

As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill
is nil. An impairment loss of HK$1,739,000 was recognised on
goodwill during the year ended 30 June 2018 (2019: nil).

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amounts of related
property, plant and equipment are HK$15,845,000 (2018:
HK$18,659,000). An impairment loss of HK$12,900,000 (2019:
nil) was recognised on property, plant and equipment during
the year ended 30 June 2018.

As at 30 June 2019, the carrying amount of customer
contracts is HK$71,994,000 (2018: HK$89,177,000). An
impairment loss of HK$61,660,000 (2019: nil) was recognised
on customer contracts during the year ended 30 June 2018.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continuead)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of trade receivables, loan receivables and
amount due from an associate

Starting from 1 July 2018, the impairment provisions for
trade receivables, loan receivables and amount due from
an associate are based on assumptions about ECL. The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the number of days that an individual receivable is
outstanding as well as the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, existing market conditions and forward-looking
information at the end of the reporting period. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect
the result of the assessment and it may be necessary to
make additional impairment charge to profit or loss. As at
30 June 2019, the carrying amounts of trade receivables,
loan receivables and amount due from an associate were
HK$70,445,000 (1 July 2018: HK$116,424,000), HK$177,122,000
(1 July 2018: HK$162,542,000) and HK$35,490,000 (1 July
2018: HK$43,000,000) respectively, net of accumulated
impairment losses of trade receivables, loan receivables and
amount due from an associate of HK$10,362,000 (1 July 2018:
HK$3,638,000), HK$7,960,000 (1 July 2018: HK$15,918,000) and
HK$133,510,000 (1 July 2018: HK$126,000,000) respectively.
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5.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (which
includes promissory notes net of cash and cash equivalents)
and equity attributable to owners of the Company (comprising
issued share capital and reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
reguirements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues
and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

EXERER

NEBMEBREER UBRAEE 2 EEG
BREESEERE W RBBESRMIRATF
GBIl BRHNETREERR A£EZ
BESEETFERETE -

AEBZERGEREEBEHFREBRE A
AERCHERERASFEY) RARF]
BFEARIGERE(BREBEITRARFER)

AEEBAEHTAINIERIEREN

ARREZERMABERGEE - FARFH
PR ARAEEERZTHEAZEALK
ARNEEER - ERARBESREZHES
BROAKBKEBIRMNKE - BITHRG
KRB A RBEITHEHSIBERIRAE
% FEERBENERS -
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HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on services rendered, net
of sales related taxes, where applicable. An analysis of the
Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

i =

W AR RIS FTEE 2 W (BEMKEE
EEHRE EB) AEBRAFE 2K
E=OWT

2018*
2 N\F
HK$'000
FET
Revenue from contracts with customers R B & & Bf 75 3 & 2 B 581558
within the scope of HKFRS 15 FEAZHEZREHZWE
— Provision of coal production and —REEREER
technical services 17 14 AR 7% 273,133
— Provision of heating supply services — R RE 6,268
279,401
Revenue from other source KB E A R 2 W m=
— Interest income from money lending  — MEEHK 2T B A
business 16,873 18,763
316,760 298,164
* The amounts for the year ended 30 June 2018 were recognised in * HE_T - \FAAZTHALFEZCEREE
HKAS 18. S AR B18HE AR -
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HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

6. REVENUE (continued)

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue
from contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15:

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE_Z-AFA=THLFE

Revenue from services: KE RS2 :
Provision of coal production and REEREER

technical services B4 M AR 7%

Provision of heating supply services 12 R AR 7

Revenue from the geographical market: & & 3 35 i 35 #) d 25

The PRC B

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered
or provided. The CODM have chosen to organise the Group
around differences in products and services. No operating
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

o Coal mining services — Provision of coal mine construction
engineering, mechanical equipment installation and
coal production and technical services

o Money lending — Provision of money lending services
in Hong Kong and the PRC

o Heating supply services — Provision of heating supply
services

U2

AT AREREFT ARG REERE15
FHREANZEREPEN WA

(ofo ]| Heating
mining supply
services services
o8 4ok
PR 7% fit B2 AR 7%
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T & T

294,252 299,887

RERSEEFEDBERAEMAARFES
(MEFEERRE(EARLEERRED)Z
HBOER - KERRARNE @S PTRHERS
WER  -EREERREREEETRE
MM RBcERBAERAER - EREAE
B A 2mo B BREERKRERZ

REDHRUEIES -

LHEZ REFEVHREENER - K

KEZAZ2HRMEENENT:

e HKBRARRBE -RHEKBEBERTRE -
PG R 18 2 B DA I R IR A E e IR 1
AR 75

s ME-REAMTHREHKERS

e EBAOHERY - REHEBRNHERS
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenues and
results by reportable and operating segments.

Coal mining services T B B AR 7%
Money lending WM&

Segment revenues
72 B i

294,252
16,873

316,760 298,164

Heating supply services Bt AR

Total et

Other income Ha g A

Other losses Hn &8

Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries 1 &M B A 7l 2 Uz
(1)

Impairment loss recognised in respect & & U — R B & A B 308
of amount due from an associate BRZHEESE
Impairment loss recognised in respect At HE R EER

of AFS investments VEREN SR
Finance costs A KA
Central administrative costs PR ITER S
Loss before taxation Bt A E B

The accounting policies of the operating segments are same
as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment results represent the profit (loss) incurred by each
segment without allocation of certain other income, other
losses, gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries, impairment
losses recognised in respect of AFS investments and
amount due from an associate, finance costs and central
administrative costs. This is the measure reported to the
directors of the Company for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

TEER @)
SENERLE
NTAREEZTLS®MRECLHE K%
MEE DN -

Segment results

2019 2018 2019 2018
BN T \F
HK$'000
T

N T )\F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TER TET

273133 6,624 (69,033)

18,763 4,625 8,472

5,635 6,268 6,064 4,294

17,313

1,166
(CARY))
175

(7,510)

(7,063)
(15,441)

(20,491)

LEDBZEBREAFHNK Iz AEE
SETERRMER - 2 EEXRESEDBAE
EZaEM(ER)  XYARDEETEMBEA
HEE  HENBAR ZWaE (JES?E) “5h
AHHERE R EKR A E QERRE
R BIEREE - Eﬂ%ﬁﬁRZlK&EP%ﬁIBZEﬁSE
HHERTARBAEFTUABEDSEE IR KT
mRR2FTA -
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HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by reportable and operating segment.

TEER @)
SEEERAE

BA2RLREEesBEIZAEBEER

BEIITWT -

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAET
Segment assets THEE
Coal mining services BB R R 268,132 310,746
Money lending BE 178,488 163,097
Heating supply services O e RS 10,346 14,133
Total segment assets BOBEE 456,966 487,976
Unallocated Fal 229,383 267,427
Consolidated assets RAEEE 686,349 755,403
Segment liabilities SEEE
Coal mining services R B R IR 7% 59,181 77,725
Money lending W& 494 142
Heating supply services e RS 1,633 122
Total segment liabilities woEBaE 61,308 77,989
Unallocated ROE 142,923 145,022
Consolidated liabilities REeEBE 204,231 223,011

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

RERIBERAERIESBREZER:

allocating resources between segments:

—  All assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated assets (mainly comprising certain
property, plant and equipment, deferred tax assets,
interests in associates, financial assets at FVTOCI,
financial assets at FVTPL, AFS investments, held-for-
trading investments, amount due from an associate
and certain other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents). Goodwill is allocated to coal mining
services segment as described in note 18; and

— Al liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than unallocated liabilities (mainly comprising deferred
tax liabilities, income tax payables, promissory notes
and certain other payables).

BADPEBEE(ZEBRERETYE
MEN®ZE BRERBEEE N
NRAIZKERD  BAFEFAREMEZE
WamzeMEE KERRRATE
ARZEREE AIHEERE 7
FEERE R —HEE QR %A
RETHMERRFELRRE MRESF
EBYS FBEEASKETAZHD
1o R D B = 18T I B BT
IR D8 &

BRARODPEAB(ZZERHREERER
& EBRAEH AELEBRRETH
N RIB) S - FTBEREDDETE

PUWaNE T
=08 e
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

Amounts included in the
measure of segment profit
or loss or segment assets

Depreciation and amortisation

Additions to non-current assets
(note)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of trade and other
receivables

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of loan receivables

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of property, plant and
equipment

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of customer contracts

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill

FASEEES
PREEHEL
&8

REREH

REFRBEE
()

HENE HER
By

AEHREBERUHNE
BRAZREER

AEREHER L
HEBR

AnE - BERRE
BRZREER

REFRNBAL
HEBR

ABERDZHE
B

Amounts regularly provided
to the CODM but not
included in the measure of
segment profit or loss or
segment assets

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of AFS investments

Bank interest income

Finance costs

EHRERERRR
ERM{ERHA
PREHADE
KEHEZER

AARHERE
ERZAEBE

RITHERA

BARA

Note:
assets.

Coal mining
services
KRR RES

2019
—E-NE
HK$'000
FHRT

24,374

26,244

2,317

2018
—2N\F
HK$'000
TR

26,307

3,612

Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax

7. oEER®

Money lending Heating supply services

ik 1 HERE
2019 2018 2019 2018
S5l - BEEEY -T-)\F
HK$'000 HKS'000 [GTEIV HK$'000

TR TR TR TR

Unallocated
KAE

2019
—E-NE
HK$'000

FHRT

2018
—2N\F
HK$'000
TR

1897
(57)
6,419

Total

@t
2019 2018
RN —T—)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FaR
27,921 28,635
30,289 5872
2,438 -
9,223 -
6,139 4,109
12,900
61,660
1,739
1,897
(369
6,854

M FERBDEETEESRIANECHESE -

)
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HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

7.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. EER®

Geographical information ih & & R

The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the AEEZKEDUREBRPEH -

PRC.

The Group's revenue from external customers is presented AEBEBRBIINBEPZ M= HIELEE S
based on the location of the operation. Information about e BARNSKEIERBEEZERNTIKE
the Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the EffEtEE7] -

geographical locations of the assets.

Hong Kong The PRC Consolidated
BB i L)
2019 2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NF e - 2Ed T \F i — T —\F
HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000 HK'000
THET THET FHET TET TET

Revenue from external KEINFEFE 2
customers g 310,169 290,863 316,760 298,164

Non-current assets ERBEE (M)

(note) 108,625 118,161 109,003 118,724
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax Mad: ERBHEETRECRIAREEHBEE -
assets.
Information about major customers EBEEEEFNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HEBAAEBRAKZEI0%Z KRERFE Z WS
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as REBEENT:
follows:

2019 2018

—E-AE —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHET

Customer A’ BPEA 131,743 115,014
Customer B’ EFEB 94,180 79,666

customer C' ZEEC 63,537 62,964

1 Revenue from coal mining services segment ! RERBERERS S B2 W
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10.

OTHER INCOME

Interest income on bank deposits IRITF KA B A

Government grants (note) BT #7 B (B 3%
Leasing income from machinery IR TN
Sundry income B A

HAib i A

2018
—E-NF
HK$'000
F# I

369
10,406
1,538
1,723

14,036

Note: For the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019, the amounts represent
unconditional grants from the government for subsiding the operation
of a subsidiary in the PRC.

OTHER LOSSES

Fair value changes on financial assets at
FVTPL/held-for-trading investments
L RNFEEE

RBDSEEAFEARZ
CREE/FHEEERE

Wi BE-F\FR-F-AFSASTALTE -
% B IR T B R 0 — R 9 B
) 4 D -

HibiE5 18
2018
—E-N\F

HK$'000
THETT

5,346

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on discounted bills B EBRFNERX
Imputed interest on promissory notes

(note 27) (K 5E27)

AARBZEENE

. BB R A

2018
—E-)N\EF
HK$'000
TAET

435

6,419

6,854
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HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

M. EHAXER)

Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH
Current year KFEE
Over-provision in prior year TFBERE
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR RSN
Current year KFE
Under-provision in prior year TEREBEIR
Deferred tax (note 28): i E B 18 (P 5228) -
Current year KEF

(1,201)

PALY

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profits for both years.

Subsidiaries operating in the PRC are subject to PRC

Enterprise Income Tax at 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHT

114

114

7175

7175

(24,130)

(16,847)

& 7B NS B 1 W (B 5 Z A 4 5T R AL A

HE16.5%EE -

RB(RFERERBHIX) - PEMBEQIRR

R 18 4 2 8 1) % R 7325% o

Hi AR AR IBERIEA WL AAE

BERTHERFE -
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BE-Z-NFRA=tTHLFE

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continues)  11. P18 Bi B = (& )#)

The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be AFERE GRS (BE) BiRiaBnke
reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated BRMAIBEZHEHERENAT
statement of profit or loss as follows:
2018
—N\F
HK$'000
FHEIT
Loss before taxation B 7 A B 18 (92,174)
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% &% /& ) 15 7 £16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) —Z -\ :16.5%)
FrERTIE (15,209)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax HBZRHEWRANHREZE
purpose (1,733)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for BEMM T HA R &
tax purpose 4,125
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERB B EBENUBZE 3,185
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised BRARER TG EE (1,733)
Under-provision in prior year TFEREIR —
Effect of different tax rates of the group REBUINEEE R EL FELE
entities operating in jurisdictions other BERETRAMENTE
than Hong Kong (5,476)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year ARNEEFEHRE (K R) (16,841)
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after
charging:

Employee benefits expenses:
Directors’ emoluments (note 13)
Other staffs’ salaries and allowances
Other staffs’ retirement benefits scheme
contributions
Other staffs’ welfare

12. XEEEE

REEBESHRTIHER :

BERAMMAX:
EE=M e (MEE13)
HMBTHE MERE
Hfth 8 TR KAE FIFH B3R

H fth 8§ T 4& 7

Total employee benefits expenses

BERNAEMX

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation and amortisation

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises and machineries

12 BB B
FENEH
HEME  BERREZER

HERAERKEZKEHE
&

4,936
217,989

9,203
4,089

236,217

1,350
27,921

2,438

4,186

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHT

4,864
204,775

9,084
2,275

220,998

1,300
28,635

2,666
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 11 (2018:
12) directors and the chief executive officer (“CEQ") were as

follows:

Year ended 30 June 2019

A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of
director’s other services
in connection with the
management of the
affairs of the Company
and its subsidiary
undertakings
Salaries and allowances
Contributions to
retirement benefit
schemes

(BEXR) RREXLE

13. EERTHRARME

SEHENZEMNMB(CE-NF 12R)E
ERTHRAH(THRAFE DM T

Mr. Hu
Mr. Li Mr. Wang Guoan
(CEO) Wai Hung Tong Tong (note (iii))

HEZLE

(WaED) (W& (THAR) ZRBEE TRBEXE (&) A%

Mr. Li
Mr. Cai  Xianghong
Da (Co- (Co-
chairman)  chairman)
(note i) (note (ii))
BEEZRE ZFOBEE
(BEEXE)
BZ2-Z-NEXA=1H HK$'000 HK$'000
tFEE TR TER
A) HITES:
AEERHEHER
ARAIRENE
NEEBEBMN
H o BR 5 i )
INFER 2B S
Fe ke 1,040 1,000

RN R B

Sub-total emoluments

W&/ hat 1,040 1,000

Year ended 30 June 2019

B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Emoluments paid or receivable in
respect of a person’s services as a

director
Fees

LFE
B) FHUTEE:

e

BE-Z-NE~A=1+H

AZALHEEESM
DESINEY Inpd kA

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR Tigx TR TR

Mr. Zhang

Liging
(note (iv)) Total

REERE
(Bt &£ (iv) &t
HK$°'000 HK$'000
TET THET
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HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 13. EERTHARZME
OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Mr. Chen
Mr. Wang Ms. Wong  Ms. Feng Xier
Zhixiang Na Na Jibei (note (v)) Total
BRA R &
ITEEEE IHBat BHEL: (B =E (V) &%
Year ended 30 June 2019 BE-Z-hEXA=1H HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
LFE FTER FEx FTEx FTER FEx

C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BUFHTES:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Emoluments paid or receivable in ~ HZATEITES

respect of a person’s services PSR
as a director BNz
Fees we
Total emoluments HH e
Mr. Zhou,
Mr. Li Francis
Xianghong Bingrong
Mr. Cai Da (Vice Mr. Chen Mr. Liu (Vice Mr.Hu M. Wang
(Chairman) ~ Chairman) Youhua Mr. L Baoyu  Chairman) Zhixiong  Tong Tong
(note i) (note (ii)) (CEO) ~ WaiHung  (note (viil))  (note (vi))  (note (viii)  (note (vi) Total
BiERE FRABELE EKBEE
(k) (BIxR) RREXE AREEE  (BIER) WEEEE IRBEAE
(raEa) R (Grm@eH) Zewis (W) (W) i) i) Ch
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-E-N\EXA=tH  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tEE TEL FEL TET TiEL TEL TEL TEL FEL T
A) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: A) BTES:
Emoluments paid or receivable REZREEER
in respect of director's other KRR REKE
services in connection with AREHEEN
the management of the Eth R mmE
affairs of the Company and SRRERZ
its subsidiary undertakings e
Salaries and allowances HeRzEH 1,040 258 1,300 317 148 757 591 184 4,595
Contributions to retirement RIREF A
benefit schemes #K — — — 16 — 1 — — 27
Sub-total emoluments G 1,040 258 1,300 333 148 768 591 184 4,622
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 13. EERITTHEAZEMN S »)
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Mr. Zhang
Liging
(note (iv)) Total
REELAE
(B 5 (iv)) &5
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-Z-N\FXB=+H HK$'000 HK$'000
IEEE FAET TFHET
B) NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: B) ¥HITES
Emoluments paid or receivable in Az ATEEESM
respect of a person’s services as a MESZMHHERZB &
director
Fees e 62 62

Mr. Wang  Ms. Wong Ms. Feng

Zhixiang Na Na Jibei Total
TEFEEE IPHt: BEEZT &5
Year ended 30 June 2018 HEZE=-ZE—N\EXA=1+H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“HFEE FAETT FET FAET FAETT
C) INDEPENDENT NON- C) BUIHTES:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Emoluments paid or Hiz ALEEES
receivable in respect of i A B 32 3k JE 2
a person’s services as a B &
director
Fees e 60 60 60 180
Total emoluments HE & 4,864
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HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

U]

(i)

Re-designated from the chairman of the Company to co-chairman of
the Company on 20 August 2018

Appointed as executive director and vice chairman of the Company
on 29 March 2018, appointed as co-chairman of the Company and
ceased to be vice chairman of the Company on 20 August 2018

Appointed on 9 April 2019

Appointed on 29 March 2018 and resigned on 9 April 2019

Appointed on 20 August 2018
Resigned on 22 January 2018

Appointed on 12 February 2018

Resigned on 12 February 2018

Mr. Chen Youhua acts as the CEO of the Company during both
years. His emoluments disclosed above include the services
rendered by him as the CEO.

No directors and the CEO waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during both years.

13. EERITHEAZEMN S »)

GEX

(if)

(vii)

(viii)

RZZE-NFNAZ+HBAARAE
NEBEE LR

RRERE

REB-NF=ZA-+NBEEZERARRAT
EERBEERE RZZE-N\FNA-T+THEZE
RARABEEIRERTBEEARREBEE
RZE-NENANEERE

RIB-NF=ZA_TNAEZELIR TN
FHANBREE

RZE-NFENA-THEZEE

R-E-N\F-AZ+HEE

R-ZE—N\E_A+-_HEZF

R-E-NE-A+-BEE

RAELAENMEFEANGEERARFITH
BE - BREXBEZHMEBREROET
BAAHRHRE 2ME

MEFEABRBEERITRAHMEXRF
BEMEEMAME -
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14.

15.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2018: three) were directors including the CEO of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the note 13.
The emoluments of the remaining two (2018: two) individuals
are as follows:

o kHAMET
R ARAE A ET 8

Salaries and other benefits
Contributions to retirement benefits
scheme

14.

BEMWE

AEBLfUGEMENA LS = (ZF
—NF =) RARAEF(BEARFIT
BB (REZWMES M E13KE) - T
MEUAT(ZE-NF WAL ZBME 0
T

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 7t %1,500,0007% 7T

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&E T FET
1,751 1,700
36 36
1,736
BEZMEmBHNEEDT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
2

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and employees) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
30 June 2019, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of the reporting period (2018: nil).

15.

MEFERN  AEBEY BREMEEHZE
aEEME AL (BREFRER) XM
BRI E I A SR E I AR & H 5 /Y 22 )
SEREREZMHE -

IR E
RBE-_ZT-AFAA=TALEER #
BN REBEINERE - BWMEHRUARTR

BRAXNEABRE(CZ-NF E)-
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. BRE#E
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share ARRHEEAEBEEREARARBEHIED
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the BUATEEEE

following data:

2018
—ZE-N\F
HK$'000
FAT
Loss &'
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted FEEFRERE# ZEIS
loss per share (for the year attributable TR Z EE(KRQA G HAE A
to owners of the Company) R ARFEEIE) (29,989) (75,721)
Number of Number of
shares shares
il 2 4=| R 4=
‘000 ‘000
T T &
Number of shares & e
Weighted average number of ordinary TEEREAREEEIR
shares for the purpose of basic and FIT AR 2 & i B O0 #E - 15 2
diluted loss per share 7,492,562 6,859,806
Diluted loss per share was the same as the basic loss per AREEZZT—\GFRZFE—NLF~A="T
share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares AEFESEETAEN BEE ST ER
outstanding during the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019. it GRESEREGRARNEEMRR -

148 Sik Road Energy Services Group Limited
e RIRGEEER AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRERMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ BERSXKE

Office
equipment,
Land and Plants and Leasehold furniture and Motor
buildings machineries improvements fixtures  vehicles Total
N
HAREE
THREF BEREE #1% #E nE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTHET FTET FET FTHET
Cost %
At 1 July 2017 RZZF—t&+A—H 3,438 52,994 51 1,322 872 58,677
Additions NE — 5,804 — 68 — 5,872
Exchange realignment fE 52 & 103 1,500 — 19 5 1,627
At 30 June 2018 and RZT—)\FXA=THEK
1 July 2018 “E-N\FtA—H 3,541 60,298 51 1,409 877 66,176
Additions NE — 18,843 93 188 843 19,967
Disposals e (265) (26,165) — (11) — (26,441)
Exchange realignment fE R (140) (2,354) ) (47) 172) (2,714)
At 30 June 2019 RZZE-NERA=TH 3,136 50,622 143 1,539 1,548 56,988
Accumulated depreciation R&tHiT & R E
and impairment
At 1 July 2017 RZE—tF+tA—H 398 12,472 10 1,095 142 14117
Impairment loss recognised ~ AFEEAZMERE
for the year — 12,900 — — — 12,900
Depreciation provided rEEHRZTE
for the year 221 8,825 10 115 182 9,353
Exchange realignment fE 5358 8 233 — 18 — 259
At 30 June 2018 and RZE-NFRA=ZTHK
1 July 2018 “E-N\FtA—H 627 34,430 20 1,228 324 36,629
Depreciation provided REFEZTE
for the year 199 13,641 14 81 259 14,194
Eliminated on disposals A 5 B ¥ 8 (45) (19,546) — (1) — (19,602)
Exchange realignment B 57 (27) (805) ) (47) (40) (920)
At 30 June 2019 RZZE-NERA=TH 754 27,720 33 1,251 543 30,301
Carrying amounts REE
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NFAA=+H 2,382 22902 110 288 1,005 26,687
At 30 June 2018 RZE-\FXA=1H 2914 25,868 31 181 553 29,547
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:

Land and buildings 5%

Plants and machineries 10%-20%

Leasehold improvements 5%—=20%

Office equipment, 20%—40%
furniture and fixtures

Motor vehicles 25%

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has not been granted the
certificates of ownership for certain buildings with carrying
values of HK$2,382,000 (2018: HK$$2,914,000) from the
relevant PRC government authorities. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the absence of formal title to
these properties does not impair their values to the Group
as the Group has paid in full purchase consideration of these
buildings and the probability of being evicted on the ground
of an absence of formal title is remote.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, an impairment loss of
HK$12,900,000 (2019: nil) was recognised in the profit and loss
which was allocated to coal mining services segment. Details
of the impairment assessment are set out in note 18.

17. W% BERXE®

A EWE  BERKBEERBZE TIFTEERIA
BEREABFERE:

TH RAEF 5%

R 55 B 1 2% 10%-20%

g 5%-20%

WAERAME 20%—40%
RENEEEE

T E 25%

RZZE—NFRNA=Z+H AEBEWEEH
Bl A BT S0P R T ER M {E 52,382,000/ 7T
(2 —N\F 29140008 )2 ETEFZ
FIEHE  -ARAEERE ARLAEEE
BEINEEZSEFCRERERBRLE
NERBAMBPEZOAEEER  BZSE
MERBREAEREZTAEEEHALEERN
EfE -

BE_ZT-)\FRA=THLFE &R
B R RE SRR E B 1R (0 B TR B R R R
7 #8) /12,900,000 T (ZF — N F: &) -
BRREF A FBHNM IS -
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

18. GOODWILL 18. B &
HK$'000
TFHET
Cost R AR
At 1 July 2017 RZE—tF+tH—H 1,655
Exchange realignment VE 5, 3 B 84
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZFE—NFANA=Z+BEEZZE—\F+H—H 1,739
Exchange realignment ME 5, 3 B (69)
At 30 June 2019 RZE—NFRXA=TH 1,670
Accumulated impairment losses ZEREEBE
At 1 July 2017 RZZE—+FEH—H —
Impairment loss recognised for the year & N R R E & 1B 1,739
At 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 RZE—NFAA=+H ZE—N\FLHA—H 1,739
Exchange realignment M H 3B (69)
At 30 June 2019 RZE—NFANA=1H 1,670
Carrying amount IREE
At 30 June 2019 RZE—NFANA=1H —
At 30 June 2018 RZE—NFA=1H —
As at 30 June 2018 and 2019, goodwill was allocated to the RZZE-NEFRZZE-NAFAA=TH B
Everbest Return Limited and its subsidiaries (“Everbest Return =B 5 ZEverbest Return Limited K £ i &

NAl([Everbest Return&E@E ) EFX &%=
REEEARERGER -

Group”) which are principally engaged in the provision of coal
mining services.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

18. GOODWILL (continuea) 18. BE(#)

Everbest Return Group

The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based
on a value-in-use calculation prepared by an independent
professional valuer who used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period, approved
by the management. The cash flows beyond the five-year
period were extrapolated using a steady growth rate at 3%
(2018: 2%). The cash flow projection is discounted at pre-tax
discount rate of 24% (2018. 24%) per annum which reflects
the specific risks relating to this CGU.

The growth rate was based on the relevant industry growth
rate forecast and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. The key assumptions for
the value-in-use calculation are those regarding the discount
rates, the budgeted revenue and budgeted expenses during
the forecast periods, which are determined by management
based on past performance and managements’ expectations
for the market development.

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the management of the
Group determines that there is no impairment on the CGU.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, an impairment loss of
HK$76,299,000 was recognised for the CGU as the recoverable
amount of the CGU was less than its carrying amount. The
impairment loss was allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of assets of the CGU in the following order:

(@  First, to reduce the carrying amount of goodwill of
HK$1,739,000 for the year ended 30 June 2018; and

(b)  Then, to reduce carrying amounts of property, plant and
equipment and customer contracts of HK$12,900,000
(as disclosed in note 17) and HK$61,660,000 (as
disclosed in note 19) respectively on pro rata basis
based on the carrying amounts of each asset in the
CGU.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group incurred
higher cost of mining services, mainly labour costs, as extra
labour was required for mining the agreed quantity of coal
mining owing to unfavourable mining conditions. As a result,
the gross margin of the CGU declined and the future cash flow
had been revised based on the management’s expectation
for the mining operations.

Everbest Return%

BeEABMN A RECRIZA—RBLE
EhEMVT2EREEFEREE  HEM
TREEREEFEH  AFHMA M BESR
AEZAERERRN RAFHRERNHE
ERERMAIBNBERERXEE(ZZ N
F:2%)  BHEeRERADRBEAMBRERE
F24% (ZF—)\F : 24%) Bh B - T Z Ah 3R &
RMEHEZEcELBUZEERAR -

ZIBREDREBEMBITREREXEBEANEE
BTBBHRETRIFARMERER - M
BEAEZHRBERSABREAME 2R
B BERGMEESHZER  Z5R
HRHEEERBATRALEEEH MIH %
RZBHMETE °

BE-T-AFAA=+BILFE ~EM
% I T MR AR R 7 A B

BHE_Z-)/\FRA=ZTHLEFE HEE
A B 2 T SRR (B & 18 276,299,000/ TT -
RERReELAFEMMHAIKD S HAENHE
BRTEME - BUE BB IR AT B 7 55 B AR 2>
ReELEUEENKREE:

@ H#HE BEZ-/\FRA=TBLF
ER A E R RE(E1,739,0008 7T : &

b ARE SRR EELABUNZTEE
FEEELLFRLDE BEREEZ
IR EE &E P A #12,900,000% 7T (40
Bt 5117 70 3% 58) }2.61,660,0005% 7T (40 B
EALLE SR

BE_T-\FRA=THILFE AEECZ
EEESSNRBERA(EEZRETRA)
e TS B A O BR R A 1 S BRIZ A E SRR
HEFRERIGH N - At - BEELFEM
MEMNEKFRD REEEEBHRENZE
BEH - WRKBESREETTER -
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

19. CUSTOMER CONTRACTS

19. EF &K

HK$'000
FAT

Cost R A
At 1 July 2017 RZE—+tF+HA—H 312,909
Exchange realignment ME 5, o B 9,411
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZZE-NFRA=1THE

—EZ-NE+A—H 322,320
Exchange realignment ME 5, o B (12,947)
At 30 June 2019 RZE—-NFRA=1H 309,373
Accumulated amortisation and impairment A #ERREESER

losses

At 1 July 2017 RZE—+tF+HA—H 148,058
Amortisation during the year NE [ H 19,282
Impairment loss recognised for the year FAERZBERSE 61,660
Exchange realignment bE o 7 & 4143
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZE—NFSNA=Z+BR

—E-NFtHA—H 233,143
Amortisation during the year REFEHE 13,727
Exchange realignment M 5, 38 & (9,497)
At 30 June 2019 RZE—-NFRA=1H 237,379
Carrying amounts IREE
At 30 June 2019 RZE—-NFRA=1H 71,994
At 30 June 2018 RZE-N\FRA=TH 89177

The customer contracts have finite useful lives and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 8-18 years.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, an impairment loss of
HK$61,660,000 (2019: nil) was recognised in the profit and
loss. Details of the impairment assessment are set out in note

18.

EFANABREEAEMAEN  WIRAEKER

BE1BFNHH -

HE-_Z-/\FRA=ZTHLFE KER
Bk 7 RO B 85 1561,660,00078 TT(ZF — 11
F ) o BERBFBEHIINMES -
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. ERRA¥F

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENTS
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong: REBLEMZBRAES:
AFS investments (note a) Al S & E (i Ea)
Unlisted equity securities: FELETRAE
AFS investments (note b) Al SR E (M FEDb)
At cost b DN
Impairment loss recognised PR ZBEEE
Financial assets at FVTOCI (note b) BAFEFAEM 2B S
ZemEE(MED
Notes: B 5
(@) The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on (a)

the quoted market bid prices available on the Stock Exchange.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, significant and prolonged decline
in the fair value of the securities below its cost was noted and an
impairment loss of HK$1,897,000 was recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

These investments were reclassified to financial assets at FVTPL (note
24) upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.

(b) The unlisted equity securities are issued by a private entity
incorporated in Hong Kong.

At 30 June 2018, they were measured at cost less impairment because
the range of reasonable fair value estimate was so significant that
the directors of the Company were of the opinion that their fair
values could not be measured reliably. The directors of the Company
had reviewed the carrying amounts of the unlisted equity securities,
accumulated impairment losses of HK$23,600,000 were recognised in
prior years in light of the operating loss of investee and the market
conditions.

These investments are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for
medium to long-term strategic purposes. Accordingly, the directors of
the Company have elected to designate these investments in equity
instruments as at FVTOCI upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 July 2018.
The fair values of these investments are closed to zero as at 30 June
2019.

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FET

5,452

N/A ~EA 23,600
N/A ~EA (23,600)

N/A A~ iE A

5,452

EABRAZBLSFNRXRFEDREXMAB LTS
BEAEBERE -

HE-T—/\EXA=ZTRHLEFE JFHEHAT
ERHRERNBTUREZENEKRAR  HItREZEEE
7 7% HE SRR (8 65 4811,897,0007% T °

ZERBEN-_ZF-NFLA-BRMABTEMBR
SRANFIORREM DB REEAREZAFTEA
Rz mEE FfaE2d) -

FLETRAB SR EBETMALOLAER
BAT °

RIFE-NFRA=THE ZEEFFBRREBEE
FHEE BWIYARABEATERENZBER
R BEARARRESERR AR FEBEASEH
AE-ARAERCEMIFLTRAEZESFNE
EE BENRRESSNEEBRET SN
M BEHREE 823,600,000/ TTE R BEFE
R -

ZERBEATHEEE  MIERATRABER
#eo Al RAREFER-_T-N\FLtHA—H
RMEBYBRELNEIRREEETALAZTR
ATARERBAFEFAEGEZER S - %%
BRERZZE-NFARA=ZTEZRATEERT -

154 Sik Road Energy Services Group Limited
e RIRGEEER AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE_ZT-NFEA=THIFE

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT DUE 21.

FROM AN ASSOCIATE

Cost of investment in unlisted associates
Share of post-acquisition losses and

other comprehensive expense =3
Dividend received B B
Dividend receivable (included as amount & W f% &

due from an associate) AR FIA)
Gain on deemed dilution in interest in RVEE E B 2

associates (note a) (FfF 3£ a)

KREFLMBE QAR ZKA
EHKBREREEMEZE

L(REAFE e — R B

INSIE: Pl 6

Amount due from an associate (note b)

Less:

FE U — BB A
(B 3ED)
impairment loss recognised

CIE

B

B DR ZRERER

Notes:

In prior years, Asset Management International Limited ("Asset
Management”) issued additional shares to an independent third
party, and received certain Hong Kong listed shares with value of
HK$40,000,000 as consideration. Immediately following the completion
of the issue, the Group's shareholding in Asset Management was
decreased to 30%. A gain on deemed dilution of HK$15,330,000 was
recognised in profit or loss in prior years.

The amounts due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and
expected to be recovered within one year from the end of the reporting
period. The associate has reported continuing losses and its future
profitability remains uncertain giving rise to an indication that the value
of amount due from an associate may be impaired. The directors of
the Company had performed impairment assessment on the amount
due from an associate during the year ended 30 June 2018. Had
considered the financial position and performance of its associate,
further impairment loss of HK$6,000,000 was recognised for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

Starting from 1 July 2018, the impairment provision for amount due
from an associate is based on assumptions about ECL. In determining
the ECL, the directors of the Company have taken into account the
historical default experience, the financial position of the associate
as well as the future prospects of the industry in which the associate
operates, considering various external sources of actual and forecast
economic information, as appropriate, in estimating the probability of
default.

2018

—E-N\F

HK$'000

Tt

316,134 316,134
(119,464) (119,464)
(43,000) (43,000)
(169,000) (169,000)
15,330 15,330
169,000 169,000
(133,510) (126,000)
35,490 43,000

B TS € - Asset Management International
Limited (TAsset Management]) A — & B F =
FETREINE G - I Y EE (40,000,000 7T &Y
ETEBLETRMHIERRE - BREITTAE -
N EE R Asset Management 2 B 5 4 £30% ©
RBEFE - R 1E#E 2 W £315,330,000% TR
BEANER -

FEW — MR AR FEREIER - %E&J’@ﬁﬁ
REEHRE —FAKE - BEATDHER
SEE - MERKRBEFENDTEE &f@(ﬁﬁﬂ
KERER B E QA IEZFﬂEﬂZAHjIEﬁ
B-BE_Z-N\FRA=ZTHLFE A2
B0 — B QRN IE%E%‘T?WEEHE
REBEBERRZHHMRARES B2
—NFRA=tHILFEE— *FEEE,M(),OOO,OOO/%
TUREE R

BZZE-N\FLtA—HE BR-EBEAIF K
HERRERBDEREBRACEEBERHER
REERHAEEBER  ARAEERGETED
BEEDARBEENER B E QR NMBR
ARBERFELTENRKR > UEED &
BERRIER L EE BN AR (2E A) o
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HEZZ-NFA=THILEE

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT DUE
FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continuead)

(b) (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, the directors of the Company estimated the
accumulated impairment loss of amount due from an associate being
HK$133,510,000 (1 July 2018: HK$126,000,000).

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant
assumptions made during the current reporting period in assessing
the loss allowance for amount due from an associate.

Movements in the impairment loss of amount due from an
associate (lifetime ECL — credit impaired) are as follows:

21.

RZB-AERNRA=Z+R  X2RAEEMHF
o —RBEARRENRGREBES
# /133,510,000 (=T —\F + A — A
126,000,000 7t) °

WARERA - FFEE RS E AR FIANEER
R A ERM s E KRR Iﬂi%ixft

U —BHERAR(ZHEREEER-F
ERE)FREZREERZHHEIWT :

At 1 July n+A—H
Impairment loss recognised BRZHMEEIE
At 30 June RANA=+H

2019 2018
—®-h% —2—N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHR FHT

126,000 120,000

7,510 6,000

133,510 126,000
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HE_ZT-NFEA=THIFE

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT DUE 21.

FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continuead)

As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, the Group has interest in the
following associate:

Principal
Form of Country of place of Class of

Name of Entity  entity incorporation operation shares held
EEER EERA AR S B R TELEE FEROER
Asset Management Incorporated  British Virgin Islands Hong Kong Ordinary

(the "BVI")
Asset Management & fif % 32 EEGMARES o Tmk

(EE#BARES]

The summarised financial information in respect of the
associates that is material to the Group and is accounted for
using equity method is set out below:

Asset Management and its subsidiaries

REEE DR 2R e —
ERFRIE)
RZE-—NERZZE-NFAAA=+H K
SERTIMERRTERER
Proportion
of ownership
interest or
participating Proportion of
shares held by voting power Principal
the Group held activities
EEEFRE
FERERS FisRERE
SERBAEIL Btk TEEH
30% (2018: 30%) 30% (2018: 30%) Investment
holding
30% 30% HAER

(Z2-NF:30%) (ZF—/\F:30%)

HBAEBEEERFEZBE AT (AEEZE
AWM BERBEZHSI T

Asset ManagementX H [ & 2 7

2019 2018
—E—REF —ZE—-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

35,477 58,051
(187,323) (187,869)

(151,846) (129,818)

Non-current assets FEREBEE
Current assets M EE
Current liabilities mBEE
Net liabilities FAIE
Revenue U %5

Year ended 30 Year ended 30
June 2019 June 2018
BE-Z LT REESRIaiN:S
~NA=1+8 NAZTH
LFE LEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

356 43

Loss and total comprehensive expense AEEBEREEARY

for the year

22,028 8,097
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES/AMOUNT DUE 21.

FROM AN ASSOCIATE (continued)
Asset Management and its subsidiaries (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information
to the carrying amount of the interests in the associates
recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

REE AR 2R FE W —

EARMIEE)
Asset Management & H M B A7 (&)

EXBBZHBEREESPHERRER
ZRBERRZEERMELRNAT

2019 2018
—B-NF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F&ET FAT
Net liabilities of associates BERNA 2 FaE (151,846) (129,818)
Net liabilities of the associates after RIOBREE & N F 2 IEE IR
deducting non-controlling interests 18 2 W E AR
of the associates, if any FERE(WA) (151,846) (129,818)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEEREE QT 2
interests in the associates mEEEZASL 30% 30%
Group's share of net assets of the AEEELEBERTEE
associates (note ¢) FEM -

Carrying amount of the Group's interests 7K £ @ /A B & A A) 2 4
in associates FREE

Note c:

The Group's share of net assets of the associates was zero as the Group has
stopped recognising its share of losses of associates in case the Group’s share
of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate when
applying the equity method. The unrecognised share of those associates, both
for the year and cumulatively, are set out below:

B sEcC

AEBELBERREEFERT  WIHRAEEE
FIEHERELEIEEEAREE U EEAERERA
‘%Iﬁffﬁ—ﬁﬂﬁéﬁfﬁﬁTZEE?E%EA&taEHEA FREAUN
Az - ZFHMERNRARBEREEBE(EFEARRE)
HHmT

2019 2018
—2-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TET

Unrecognised share of losses of associates for the year AREEREREEE 2 QR HE 6,608 2,429

Accumulated unrecognised share of losses of associates 2 &t 7k i 2 FE(H Bt & N A5 38 34,677 28,069
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. ESZEWRIE  BEREER HAt

FE W k18
30/6/2019 1/7/2018 30/6/2018
—E-hF —E-N\F —ZE-N\F
ANBA=tH +A—H NA=+H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FiBT FAET
Trade receivables Z 5 MW R TE 80,807 120,062 120,062
Less: allowance for impairment BB EWERERE
of trade receivables (10,362) (3,638) —
70,445 116,424 120,062
Bills receivables FE U = R 59,463 48,699 48,699
Receivables arising from dealing BELIMESFMELEZ
in listed securities JE W 3R IR 1,730 9,951 9,951
Other deposits paid HMefikse 19,884 36,902 36,902
Prepayments TE 5K IA 21,700 2,918 2,918
Other receivables, net of H b pe U FRIE - bR RE

allowance for impairment BE 10,957 797 797

184,179 215,691 219,329

Less: Prepayments classified as B HRIERBEEZ
non-current assets (Note) SCANE SN D) (10,322) — —

Current portion included in trade, &FAZESEUWZIE - FEU

bills and other receivables ZE R EAMEWRIE 2
mENE D 173,857 215,691 219,329

Note: The amount comprises lease prepayments on the Group's office Mt ZeBAERAEERAMERRERM 2EE
premise and mining machineries. TEf K8 -

As at 30 June 2019, the gross amount of trade receivables RZE-NFARA=TH BEFEHNELY

arising from contracts with customers amounting to Z 5 JE W 51 TA 4258 £80,807,0008 L (=& —

HK$80,807,000 (1 July 2018: HK$120,062,000). J\E+ H—H :120,062,000/% 7T) °

All the bills receivables are aged within 185 days. FrEEKERE 2RI TEBIBISSK o
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HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

FEWRIE (&)

22. ESRBFRE BREBRHEAM

The Group grants a credit period of 30 days to its customers.
No interest is charged on overdue trade receivables. The
following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
accumulated impairment loss, presented based on the invoice
date at the end of the reporting period:

AEBERTHEFPHBREN /30X - @1 H
MEZRKFIELTFE - RBEHR - &
BHREBZ2IZEZRKFIE - 2K EFR
EERZERESTNT

30/6/2019 1/7/2018 30/6/2018

—E-hF —Z=-N\F —E-N\F

~HA=1+H +H—H NA=Z1H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET FAT

0-30 days 0ZE30K 31,944 26,083 26,280
31-60 days 31E60K 23,914 39,849 40,359
61-90 days 61ZE90K 8,385 18,109 18,316
Over 90 days FBIBO0K 6,202 32,383 35,107
70,445 116,424 120,062

Starting from 1 July 2018, the Group measures the loss
allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. The ECL on trade receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and an analysis of the debtors’ current financial
positions adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.

As at 30 June 2019, debtors, which are well-known among
industries they operate, with long relationship and significant
outstanding balances with the Group were assessed for ECL
individually.

In respect of the remaining trade receivables, as they related
to a number of customers with common risk characteristics
and the Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group's
difference customer bases.

B-Z-N\FLtA-BE AEEREFH
2HEMEEERNS R EESEER
B EBERBE BHRUGKEANEREE
ERD2ZEBANBEEOCENLEE
B ANE R AR AT - (8 AR AR
i WRBEBANBERER  BEHALE
FIETEABKERAN RN RERRHE
AR R BRI R B A 2 FE A E L & -

RZF-NFERNA=1TH EXKEEER
HERLREEAHKREREHRNEBTAMR
WREMEETENR) IR AREEERE
1T 8 B &F 1 -

RBREFEENREEFPEEEREASEN
ELEEBRELR TRASEPHEH
ERANBRARAEBREEZR AHERE
BHMESERRBRERERE-—ZTEDT
REOEFEE -
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22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The following table provides information which is assessed

based on provision matrix:

W RIE (#)

22. ESRWFRE BREBRHEAM

TREHRREBEREGBREFGENER:

Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
hn #E 35
FEHEIER REAE 18 B B
% HK$'000 HK$'000
% FAT FAT
Individually and collectively &l Bl K &= 88 51 1
assessed
0-30 days 0£230XK 0.47% 32,096 152
31-60 days 31E260K 1.42% 24,258 345
61-90 days 61E90K 1.84% 8,543 157
Over 90 days HBI0K 61.02% 15,910 9,708
80,807 10,362
The movements in the allowance for impairment of trade oW BBRERE ZEHNT
receivables are set out below:
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2017 and 30 June 2018 RZE—+tFEH—HBEK
—E-N\FAA=1+H —
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 9 (note 2) RNE BB EEAFEIRA
28 (H:x2) 3,638
At 1 July 2018, as restated RZFE—NFLH—H &F75| 3,638
Impairment loss recognised R HEBRE 6,934
Exchange realignment ME 5, o (210)
At 30 June 2019 RZE-NFRA=TH 10,362
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HEZZ-NFA=THILEE

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s trade receivables neither
past due nor impaired of HK$26,280,000 mainly represented
sales made to recognised and creditworthy customers with
good repayment history. The Group regularly monitored the
credit quality of those customers, who trade on credit. Trade
receivables which were past due as at 30 June 2018 for which
the Group had not recognised an allowance for impairment
because there had not been a significant change in the
credit quality of the customers and the amounts were still
considered recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral
over these balances.

Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired

22. EZRWE

RIE - EWEERHM
EEH&,AIE(,@)

RZE—-NFXNA=1+H AEEESH
Wﬁmﬁmﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ%zmmm%ﬁv
TERERAEELHRRITIMNAREAERFE

FEHZIHE - $EIEWWN&PEM
RETBEEMNEFPZEEE X - BEHEIK
BHRZZE—)\FXNA=THE®H 1=
EHEYEYRERNED MERDNGEA
AURE - At A B R R R B R o R
EEWAMZSEHRITETES -

B 18 H {B 30 /% R {8 = B W ROE BR iR

2018

—N&E

HK$'000

FAT

Up to 90 days & Z90K 90,829
91-180 days 912180k 2,051
Over 180 days it #8180k 902
93,782

The movements in the allowance for impairment of other
deposits paid were as follows:

HppEMReZ RERGBESHHIIWT:

HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2017 RZZE—+F+HA—H 2,335
Amounts written off as uncollectible MEH B EE W B BE (2,335)

At 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 and 30 June 2019
— =

RZZE-N\FRA=1H"
—N\FtA—BK
—NEFERA=+H —
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—NERAZTHLEFE

HEZ
22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. EGEWE
(Continued) PE W SR8 ()
Age of receivables that are past due but not impaired CEHEYEEEZEKRR
(Continued)
The movements in the allowance for impairment of other H th & U 3k

23.

receivables were as follows:

RE - BRREBERHEA

KR ARk ()

HREBREZESHMT

HK$'000
FHEIT

At 1 July 2017, 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZE—tFtH—H" —N\F
ANA=THERERZE )\itﬂ =] —
Impairment loss recognised B R R E B 18 2,289
Exchange realignment b 5 38 & (21)
At 30 June 2019 —NFRA=1H 2,268

The Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

Unsecured loans ERBE R

Less: impairment losses recognised

- AR RE B 18

RSB I R h % 55 4 RIS B AR AR -

23. BRER

At 30 June 2019, loans to third parties with an aggregate
principal and accrued interest amounting to HK$177,122,000
(2018 HK$162,542,000) are unsecured, bear fixed interest
ranging from 5% to 20% (2018. 9.8% to 30%) per annum
and are repayable within one year and thus classified as
current assets. Loan receivables of HK$92,270,000 (2018:
HK$81,068,000) are guaranteed by guarantors.

The loan receivables are due for settlement at the date
specified in the respective loan agreements.

2019 2018

—F-hEF AN

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAT

185,082 178,460

(7.960) (15,918)

177,122 162,542
R-ZT-AFANA=TH " & #177122,000

&t (Z & — )\ 162,542,000 JT) & T
FEZHZERASNEFE BEKE -
% & FEMESSE20% (—F—)\F : 9.8%
230%tEREAR—FREE HoEA
W E)E FE - 92,270,000 T(Z 2 — )\ F:
81,068,000/87C) Z FEWEFREAERAER -

F& U E SR R B B Bt

BB o

8 < A HI 5 H8
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23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. ERERKw@)
Starting from 1 July 2018, in determining the ECL for loan E_Z—\GtA—HE RETEKRER
receivables, the directors of the Company have taken into MEHEEEER  AREEEEFALERL
account the historical data together with other external HERHEMINTATAER - WETHEU
available information and they are adjusted to reflect current REZEGCEREZHIRERAEEER -

and forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or RAHEA - FFHEKERNBEREEN
significant assumptions made during the current reporting HEFTKE RBRE W REEE L -

period in assessing the loss allowance for loan receivables.

Movements in the impairment loss of loan receivables are as BWER 2 BREFBEZBHEINNT
follows:

2019 2018

—B-NF —T-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

At 1 July ntHA—H 15,918 11,809
Impairment loss recognised during the RAEFEER 2 RERBRE -

year, net pEig=t 6,139 4,109

Amount written off #if 35 & 58 (13,984) —

Exchange alignment ME X 3 B (113) —

At 30 June RANA=+H 7,960 15,918

Lifetime

ECL —

12 month Lifetime credit-
ECL ECL impaired Total

2HBEHBE

12ERFEH 2HEHE EEE —
FEEE EEE FEERE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR

At 1 July 2018 RZFE—-—NF+H—H 1,934 — 13,984 15,918
Impairment loss recognised RAFEERER Z HMIE

during the vyear, net [Ei=EE | (352) 6,315 176 6,139
Amount written off i iE £ 58 — — (13,984) (13,984)
Exchange alignment ME 5, o B (72) (39) ) (113)
At 30 June 2019 RZZE—NFANA=1H 1,510 6,276 174 7960
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24.

25.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/HELD-FOR-
TRADING INVESTMENTS

Equity securities listed in REBLTMHRAES
Hong Kong, at market value EmiE

The fair values of these investments are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’'s bank balances carried
interest at rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.2% (2018: 0.01% to
1.2%) per annum.

Include in cash and cash equivalents are the following

amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities to which they relate:

United States dollars (“USD") Emx(ET))

2. CWHEBRATFEARZEBE
E/BEEERE

30/6/2019 1/7/2018 30/6/2018

—E—-hEF —E-N\F —E-NF

~NA=1+H +HA—H NA=1H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FiE T FET FET

29,539 24,087

25.

ZEREBEZAFEDZERRZTHEA

RERBAEEEY

R-E—NFRNA=1+8  REBEMRITE
SHIENT0.01%E1.2% (ZZF—)\F : 0.01% 2
1.2%) 2 F R EEH 8 o

ERAESMAESFEMATIAREEE
BEAZNIREEEBUINZEEIEZ S

o of @

2019 2018
—2-h#E —ENE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T

270 270
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

27.

Trade payables =) AN
Deposits received Bz e

Payables for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment FE 3R IE
Accrued mining service costs JE 5T F & AR 76 AKX AR
Accrued staff costs JEFTE T A
Other tax payables H b jE - £ 18
Accrued expenses st X
Interest payable (note 27) FE A ) B (KT 7E27)
Other payables H b B 508

26. B R HAMENKE

WENE BERREZ

2018
—E-NF
HK$'000
FE T

3,439
3,469

555
13,683
44,615
10,014

2,556
1,235
1,931

81,497

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on
the invoice date:

0-30 days 0Z230K

31-60 days 31E60K
61-90 days 61E 90K
Over 90 days HB 90K

RERZAZI 2 EH RN IR Z Kk 510

T
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
6,501 920
628 393
61 86
1,424 2,040
8,614 3,439

The average credit period on purchases is generally from 30
days extending up to 90 days for major suppliers.

PROMISSORY NOTES

On 31 July 2015, the Company issued unsecured promissory
notes with principal value of HK$304,000,000 in respect of
the acquisition of Everbest Return Group. The promissory
notes will mature on 30 July 2020 and bear interest at 1%
per annum. Interests are accrued and paid annually. The
Company may redeem whole or part of the promissory
notes at any time from 1 October 2016 up to the date
immediately prior to the maturity date. The promissory notes
are measured at amortised costs using effective interest rate
of 6%.

27.

TEHEFRBE 2 TFORES KRN F30X

EHZ%I0K °

AR RE

N-BE-—AFE+A=1+—B XAAK
B8 Everbest RetumE B BT A EE A
304,000,0007% JT 7 S | F H B & o F
ZEEBNR-_TE-_TFELAZ+THIE  K1%
ZEMEHE - FERFAHERIMN - AR
AR -E—R"FTA—BARBE=ZEEIHA
AI— B I B APERER 2 PRI o &L E
¥ o R E IR LA6% E BRI K 3 85 A AN 5

=

B °
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27. PROMISSORY NOTES (continuead) 27.

28.

As a result of the contingent consideration agreement in
respect of the acquisition of Everbest Return Group, part of
the promissory notes issued of HK$97,877,000 was written
back during the year ended 30 June 2016. There was early
redemption of promissory notes with carrying amount of
HK$44,892,000 during the year ended 30 June 2017.

Movement of promissory notes issued is as follows:

AHEE @)

B 7 U B8 Everbest Return®s B #) sk A (B 17
& BBITHEY AL E 897,877,000 TE
REBE_ZE—RNFENA=ZTHIEFEEMD -
REBE-_ZE—+FEXA=ZTHILFE &
i 2] B [ {H A5 44,892,00078 TTEI A& H Z 4 -

ERETALEEZBHRIIWT

2019 2018

—E-hE —T—)\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FET

At 1 July REtHA—H 111,771 106,587

Imputed interest recognised (note 10) BRERHEER B (M 5E10) 6,731 6,419

Coupon interest reclassified as other BENoBRAREMENKIEZ

payables (note 26) | M 2 (it 7E26) (1,235) (1,235)

At 30 June RNA=+H 117,267 111,771
DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES 28. EXEBIEBE(EE) AR

30/6/2019 1/7/2018 30/6/2018

—E-hF —E-N\F —E-N\F

~A=1+H +H—H NA=1H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT FH&TT FAETT

Deferred tax assets EETRIEE 11,108 12,373 11,464

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (17,998) (19,811 (19,811)

(6,890) (7,438) (8,347)
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28. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES
(Continued)

The following are the major deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

8. EEBH(EE)BEM®)

RTRAFERBEFECERNEZEL
MB(EE)REREZE:

prior years:
Fair value
adjustment on
property, plant
and equipment
Impairment of and customer
receivables contracts Total
L/E
BEREE
W HUREFEHN
REZHE ZRAFEAE &t
HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000
TAET FET FHT
Balance at 1 July 2017 RZZE—t+tFtH-HZ&EH® (11,129 42,578 31,449
Credit to profit or loss (note 11) A &R (P FE11) — (24,130) (24,130)
Exchange realignment BEE 3, 38 B (335) 1,363 1,028
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZZE-NFEARA=1+HZ
4 (11,464) 19,811 8,347
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 $R 43 % 7 81 75 3R &5 2E Bl 55955
(note 2) SR IEY)) (909) — (909)
Balance at 1 July 2018, as restated RZE-N\FLA—Bz2&H
KEY (12,373) 19,811 7,438
Credit to profit or loss (note 11) sTAB =R (R (253) (948) (1,201)
Exchange realignment B 5 3 B 1,518 (865) 653
Balance at 30 June 2019 RZZE—-hF~A=FTBZ
a3 (11,108) 17,998 (6,890)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$118,899,000 (2018: HK$103,728,000) available
for offset against future profits, out of which HK$113,321,000
(2018: HK$97,917,000) that may be carried forward indefinitely
and the remaining tax losses of HK$5,578,000 (2018:
HK$5,811,000) will expire within five years from the year
in which the respective loss arose. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.

REREEIR - ANEEBEE 118,899,000/ 7T (=
=T — )\ £ : 103,728,000/ 7T) Z & & B B %
5 18 AT 85 R 2R 0s A+ E AR 113,321,000 7T

— \%F : 97917,0007% 7T ) 7] 6E £ [R HA i
& MR ™ 2B 7% 85 185,578,000 L (=&
—/)\F : 581,000 L) BN BEHEEBELF
DRFERE R/ o W8 E &K R G HOR &% T8
BRI EEERTAETCHBEE -
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. BRA
Number of
shares Amount
K& H 2
HK$'000
FA&T
Authorised EE
As at 1 July 2017, 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 A -_ZE—+F+tH—H -
and 30 June 2019 —E2-NFARA=TH"
—2-N\FtHA-BX
—E-NhFERA=TH 30,000,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAR
As at 1 July 2017 RZE—+tF+HA—H 6,854,562,338 342,728
Issue of shares upon placing (note a) Bic &5 BF 25 1T AR 1 (BT 5% a) 638,000,000 31,900
As at 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 and RZE—-N\FAHA=1+8"
30 June 2019 —E-N\FLtHA-ABAK
—E-hERA=TA 7,492,562,338 374,628
None of the Company's subsidiaries purchased, sold or AABIMBARMERFANEE - LEXE
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year. B ARQNEMER G -
The new shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in RN ST EERERDZEERMAL
all respects.
Note: B 5
(@) On 27 June 2018, arrangements were made for a private placement (a) RZZE—NFAAZT+tH  KAAaMELETL AR

to independent private investors of 638,000,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each at a price of HK$0.05 per share, raising a total of
net proceeds of HK$31,102,000, after deducting direct expenses
of HK$798,000. These new shares were issued under the general
mandate at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 20
December 2017 and rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all
respects.

ELH - REROSE T ZEBRABLILAKRE
% Bt 5 638,000,000/ & IR EI{E 720.05/8 7T 2 & i@
P&+ S & PTIS ARIRF R A $£31,102,00078 7T (F1 B
BEFX798,00087T) « ZEHMBDBEN-Z
—tF T A THBETZARRRRBFAG
PRE-BBEEMET TES T EEELMDE
TERMFABRMBAL -
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. 772 T B #& #k % &
THE COMPANY

2018
—E-)N\F
NOTES HK$'000
B 5 F& T
Non-current asset IERBEE
Unlisted investments in KRB AR ZIEE™
subsidiaries & 2
Current assets mE)E E
Prepayments, deposits and other — FEfTFIE - & &
receivables H b W SRR 1,696
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE I 8 2 R 5RI8 @) 583,788
Bank balances and cash RITHE B EE 2 44,390
629,874
Current liabilities mEAaRE
Accrued expenses FEEtAX 3,497
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE BT B A B 2 1B (b) 17,258
3,271 20,755
Net current assets mEBEEFE 594,876 609,119
Total assets less current liabilities #A&ER B AE 594,878 609,121
Non-current liability ERBEE
Promissory notes EHEE 27 117,267 111,771
Net assets EEFE 477,611 497,350
Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital il 29 374,628 374,628
Reserves & 1 (© 102,983 122,722
Total equity AT 477,611 497,350
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. During the year ended 30 June 2019,
the directors of the Company have performed an impairment
assessment based on the expected credit loss model. As at 30
June 2019, the carrying amount of amounts due from subsidiaries
was HK$578,450,000 (2018: HK$583,788,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$496,572,000 (2018: HK$486,319,000).

(b) The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on

30.

AATEHBERR T @)

GEE

(@ REHMBATRKEAEER 2EREKEEXRE
B REE_T-AFNAZTHLEE  ARQF
EECREEPEEBBEETRETGE - R
ZE-NFARA=+H ERMREBARRIERE
18 £578,450,0005% 7T (= 2 — )\ £ : 583,788,000
7 70) (B 0B 2 516 (E 5 18496,572,000% 7T (=
T — )\ 4 : 486,319,0005% 7T)) °

(b) FAREER RSRABEBREE-

demand.
(c) Reserves (c) #E
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B2 19 % 8 Rt 8 &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FH& T
At 1 July 2017 R-_E—+tF+HF—H 652,695 (432,715) 219,980
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year AFEEELRE2EAER X — (96,460) (96,460)
Direct expenses of placing EZEEMX (798) — (798)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZZE-NFRA=THK
—Z-NE+H—H 651,897 (529,175) 122,722
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year AFEEE &2 EEHR — (19,739) (19,739)
At 30 June 2019 RZE—-—NFARA=1H 651,897 (548,914) 102,983
31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 31. BKERFHE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustees.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits schemes (“Schemes”)
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the Schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Schemes is to make the required
contributions under the Schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$9,239,000
(2018: HK$9,111,000) represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the plans.

AEBESAEBRERERREERLBFHIER
Baatdl - ZFFEMEERIFEAZESZ
HeRFH EAKENEESHEE -

FEMBARZEE AT R EE 2R
REBERKRBHE(ZTEDZKE - Kt
BRR®ERAZTekEEFEZ2ETED
AR A BBHEE - REEH &S
ZHE—BEERREBEZTEMELAFHER -

AEEBREBEFEBAEEOLERIAEHK
9,239,000/ 7t (= Z — J\4F : 9,111,000 Jr)
MRS EREZTENMER  WEEEBEF
W o
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share option scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 12 December 2014 for the
purpose of provide incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
reparations.

The board of directors of the Company (the “"Board”) may,
at its discretion, invite any employees, directors, advisors,
consultants, shareholders, contractors, distributors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners and services providers
of and/or to any member of the Group whom the Board
considers in its sole discretion, to have contributed to the
Group from time to time (together “Participants”) to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company (“Options”).

Options granted should be accepted within 28 days from
the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the Options, the
eligible person shall pay HK$1 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant. The Options may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during the option period after the Options has
been granted by the Board. An option period is a period to
be determined by the Board to each eligible person as being
the period during which any Options may be exercised, such
period to expire not later than 10 years after the date of grant
of the Options.

The subscription price will be determined by the Board at
its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of the shares at stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant which must be a business day; and (b) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted or to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit").

2. UBRBBRER ZARKZ

BREE

ARBR-_FT-—OF+ AT -_ARABR
st El ([FEaiEat &11) - ARE R 22 B A AR
SEXBORNELHERNAERZ2EE -

ARREFE ((EFEDAIRNERREFS
ERMBERLSETHUAEEFERNASE
B/ SAEEEFKERRNEMNES -
Ex AN BE KRR 2B 9#H
moHER - REA TP EBBHRR
BHRER(REI2EEDRIARBBEARF]
P e R s i ([RE AL D) o

BEEmBREARRLBRHE28AR T
B - BERATREMNBRERERAR
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit at
any time subject to prior shareholders of the Company’s
approval. No Participants shall be granted an options which,
if exercised in full, would result in such Participants becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of shares as, when
aggregated with the total number of shares already issued
under all the options previously granted to him or her which
have been exercised, and, issuable under all outstanding
options previously granted to him or her which are for the
time being subsisting and unexercised, would exceed 1% of
the total number of shares in issue in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant of the Options. Share options granted
to a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company, or to any of their associates, are subject
to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on
the price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant)
in excess if HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

Unless early terminated in accordance with the terms therein,
the Share Option Scheme will remain valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on 12 December 2014.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends
or to vote at the shareholder’s meeting.

No share options had been granted or exercised during the
years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019. As at 30 June 2018 and
2019, no option remained outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme.

32.

UBRBDAER ZARKRZ #)

BRESE(E)

WEEARBRRNBE L E  ARF AR
EAEEEMTERERB BEERLB
PREE B IEOEM+ —EABRE - MR XL
SEERHBERREZRTESEHZA
SHREARRBBOZERND BB ERRE
HEMBERZABEBRBETEMERT
UARRBECHER ZERRRITEZME
BREMAZFTORND S AEEBDH
TIRDBENI% AT FRAZ2EERT
BRE- - MARBES  TBTHABSLE
EERRABFAMBEALTE TREEE
BERESARABILIFNITESIME - It
Sh - fRMER T —EAEAR FARR X
ERRIBIIFNTEET RS 28
BALZBEREBRAARREAKEDET
B z01% @EREBEREBREEAX
A B (B 1% 5T 8D #87#15,000,00078 7T - Al
BERERRRELESRRIAE -

BRIF B AT Bl IR AR IR R R L - TR
BREGFESH _FT-WUFE+_A+ AR
FH0FHIRMNER B -

BEREAMNHTRHBEAZTAREXNBE
RELREZER -

RBE-ZT-N\FE_ZT-hFRA=1+H
HFE - BEBREERDHITE R=-F
“NEER-ZFT-NAFANA=1TH HEBR
T8 N2 BB RITEE -

Annual Report 2019
20194 )

173



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR ET

For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 33. &I A
Categories of financial instruments S@ITAENER
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FAT
Financial assets ERMEE
At amortised cost/loans and receivables  IRESERKAN, B 5K FE Uk k0B
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREASERRSFEY) 526,198 592,758
Financial assets at FVTPL BETREEAFEARZ
TREE 28,662 —
Financial assets at FVTOCI BEAFHEFAEMEZE
W emEE —
Held-for-trading investments BIEEERE 24,087
AFS investments AL ERE 5,452
Financial liabilities c@masE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost TERAE - REHEKAE 183,254
Financial risk management objectives and policies HMERBEEREERBE
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade, bills AEBZEFESHIAEREE S EUWGE -
and other receivables, loan receivables, financial assets FEN SR 4R e Efh FE U GRIE - FEME SR - 4C38
at FVTPL, AFS investments, held-for-trading investments, HEEAFEARZSREE  AIHHE
amount due from an associate, cash and cash equivalents, KE  BEEERE - BR—BEBE QAR
trade and other payables and promissory notes. Details H -BehkBReEEBY BHREMEMNRK
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective HERAREE ZEZEeBTHAZFBNRER
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments s - BZSeR T AR ARE
include market risk (foreign currency risk and interest rate EWSRR (INERR RFIERR) - EME
risk), other price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The BER - FERBRERBESRER o &
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. ZERRBEHINNT - BEEEETER
The management manages and monitors these exposures to ERZERRE  UEREEBBMRIUEE
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely HHE ©
and effective manner.
Market risk % 7 B
Foreign currency risk sh B
Certain bank balances are denominated in currencies other ETRITEBUERBBEE CEEEE N
than the functional currencies of the entities to which they BEIE - REBBRE ARG LEMINE R
relate. The Group currently has not entered into any foreign HEH - UERIINERR - MWERZE - B8
currency forward contracts to hedge against foreign currency [E #5 & /& % b SN EE R B o

risk. Management will consider hedging foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currencies
denominated monetary assets, at the reporting dates are as
follows:

Assets BE
usSD ETT

33. €@t T A&

BHEBRBREZEERERRE(E)

%5 ()
S B (4

RmERS  AEEUIINEIIECGEKEE
ZHREEWT

2018
—EN\E
HK$'000
THT

270

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for USD as HK$ is pegged
to USD.

Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to the promissory notes and loan receivables for the
years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019. The Group also exposed
to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to the bank balances
for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019. The Group
currently does not have a formal interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise. The management of the Group
considered that a reasonably possible change in interest rates
would not have a material impact to the Group's result.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through
its investment in listed equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk. In addition, the Group will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

HRBTEITHS  REYBREXTH

T & 7 B2

BE_Z-)\FER-_ZF-AFXA=1THL
FE AFENALRERBEERERD
FEMERR #E_T-N\FRZZT—A
FRNAZTHLEFE  AEENRTE BT
HERBREREFNERER - AEEREITE
EAREIFER - Al EEESEE T
LRk TREFERZE/IBRINERER
tEL S - AEEEEERR  FXNEIE
AREEH T UAEENEEENEAF

a5,
Z

A 1818 15 Bl B

AEBTERHEN EHRAEHZIRE MA
EXRAERER - EREUFATRERZ
KREHEGERUIRER - LI REBHNE
FEREELHPER -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 33. &M I A

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk (Continued)
Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting
period. If the prices of the respective equity securities have
been 10% higher/lower (2018: 10% higher/lower) with all other
variables held constant, the consolidated loss after tax for
the year would decrease/increase by HK$2,393,000 (2018:
HK$2,011,000) mainly due to changes in fair values of financial
assets at FVTPL (2018: held-for-trading investments).

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2019, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade, bills
and other receivables, loan receivables, amount due from
an associate and cash and cash equivalents. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.

As at 30 June 2018, impairment loss was recognised when
there was objective evidence of impairment l0ss.

Starting from 1 July 2018, for trade receivables, the Group
has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance for impairment at lifetime ECL. The Group
determines the ECL for customers that are well-known, with
long relationship and significant balances on an individual
basis and for the remaining balances, collectively by using
a provision matrix, estimated based on historical credit loss
experience, as well as the general economic conditions of
the industries in which debtors operate. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.

BHEBRBREZEERERRE(E)

% ()
H 1t (B 15 /7 Bz ()
B AR EAR SRR DA

AT SREE DT TR B A 545 B R A& E Y
BABERERMET - WESHAZSE
I/ A 0% (B —)\E : & m
0% MAEHMEERETE  AEE
2B EREEIEBR L 112,393,0007% T
—E—)\FE: 201,000 7T) TEHRK
BERERATEAEZEREE(CT N
FOREEERE)ZATFEEHAY -

= B /m g

RIZE—NFARA=+TH AXZHF KRG
BTEAMEAKREAREWBERNLK
SEsREERAR ELBRGEAEMBERR
RFAJINERERACHREENKREE -

AEEEERBREIEFRNE SRR -
FEM I M B A R UL IR - BUE SR - BIR
—HBELRREALRRENECEEYD -
ZERFNEAMESASEETREESR
MRS EERR -

SREEREEERR AKEEEECEZRIK
NEEBEEEEERSE FEEHLREM
ERIBIZ - DARERIRENRE 5 i W @ 8 H8
IR -

R-BE—N\FAA=+A EEEBBES
99 3 9L S 9B B R R R ML 9B

BZZ-\F+LtA—BE #HEHEKFKE
MmE AKREEXRAEEVHRELENF
FHB T AT EEHEREEEBRNR
EEEEE AEEBEERREELE
ERAERANBEEEANEBAL
EREITENARKLENR - RE B ERM
R X HAAEERBRDEENLEANR
RNMEBEFPHEMEEERE - BUtm=
ARAEZERRAEENEER R AR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Management considered bills receivables and other
receivables to be low credit risk and thus the allowance
for impairment recognised during the year was limited to
12-month ECL. As at 30 June 2019, the identified impairment
loss was not significant.

For loan receivables and amount due from an associate, the
Group has assessed whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has
been a significant increase in credit risk, the Group will
measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than
12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or with good reputation.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o internal credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

o significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and changes
in the operating results of the borrower

33. €@t T A&

BHEBRBREZEERERRE(E)

% B (78)
=B E R (&)

BEEREREER R EMERRERE
FEERRZ KA Bt ERAEEER
HMERBEERNREABRHREEERE -1
—E-NAFRAZTHEE#NREEELT
EX-

ThFE W R N e M — R B & AR RIR T R
AEEET BBV I HAREERRESR
RIEIBIN - i 5 E R AR N - AEE
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REGHFREBREETFARBE TS
EEFEABERGZRTT BWRBESZ
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AEBRVTHEREERZEBEZOME - A
ERBEARSHACEARESHEARE
g e RAAEERRETRERM A
BEREENRESERELNEQRREYH
EREMNEORRETHER - AEEEE
BREEAEBEIIHMAIEIEER - EHE
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. MERE ERE AR
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

33.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure

to credit risk

The Group's current credit risk grading framework comprises
the following categories:

Category
5

Performing

B %)

Doubtful

+ Bk

Default

[0k
or

Write-off

3

Description
ot

For financial assets where there has low risk of
default or has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired (refer to as Stage 1)

REVEREXAVIFZEABABRITEEER
K%PM&Iﬂ;ﬁﬂEMiﬂéﬁ(ﬁ

Ehl-129)

For financial assets where there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
(refer to as Stage 2)

BT HRAREERRREEMEL EEFE
BENTREE(DRE ZER)

Financial assets are assessed as credit-impaired
when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that asset have occurred (refer
to as Stage 3)

—HYAZHEHBEMBEENMGFTARIRS
MEEETNEE2ETHEEEREN SR
BEDABF=[EER)

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery

GFEEBRNEBAERRE VG EEHERAE
& B0 2 E B U E 5RIE A9 R B

SR TITHE®E)
MEEREEEERKE ()

% B (78)
=EEE R (&)
AEBEZEER

A& BB S E R R ARIER

==Vl

Basis for recognising ECL
BAAHMEEBENEE

12-month ECL

REAEREEER

Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

2HBEMEEER — BEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

2HEHREEREE —EEERE

Amount is written off

TR

BT
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

The table below details the credit quality of the Group’s
financial assets as well as the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk by credit risk rating grades.

Internal
credit 12-month or
30 June 2019 Notes rating lifetime ECL
RBEE 1EAREHEH
—Z-AEAXA=1AH M R FEEBR
Trade receivables 22 Note Lifetime ECL
g 5 E MR IE 22 [MFEE THEHEEES
Bills receivables 22 Performing 12-month ECL
& U = 1% 2 EH NEREHEEES
Other receivables 22 Performing 12-month ECL
H b e Y 5R08 2 EH PREAEREEES
Loan receivables 23 Performing 12-month ECL
JE i B3R 23 E#H NEAREHEEER
Loan receivables 23 Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
& i B R 23 R ZHEHEEBRBE(EERAEA)
Loan receivables 23 Default
JE i B3R 23 BN ZHEHEEHE(ZERHA)
Amount due from an associate 21 Default Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
JE U — FEI B &5 A R 500 21 EY ZHEREEBERE(EERHE)

33. €@t T A&

BHEBRBREZEERERRE(E)

RN AC Y
=B @R (&)

TRANAGEEREEZFEERRA
SEREEARINzEZSEERR -

Gross Net
carrying Loss carrying
amount allowance  amount

B [ B
HK$'000
THER

BERE
HK$'000
TR

iR F B
HK$'000
FERT

80,807 (10,362) 70,445

59,463 = 59,463

34,839 (2,268) 32,571

143,219 (1,510) 141,709

41,232 (6,276) 34,956

Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 631 (174) 457

169,000 (133,510) 35,490

529,191

(154,100)

375,091

Note: The Group has applied simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is all in the PRC which accounted for 100% (2018:
100%) of the total trade and bills receivable as at 30 June
2019 respectively.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 46% (2018: 41%) of the total carrying amount of
trade receivables was due from one of the Group's largest
customer while 88% (2018: 77%) of the total carrying amount
of trade receivables was due from the Group’s five largest
customers. The Group also has concentration of credit risk
on loan receivables, amount due from an associate and
liquid funds which are deposited with several banks with high
credit ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

M AREERBEBYMBRELERBIRNBES
FREHEHMEEBRIEERER -

AEBENEERRRMECEE S 2 E
PRFPE - RME T -NAFARNA=THE
Z e IR K R 4B AT 100% (—F —
J\E :100%) °

RZE-—NFARA=+AH AEENEER
wET  AABESEKFIBRARERNLIOS
(_5*)\5 41%)X§$%l§j<¥ﬁz

CM88% (=T —/)\F : 77%) W E 5 FE 3K
Iﬁﬁéﬁé@fﬁxa$%l§£ﬁ%}5 o REHE
MEERER - BR—EHE AR RERT
BREREEFLERSHNRITHRDE S
MNEERRES AEETETWEMSE
RzERREF -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 3. €M T A®)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERKREEEERBE(E)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 5 E B (&)
Liquidity risk B E % B
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group's policy REERDECRBME  AEEZHREA
is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity FTHERREREH I RBESTE - U
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves REEBEUNENEARERERSDESS
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in short term and 2HESHE -
long term.
Liquidity tables MEBE SR
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual TRABVAREEIETESHRBBENRT
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables EREEBER ZRBBEAEEANTN &
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows FHEMNeRBEPRERRSRERE -

of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TRIAMERAREHESRE ©

More than  More than
On demand 1 year but 2 years but
or within less than less than undiscounted Carrying

1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
BEXRD BBR—F BB F KERAS
R—FR BLREE ELREF REHAE REME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FTHART FTER FTER FHART
At 30 June 2019 R-ZB-AEXA=1+H
Non-derivative financial FiTELHER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B REMENKE = 55,071 55,071
Promissory notes EEEE 123,574 124,809 117,267
Total @t 123,574 179,880 172,338
At 30 June 2018 R-ZE-NEXAB=1+H
Non-derivative financial HKiTLELHBER
liabilities
Trade and other payables B 5K H M ENFRIE 71,483 — — 71,483 71,483
Promissory notes EHEE 1,235 1,235 123,574 126,044 1M,771
Total w@at 72,718 1,235 123,574 197,527 183,254
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable in accordance
to the Group’s accounting policy.

Financial assets at FVTOCI & A F{EFAH
2EKFEZEH
BE

Unlisted equity securities FELETMRAE 5

Financial assets at FVTPL KEZRRLAFE

33.

Level 1
E—&
HK$'000
FHET

€W IAE
REAHBRREABRR>ATENE

TREJIRNEBREMREERTAZRAFE
AEELHZON  BASESEABERER
FEANERREERRF E=R -

2019
—E-hF
Level 2 Level 3 Total
et ] E=R &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FE T FE T

ARZSsREE
Listed equity securities LR AFE FH 28,662 28,662
2018
—E-N\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B B E=8 at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAET
Financial assets at FVTPL REZERATE
AEZERMEE
Financial assets held for trading #H{EEE 2 SR EE 24,087 — — 24,087
AFS investments ARHERE
Listed equity securities at BEAFEYEZ
fair value EHRAE % 5,452 — — 5,452

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
in the current and prior years.

RAFERBEFE  ERFEERZHEL
mEE -
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuead) 33. &M I A®m)
Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair BEREMEENUATEFEZEREER
value on a recurring basis A¥EE
The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value ELRMITARKEUEE NFEFER
measurements of each financial instrument on a recurring BEEAERE ABESHINWOT :

basis are set out below:

Fair value as at

RUTFERZDFE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Fair value Valuation technique Significant
Financial instruments hierarchy HK$'000 HK$'000 and key inputs unobservable inputs
$WMIE AEEER THERT THLT FEFERIEBAYE EXAFTABRERAYE
Financial assets at FVOCI Level 3 N/A  Present value of expected cash Forecasted revenue
flows in the foreseeable and expected cash
future discounted at the flow
required vield
BEAFEFAEMEZE =M TER TBRREARANESHRERE BAKzZLESHR:
hamsemEE REZARREERA neE
Financial assets at Level 1 29,539 Quoted bid prices in N/A
FVPTL/Held-for-trading active market
investments/

AFS investments

KBERERATEAEZ F—#R HRMIGMREAE NE
SREE/BIFEE
BE/HEBERE
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities WHRLEHEEUQAFEFEZSRE
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring ErRcBEEAFEEEAHRELATHE)
basis (but fair value disclosure are required)
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying ARBEERE ' METBRERPIZEIEK
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded AR zemEENSREBE CFEEEH
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements BEZRAFERE -

approximate their fair values.
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34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Year ended 30 June 2019

On 7 March 2019, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its 100% equity interest
in Brilliance Foison Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries,
which were inactive from their respective incorporation dates
to date of disposal, to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of RMB17,270,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$20,200,000). The disposal was completed on 8 March

2019.

Cash consideration received

34. HEHWEAF

BE-Z-NFARA=ZTHLFE

=ANB5EK

B & K(E

HK$’000
FHERT

20,200

Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost:

ERERNBZEERBEIN:

Cash and cash equivalents RERBESZEEY
Other receivables H i & W SR IE
Net assets disposed of e cEEFE
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HEWBAR ZEIE:
Consideration received 2R AME
Net assets disposed of FrHECEEFE

Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the
net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on loss of control of the
subsidiaries

B AR EEFENKE
P /88 7 =) 4 I 4 By P HE 2
ENSBRERRZ R
[ ER

20,200

(20,058)

Gain on disposal

& U 28

B

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of

HEELEZRERMAFER:
HeRE
BT EZRE RIREFEY

20,200
(20,020)

180

N-ZE—NFZA+H AEEFTTEEH
& A — &8 % =5 E & H R Brilliance
Foison Enterprises Limited & E B B 2~ 7 (5
SEEMAYESEEHERSEER) 22
ERRE - IR e R E AR ARY17,270,0007T (48
&R #120,200,0007T) e HER_ZE—ILF
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Year ended 30 June 2018

3. HEMEB AR (&)
BE-_2—\EAA=tALEE

On 24 June 2017 and 30 August 2017, the Group entered into RZZE—+tFAAAZTEAERZZE—+EFN
a sale and purchase agreement and supplemental agreement A=1H FxEEFTLEEHZERERHE -
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in 1t FUE Z 4 F 58 R % R —2B L E = REE R R EZEH
fir AR 7 A IR A &) and its subsidiaries, which mainly operates BERFEMREER AR REMB AR (H=E
heating supply services in the PRC, to an independent third ZEEPEEERB) 2 HRE  Bel
party at a cash consideration of RMB14,060,000 (equivalent to E A& A K ¥14,060,0007T (18 & 516,326,000
HK$16,326,000). The disposal was completed on 8 September BIL) e HERZZE—tFNANHEK °
2017.

HK$'000

FAET

Cash consideration received

BUE e RE 16,326

Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost:

BEREEHRZEERBEIN:

Property, plant and equipment LE N 4,663
Trade and other receivables B 5 & Eih g sk E 35,716
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEBY 57
Trade and other payables ZE 5K A pENRIE (8,016)
Net assets disposed of FtEzEBEFE 32,420
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: LEMBARZEE:
Consideration received B E 16,326
Net assets disposed of FrbEzEEFE (32,420)
Non-controlling interests FE1ZE R = 15,108

Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the
net assets of the subsidiaries reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on loss of control of the

AHMBAREEFERKE
P I8 7 ) 4 I 4 B P 4 2
EFnBERDZ AR

subsidiaries MEH Z5 (30)
Loss on disposal HEEE (1,016)

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:

HEELXEZRESRAFE:

Cash consideration ReERE 16,326
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of BoRMLEZRERBFACEEY (57)
16,269
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HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

35. COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Operating lease commitments
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due
as follows:

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth years inclusive £ —_ZFAF (BIEEREMF)

35. RERE

(a)

Operating lease payments represent rental payables by
the Group for its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to two years (2018: one to
two years) with fixed rentals as at 30 June 2019.

Other commitments

Capital injection in respect AE—RERER

of an investee

(b)

A

ReBERE
EEEEDAMEA

RBERAR  AEERET A HEN
REHOARTIEHBEZNZ KK
REBSREAZENT :

2019 2018
—2-h%E —EN\E
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T

2,552 2,795
1,210 1,414

3,762 4,209

REENFBADEARERERRE
MERNZIER - RZE-AFRA=
TH HO-—EMFCE-NEF:
—EMFIZFHRREEHEESHEE -

B
2019 2018
—s-nx (LS

HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T#ETT

21,330
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-ZT-NAFXNA=Z+THILFE

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BEALTXRS
Apart from those disclosed elsewhere (if any) in these BRERUHEEEUERREMEEMERS
consolidated financial statements, the Group has entered (BN AEBRFRNERBETOT L
into the following significant transactions with related parties TAEKRRS :

during the year:

Ccompensation of key management personnel FTEEBABE ZFMH
The remuneration of the directors of the Company (who are FARN - ARAEEFREEXZEEEABR)Z
the key management personnel of the Group) during the year T

were as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Short-term benefits SRR R 4,900 4,837
Post-employment benefits R AE A 36 27
4,864
Personal guarantee PN
As at 30 June 2019 and 2018, one of the Group's loan RZE-—NEFER_E—-N\FXA=+H" &K
receivables with gross carrying amount of HK$9,122,000 SEER—IFARAEA9122,000% T (=
(2018: nil) was guaranteed by Mr. Cai Da, the director of the T-N\F:ENERERBARAEEEE
company. FAEFER -
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the said ANBEERA LM ERTIE—KEER
guarantee was conducted on normal commercial terms in REREBEBBIEFET  BEXRBAE
the ordinary course of business and was not secured by any BE{EMEEEERHR  QEREBIEGEM EHmR
assets of the Group, the guarantee constituted a fully-exempt BIE20E WK EEHREHERS o
connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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For the year ended 30 June 2019
HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. FENB AT
Particulars of the company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 RZEBE—NFANA=Z+H  ARAIEEKHE
June 2019 are set out as follows: NEIFBEHIN AT
Place/Country of Proportion of
incorporation/ Paid up issued ordinary Proportion of ownership voting power held
Name of subsidiary operations share capital interest held by the Company by the Company Principal activities
MR/
BEHY BRTRAR ARABERERE
HELARER Bx EERRAE ARABERERERASL BAk TEEK
Directly Indirectly
B B
2018 2018 2018
—E-N\F —E-N\F —E-)N\F
% % %

Chemosino International The BVI Ordinary share US$1 100 n/a 100 Investment holding
Limited
Chemosino International REAARKES TARIET 100 A 100 %%k
Limited
Born Nature Investments  The BVI Ordinary share US$1 100 n/a 100 Investment holding
Limited
Born Nature Investments ~ E@&RREE LTRBK1ET 100 TER 100 BEZER
Limited
Golden Brand Investments — Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10 n/a 100 100 Investment holding
Limited and money
lending
BREREBRRAA B LRKI0E T TER 100 100 REERRAE
Great Wall Credit Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares n/a 100 100 Money lending
HK$5,000,000
EMEEERRA B 3 %5,000,0007% 70 TER 100 100 MfE
Y& RHAERADF  The PRC Paid-up capital n/a 100 100 Investment holding
RMB20,000,000
& XERERDA  HE BHRKEARYE TER 100 100 BEER
20,000,0007T
RELEETR The PRC Paid-up capital n/a 100 100 Provision of coal
RMB20,000,000 mining services
REBEIR FE BEHBREARE TER 100 100 REREBERRE
20,000,0007T
KEEZHHMeRAMB LA The PRC Paid-up capital n/a 90 90 Provision of
(REEZH RMB30,000,000 heating supply
services
REEBHFERAERAR HE BHBRRARYE i A 90 90 REHE RS
(REEER]) 30,000,0007T
Silk Road GAS Investments  Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000 n/a 90 90 Investment holding
Limited
Silk Road GAS Investments & & 48 % 1,0005 7T TERB 90 90 #EZERK
Limited
Everbest Return Limited The BVI Ordinary shares US$10 n/a 100 100 Investment holding
Everbest Return Limited HE4LARES LTBRRI0ET TER 100 100 % & ik
Winner Joy Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 n/a 100 100 Investment holding
Winner Joy Holdings Limited & 7 L@kt TER 100 100 BEZER
# Being wholly foreign owned enterprises. tRINEBERE
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Except as specified above, all other subsidiaries are limited
liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, result in particulars of excessive
length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All the other
subsidiaries are either investment holding or inactive located
in Hong Kong, BVI and the PRC. Details of these subsidiaries
are summarised as follows:

37. TEWBLAT#®)

BREXFIIEEEIN FIBEMHMBERARIEAR
EREMERA -

FRIHARAEZTARTIEFEAEERE
BREERBBZAKEBAR - AT
BEERA AVEMKHBATNSIRATHB
BIE -

RBERKR  AABFEMEAREEBY T
EENHBAR - MEEMMBLARAKRE
ERERYEER - LREE - RBER
ELFE - ZEMBARZFHBHRALT

Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
FTEEK FTERE I MEAREE
2018
—E-N\F
Investment holding Hong Kong 5
wEER B
Investment holding The BVI 1
KEERK REHBRES
Inactive Hong Kong 1
BE BB
Inactive The BVI 1
mEY EEERRES
Inactive The PRC 2
EEE 2l
20
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The tables below show details of the subsidiary that have
non-controlling interests material to the Group during the
years ended 30 June 2018 and 2019:

silk Road GAS Investments Limited and its subsidiary

37. TENBLAT®)

TRITBEZZE-NEFR_E-NFRHA
SR AEEEE R A IR
2 ME AR

Silk Road GAS Investments Limited & &

M & AR
2018
—E-N\F
Proportion of effective interests held by — JEIEREEZFTIHE R E &
non-controlling interests Bt 10%
Voting rights held by non-controlling JEERER T IR R
interests 10%
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
FHETT
Profit attributable to non-controlling I 12 IR 25 JE 1 i A
interests 388
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETIEE R (59)
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37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuead) 37. FENBAT &)
Silk Road GAS Investments Limited and its subsidiary Silk Road GAS Investments Limited % &
(Continued) MEBLRE)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's HAEEBEENHEEERER ZAE
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material EffE AR HMBERBEHINET - TX
to the Group is set out below. The summarised financial LU BEEMBE T EE AR E FEHE
information below represents amounts before intra-group BI& & °
eliminations.

As at AS at
30 June 2019 30 June 2018
R-ZZEE—I&E RZE—N\F

NA=1H NA=T+H

HK$°000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Non-current assets IERBEE 9,723 10,273

Current assets mENE E 7,362 3,978

Current liabilities mENBE (13,216) (14,841)

Non-current liabilities EREAE —
Equity attributable to owners of the KAREEE AEILED

Company (531)

Non-controlling interests FE 1R IR 1 (59)
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HE-T-NAFRNA=Z+THILHFE

37. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. FEMB AR @)
Silk Road GAS Investments Limited and its subsidiary Silk Road GAS Investments Limited % &
(Continued) M AT (&)

Year ended 30 Year ended 30

June 2019 June 2018
BE-Z-hF EESEIita
NA=+H NA=+H
IEFEE EFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHEIT
Revenue I &= 5,635 6,268
Other income H g A 12,994 10,037
Expenses 2 (14,160) (12,425)
Profit for the year NEE & F 4,469 3,880
Other comprehensive (expense) income for 784 & 2 2 @ (5 2 ) W A
the year (4[0)] 410
Total comprehensive income for the year AR E 2 EAW A 4,459 4,290
Profit for the year attributable to: INTATEEREE RN :
Owners of the Company ZA/NCIEZ 2SN 3,492
Non-controlling interests FEVE AR M o 388
3,880
Total comprehensive income for the year A TATE(RAEE 2 A
attributable to: WA
Owners of the Company KRARER A 4,013 3,861
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 2= 446 429
4,459 4,290
Net cash inflow from operating activities #& & EEIE &K A B 10,515 3,459
Net cash outflow from investing activities % & /E8)IR & i 1 /F &8 (2,668) (2,260)
Net cash outflow from financing activities R E/EHIIR & m L F5E (7,455) (1,439)
Net cash inflow (outflow) Hem ACRD) FE 392 (240)
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RAFER  BEZSMBAREHITEME
the end of the year. T H o
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Five-year Financial Summary
EFHBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the AEERBERENBRFENEELREELEARE
Group for the last five financial years is set out below: MEFHNNT:

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=Z=+HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
-SR-Sl T —)\F —T—+F —T-XF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TFHET TFHET TFHET TFHET
(restated)
(&7
RESULTS E
Revenue U %5 316,760 298,164 379,293 324,100 328,507
Loss for the year KRR BB AREMN
attributable to owners AN E EiE
of the Company (29,989) (75,721) (140,228) (130,043) (63,856)
ASSETS AND EEHAE
LIABILITIES
Total assets wEE 686,349 755,403 823,747 1,018,844 680,470
Total liabilities FES=Kr— 204,231 223,011 245146 301,515 15,337
Net assets BEFE 482,118 532,392 578,601 717,329 665,133
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